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EDITOR’S N OTE

EDITOR’S N OTE

Welcome
to our Integrated Annual Report

Our people, our differentiator:
Simnikiwe Ntyantya and
Ndivhuho Siliga

This report covers TUHF’s financial year ended 31 March 2020 and is
intended to share information about our strategy, governance, performance and prospects, in the context of our external environment,
to demonstrate how we have been able to create value over time.

While this report is aimed primarily at our current and
potential stakeholders, we also aim to share this information with our funders and investors who are interested in our ability to create value. In this Integrated Annual
Report you will find comprehensive information of our
business performance, our strategy, and our prospects.
In preparing this publication, we were guided by the International Integrated Reporting Council’s (IIRC) Integrated Reporting Framework.

rand values, including loan book size and operating profit
or related percentages, are reported for the Group as per
the annual financial statements and this report.
Annual financial statements for the individual companies
within the Group are available upon request.
			
TUHF has offices in Johannesburg, Durban, Port Elizabeth, Cape Town, Bloemfontein and Pretoria. These offices also serve inner cities in the surrounding areas, such
as Pietermaritzburg, Pinetown, Uitenhage and East London.

SCOPE AND BOUNDARY
This report covers TUHF’s performance and its commercial subsidiaries (the Group), over the period 1 April 2019 For more information on our geographic footprint, please
to 31 March 2020, with comparatives shown where avail- see our Business Overview, page 30.
able.							
MATERIALITY
						
The number of units, buildings, loans and entrepreneurs Our Board of Directors (Board) considers material matare reported on for active loans within our main operat- ters to be those that may have an ongoing impact on
ing company, TUHF Limited (TUHF). The report includes TUHF’s business, and our ability to create and sustain
comparatives from previous years where available. All value for our stakeholders.
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Bonga Xulu and Savannah Horn

The process of identifying these material matters to our
business and stakeholders was aligned to our organisational decision-making processes. The identified risks
and opportunities are those that could impact our leadership position and niche market.				
			
For more information on our material matters, please see
our Challenges and Opportunities on page 62.
ASSURANCE
PwC has externally audited the Annual Financial Statements in this Annual Integrated Report. All information
in this report is subject to internal controls and strong
management supervision. The Group is confident that
other data, although not audited, accurately reflects the
performance and position of the business.

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY AND APPROVAL
The Board is responsible for the integrity of the Integrated Annual Report, with the assistance of the Audit and
Risk Committee, and support from management, who
convened the skills and experience to undertake the reporting process and provided management oversight in
its execution.
In preparing the report, the Board applied its collective
mind to the report’s content and is satisfied that it fairly
and accurately represents the Group’s performance and
prospects. The Board concluded that this report is presented in accordance with the IIRC Integrated Reporting
Framework.
This Integrated Annual Report was approved by the
Board and signed on its behalf by:

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Certain statements in this document may constitute
“forward-looking statements”. Such forward-looking
statements may differ materially from future results,
performance or achievements, whether expressed or implied.
The Group undertakes no obligation to update publicly,
or release any revisions to, these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date
of this document, or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated events. These have not been reviewed or reported
on by the Group’s auditors.

Samson Moraba		
Chairperson

Paul Jackson		
Chief Executive Officer

29 September 2020

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

5

Creating safe urban spaces through massive small impact

About us
TUHF is a specialised
commercial property financing company that focuses
exclusively on supporting
property investors in inner
cities.

We finance property entrepreneurs in their purchase
and refurbishment of rental properties with a focus on
providing affordable, quality rental housing. Technically,
we are a non-bank financial services company that borrows money from the capital markets and invests it in
inner city areas with entrepreneurs who want to grow
their businesses. We provide finance through a mortgage
bond, so that traditionally we could be called a mortgage
financier.
But we are far from traditional. Apart from providing access to finance for purchase and refurbishment to people
with a passion for property and the potential to run successful rental operations, we support the entrepreneurs
we work with to give them the best possible chance of
prosperity.
We walk right beside our clients on their property investment journey, providing advice in finding the correct
building and area and supporting them in selecting service providers such as building contractors and property
managers.

Our vision: impact
through scale.
6
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We also inspect the work and ensure everything is completed to the highest standard. By providing guidance
during the negotiation process through to construction
and rent up, our experience, knowledge and expertise
is available to our clients throughout the 15-year loan
term.

We create massive impact through small changes in
every space we create.
TUHF SEES WHAT OTHERS DON’T
Our specialisation sets us apart from our competitors.
We have unprecedented and in-depth knowledge of the
areas that we focus on and we stick to what we do best.
We are very close to the communities that we finance,
so that we understand the market environment and the
property trends that impact them and our clients’ success.
TUHF projects:
• are in major city centres that are in urban decline
• are close to schools, transport systems and places
of work
• are economically sustainable – able to generate
sufﬁcient income to repay expenses, service the loan
and make a proﬁt
• will upgrade buildings in the selected inner-city area
providing affordable and decent residential rental
units
• have a positive effect on the areas in which they
are based.
We work with entrepreneurs to ensure that their project
is feasible, the purchase price reasonable and local market conditions are met. We ensure that there is a good fit
between the entrepreneur and the building as well as a
balance between the financial demands of the purchase
and the rentals that can be realistically expected.

When considering a loan, we look at the person and the
project. The entrepreneurial character and competence
of the entrepreneur guides the way in which we make
decisions.
TUHF entrepreneurs:
• have equity to contribute towards a project
• have an honest and reliable character
• know the inner city
• have the property management skills and network
of contacts for their project’s size
• can provide good customer service and firm credit
control
• are proud of owning well-maintained, clean buildings
• will make sufficient profit
• have the interests of urban regeneration at heart.
At TUHF we encourage our clients to develop their property interests, enabling them to grow from part-time to
full-time property entrepreneurs. This is how we create
impact through scale, and build trust with our clients and
stakeholders.
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2020
highlights

EA and PMO Achievement Summary
COVID 19
2019

Operating
Profit

Q1

Q2

R3.61 billion
R11.9 million

Approve Treasury
Resource

Strategy for Application Architecture

Automation and
Integration

Strategy for Data
Management

Data Management
Analysis

Data Management Roll Out

PIC fixed to
floating

Sell Additional Assets
to Securitisation

More Off
Balance Sheet

Devise Financial
Architecture

Identify CMBS
Requirements

Liaise with Potential
Data Providers

Source CMBS
Data to facilitate Capital
Market Funds

Appoint Treasury
Specialist

Improve
Cashflow
Management

Systems

Review LCMS

New record for Annual Disbursements

R757.8 million
43 911

LMS Upgrade
Approved

Evaluate, Pilot
and Deploy Solution

Investigate FICA
Requirements

Identify FICA
Solution

Deploy FICA
Solution

Investigate
Template
Management

Choose and Pilot
Template Mgmt
Solution

Deploy Template
Management

LCMS Upgrade
Develop

LCMS Upgrade Test

LCMS Upgrade
Complete

Change
Management

Change Management
PMO In-house Head

Programme
Defined

PMO Initiatives
Approved

Review Business
Strategy,
Architecture,
Context

Baseline IT
Architectures

High Level IT
Architectures

BI Rollout

Data Quality
Improvement

Establish Warehouse Facilities
(Standard
Bank)
Define Document
Management
Requirements
Identify Solution
Options

PMO Established

EA and PMO

Q4

BI Selection and
Piloting

Document As-IS
Architectures

Finance and
Treasury

Q3

BI Requirements and
Solution Options

IT

Our turf may seem risky, but, after 17 years of consistent growth,
our numbers prove that we are able to unearth potential where others may fear to tread. We continue to remain the largest lender in our
market niche.

Loan
book

2020
Q4

Detailed IT
Architectures

CAPABILITY

Theme

Q3

IT Enhancement Projects

TIME

Units financed since inception

Total number of
buildings

679
8
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R313 million

Total community
space

136 011m

2

contributed in rates, taxes
and utilities to the CoJ
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Why invest 			
with TUHF
Consistent Return on Investment (ROI)
We have a proven track record of commercial viability

Cost to income
ratio of

75%

Strong market
position

9%

Approach to risk
We assess risk holistically. This involves our
specialised character-based lending approach,
where we look at the person before the deal
as part of our credit appraisal process.
Risk-weighted capital
adequacy ratio of

10

We are the largest lender in
our market niche with a

R3.61
billion
loan book

Total arrears

23%

1.22%

Capital impaired

10.97%
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A national footprint across South Africa with
five branches operating in

131

The rejuvenation of a city does not need grand plans
and large sums of money thrown at it. What it does
need is small, incremental changes from the ground
up.
Sustainable growth
Track record of

17 years
of growth

Mortgages secure all the
properties TUHF finances.
These properties become
substantially more valuable
after refurbishment and/or
conversion.

=
8655
2 729 + 5 926
13%
jobs
created

permanent jobs

suburbs

Solid asset base

Our loan book has
grown at an average of

short-term jobs

created since 2015 mostly during construction of funded projects

year on year over the last 5 years
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The future
is still urban
Embracing inner-city revitalisation
for a new world

“Urbanisation will only increase in the years to come
and we will continue to grow to accommodate
this ongoing demand.”

Urbanisation is one of the most important drivers of both social and
economic life. Most of the world’s economic innovation occurs within cities and large metropolitan areas, and these are the places that
prosper the most. Cities are like the Internet: they connect people.

However, cities and urban populations have started undergoing a radical shift – from the dream of ownership to
that of interdependence and sharing. Out of economic
necessity, citizens either choose to or are forced to share
living spaces, occupy micro-apartments, and invest in
bike and car shares. Furthermore, shared working spaces
are giving rise to inclusive cities with inclusionary housing
and crammed multimodal public transport hubs.

Katherine Cox, Research, Development and Innovation
Manager, says: “Research indicates that 80% of the
world’s wealth is created in cities. People in cities thrive
on the opportunities for work and play, and the endless
variety of available goods and services.”
Cities are where people find opportunities, especially
women in the developing world. They are also the perfect testbeds for new innovations. Currently, there is
massive urbanisation occurring not only in South Africa,
but across the continent. This can be attributed to the
significant economic opportunities to be had.
PROXIMITY IS CRITICAL
“Sharing spaces has become integral to this urbanisation. People are now reliant on affordable transport even
if that means walking or cycling to where they need to
go. This makes proximity critically important. People are
therefore attracted to the idea of being able to live near
and access retail, commercial areas, education, social
amenities and their work within walking distance. To this
end, inner-city living is becoming a key building block for
the future of urbanisation,” she says.

12

Katherine Cox, Research, Development
and Innovation Manager, TUHF
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Advanced cities such as Amsterdam in the Netherlands,
Bristol in England, and Melbourne in Australia, are already developing plans that prioritise circular economics
and climate resilience. Cities have prolific benefits other
than basic needs, housing, and jobs. These include universities, cafés, art galleries, restaurants, and cultural facilities. Yet, they also have traffic, overcrowding, crime,
pollution, and disease.
“Cities, particularly in the developing world, are already
facing rapid urbanisation. More than half the world lives
in cities. By 2050, this will be two-thirds with 380 million
new urban dwellers expected to have arrived in African
cities. After all, it is in cities that we experience the power
of proximity and economic opportunities,” she adds.
PANDEMIC CHANGES
Under the growing urban agenda, it has become clear
that building sprawling, car-centric cities no longer
works. Prior to COVID-19, cities were focusing on sustainable development, increasing density, resilience, and
smart urbanism while remaining cognisant of the rapid
urbanisation and massive housing and infrastructure
backlogs also taking place.

“Some are arguing that the COVID-19 pandemic may appear to be one of anti-urbanism, with dense urban areas
being the hardest hit in terms of infection and mortality
statistics. Yet, cities have always faced severe challenges. For example, terrorism, and xenophobic and religious
fundamentalist attacks repeatedly buffer urban areas.
Cities have been the epicentres of infectious disease
since the time of Gilgamesh and they have always recovered and will continue to grow,” says Cox.
A NEW ORDER
Having said that, some aspects of cities will need to
change; fear of density may push some to rural areas
while others will see the reverse happen. Ambitious
young people will continue to come to cities in search
of personal and professional opportunities. The creative
class may be drawn by lower rents, thanks to the economic fallout from the virus.
Buildings and public spaces may be retrofitted for social
distancing. There will also be longer-term trends affecting cities such as digitalisation of retail and work, leading
to a repurposing of office spaces and malls. Most cities

are seeing a shift to micro-mobility schemes including
walking and bikes with increasing numbers of streets
being pedestrianised and the number of dedicated bikelanes increasing.
“If anything, the pandemic has highlighted the importance of being able to access more green spaces in cities.
There is an increasing demand for such public open spaces that are well-managed, cleaned, and more reflective
of a post-pandemic world. This will see the green city
approach become essential as the high cost of services
such as electricity and water are driving people to become more self-sustaining and ultimately moving off the
grid,” adds Cox.
Such post-pandemic developments, therefore, create
opportunity to promote smart density in the affordable
housing space through TUHF, Intuthuko, and uMaStandi,
as well as green investment through Luhlaza. Cities are
resilient because their inhabitants are resilient.
“At TUHF, we believe in a ‘Massive-Small’ approach.
This is implementing and financing small scale entrepreneurs in a way that is scalable and replicable to have
a bigger, more inclusive, and sustainable impact than
mega-projects, for example. We believe in how people
from the street are becoming entrepreneurs and scaling
up in previously unimaginable ways. The future of the
urban environment will centre on these projects as
people start looking at more innovative ways of living,”
concludes Cox.
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PROJECT S TORY

PROJECT S TORY

Realising the potential
of embattled Cape York
The Cape York building in Johannesburg’s CBD has risen from the ashes
to fulfil its potential.
Previously owned by the Bank of
Mozambique and abandoned, Cape
York had been hijacked and fraudulently sold, with several “owners”
allowing it to become severely overcrowded and collecting rent illegally.
It was infamous as a hub for drug
trafficking and prostitution, lacked
running water, power and sanitation
and had seen two fires that claimed
lives.
FROM HIJACKED TO HOPE
Hijacked buildings like this have
become all too common in South
Africa’s inner cities. These highrises have not only become dangerous to live in but pose a threat to
neighbouring buildings, impacting
social safety as a whole.
Cape York, situated in Doornfontein
on the corner of Nugget and Rahima Moosa Street, epitomised the

investors for R9.2 million – a
discovery the appointed attorneys
made during the transfer process.
Once this was legally rectified,
Samuel Beyin saw potential in the
embattled building and bought out
the shareholding of the Cape York
owned entity.
Despite calls to simply demolish the
now-derelict building after a second
fire claimed two lives in 2017,
Samuel was determined to realise
the building’s potential and transform it into a viable and safe rental
property. He renamed the building
Focus 1 and contributed an additional
R39 million towards construction
before approaching TUHF for a loan.
NEW NAME, NEW PURPOSE
“Focus 1 represents the very essence
of what TUHF aims to achieve by
investing in inner-city property

“Focus 1 represents the essence of what
TUHF aims to achieve – seeing the potential
in run-down buildings and declining areas
to transform them into safe, secure
environments for people to live and thrive.”
negative impact of hijacked buildings
on neighbourhoods and society.
Originally a 10-storey office building
with retail shops on the ground floor,
employees who worked in the building started living there in 1997. As
the building became more neglected,
more people moved in, leading to
severe overcrowding.
To compound this issue, the building
was fraudulently sold to a group of
14
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refurbishments – seeing and realising
the potential in run-down buildings
and declining areas to transform
them into safe, secure environments
for people to live and thrive,” says
Nano Makwela, Portfolio Manager at
TUHF.
TUHF provided a R40 million loan to
complete Cape York’s transformation to Focus 1.

BRINGING VISION TO LIFE
The Focus 1 project took a property
entrepreneur with courage and
conviction to realise its potential.
TUHF was thrilled to work with
Samuel’s passion and drive to help
bring his vision to life.
The project presented many
challenges, but Samuel and TUHF
focused on the opportunities to
collaborate and resolve these
creatively.
The expected completion date was
June 2020, but because the finished
building would provide student
accommodation, Samuel and his
team pushed through over the
festive season to achieve practical
completion in January.
The surrounding universities were
then invited to view the building and
they immediately started referring
students to take up tenancy.
A BRIGHT URBAN FUTURE
Cape York’s past was brutal and
terrifying. It once stood as a symbol
of the city’s growing urban decay.
Now, Focus 1 makes manifest TUHF’s
belief that by the action of extraordinary entrepreneurs the future is
indeed urban. This project demonstrates TUHF’s unrivalled ability to
catalyse growth and urban regeneration not only through funding,
but more importantly, through our
ability to innovate.
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PROJECT S TORY

R85.2 million

Impact on urban
regeneration &
socio-economic
development
•

•

•
•

Improved safety for residents
of the building and the small
business community surrounding the building
Small business communities
in the area supply students
with daily supplies and groceries, benefitting from the
economic multiplier effect of
new tenants
Other clients and developers
now interested to invest in
adjacent properties
Opportunity to partner and
create a safe, clean, walkable
neighbourhood surrounding
the refurbished buildings

PROJECT S TORY

total
investment

Escalation in property value
Current market value is estimated to equal at least total investment on
the project i.e. R82.5 million off a below zero base

Current CoJ Rates

R68 101
per month

Current utilities

R200 000
per month

190
jobs created
during construction

538

50

direct & indirect jobs
created in surrounding
retail space

22

full time building managers
& shuttle staff

student beds, fully
subscribed

16
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INTERVIEW WITH SAMSON MORA BA, CHAIRMAN OF T UHF

View from
the Board’s
Chair
Q

Please provide us with your view on TUHF’s
performance over the financial reporting year
(2019/20)?

A: I must say that this has been a unique year in the history of TUHF – as I am confident it has likewise been for
many businesses across sectors.
As the Board, we have taken a view on TUHF’s performance from two strategic lines; financially and operationally.
Though financial performance over 2019/20 has not
been as great as hoped for, in that we were not able to
generate the revenues desired, this has largely been influenced by several external factors. Not least of all was
the prevailing subdued economic performance in the
country – with the technical recession recorded in 2019
and subsequent downgradings by international ratings
agencies. These conditions continue to place strain on
many sectors that make up the economy. We are not
shielded from the impact of the strained economy and
doing business has not been ‘normal’.
These effects in many respects have been worsened by
the COVID-19 pandemic, which has created a ‘double
whammy’ experience for the country’s economy, and the
effects have trickled down through every tier of society
– impacting Government spending, operating environments for business and every household in the country.
No one has been unscathed by the economic and social
impacts of the pandemic.
However, even in the changing context of these unprece18
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dented times, TUHF as a business has shown remarkable
resilience – and this can largely be attributed to the responsiveness of our management team, who have been
the driving force behind our operational performance.
In late 2018, the Board adopted a growth strategy that
would position TUHF on a different scale in terms of its
impact and growth. Over the past year, the management
team have been unwavering in their commitment to seeing the implementation of this strategy through, while
remaining nimble and adaptive to what has been a wave
of changing and challenging market circumstances.
At the foundation of this growth strategy is the impetus to build a robust platform that lays the pathway for
our future growth, as a great enabler for us to achieve
our almost 5-year horizon objectives of becoming a R10
billion organisation. Qualifying our end objective was a
significant departure and this empowered us to identify
the building blocks that would support this strategy and
growth. We distilled these into three core pillars, namely our finance architecture, business architecture, and
technology architecture.

Samson Maroba talks to SAFM about home ownership and affordability

to less than R300 million) by just using the principles
of the funding architecture. This has been a significant
breakthrough. Additionally, and notwithstanding the
challenges faced in the market, another key success was
that our disbursements for FY19/20 were still 95% of our
target.
We have also made solid progress to realise our business and technology architecture pillars too, and we are
confident that we have the right people in place to take
leadership in this regard and develop these pillars from
strength-to-strength towards our business end objective.
Q

If we look at the current state of markets and
the economy amidst the COVID-19 pandemic,
how has this impacted TUHF?

Therefore, from a business performance point of view,
and as much as it is early days, I am pleased to report
that we have made significant progress in harnessing the
priority and attention of the management team towards
realising the objectives of these three core pillars.

A: At a macro level, I am mindful that there is a significant price to be paid, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and
the measures to combat it, in all respects. And, while the
pandemic and impacts could not have been foreseen, it
is also still too soon to speculate on what the full extent
of the ‘real price’ will be for the country. We are still in
the midst of the pandemic and have a long road to recovery ahead. Certainly, a pandemic like this has affected
all tiers of society, broadly, and as mentioned before, no
one has been unscathed from the economic and social
impacts of the pandemic.

Part of our success is demonstrated through what we’ve
been able to accomplish, to date, through the finance
architecture, in particular. For example, we have closed
out the funding mismatch gap (from over R800 million

This includes TUHF and, though the impacts to our business are broad – like with most businesses operating in
this changing context – two areas presented noteworthy
short-term challenges, namely the duality of managing

collections with our clients and liquidity. I am pleased to
say that through the ingenuity of our management teams
and steadfast support of our shareholders, collaborative
solutions were sought and implemented to minimise any
adverse medium-term effects of these challenges.
Looking back to the earlier phases of the lockdown, for
example, the containment measures that were enforced
to try to flatten the curve at Alert Levels 5 and 4, particularly, all but shut down the informal sectors. Inner-city

“TUHF as a business
has shown remarkable
resilience – and this can
largely be attributed to
the responsiveness of our
management team...”
economies and environments are quite reliant on these
and, in many respects, this had a knock-on impact on our
clients’ tenants.
At this early stage, we did our first forecast on collections. Before the impact of the pandemic, we were
achieving 95% on collections, sustainably, including for
April 2020.

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Q

How do you believe our experience during the
pandemic will influence the adoption of green
and sustainable building approaches?

A: There is certainly a lot of market debate – from
science fraternities to professional services firms and
environmentalists – on the many benefits that green
and sustainable building principles promote. And we
are tuned into these debates at both an international and
local level through our engagements with international
and multilateral funding agencies – particularly European
agencies whose home markets are very strong in this
space.
We are also a member of the Green Building Council of
South Africa (GBCSA), which gives us direct exposure to
the latest developments in green and sustainable building principles for our market.

Samson Maroba speaks at
the AUHF Conference

In our forecast, we set ourselves a target to achieve, or
not drop below, 50% of collections. Our approach was
to work with every client, individually, on a customised
strategy to ensure clients pay us proportionately to their
collections. We achieved 50% on collections for May
2020 and for June collections recovered to 70%. We are
pleased with this performance and acknowledge that
this could not have been possible without the unwavering commitment of our clients and portfolio managers.
Over this same timeframe, equity markets largely remained closed, with a six-month deferred period to
assess the situation. While our funders have remained
positive and supportive of TUHF, the six-month deferred
period affected our ability to raise capital, which also
meant some short-term liquidity challenges. However,
through engaging with our shareholders, our management team were able to take corrective actions and the
business is in a much better place now.
In hindsight, though we are living through unprecedented events and market fluctuations for our time, in every
disaster there is also some light – and lessons that can
be learnt. These short-term challenges led us to respond
differently and look at other approaches, which may not
have been considered if not necessitated by the changing
context. The need to rapidly adapt to the changing context brought about real change; and it’s the way we have
adapted – thoughtfully and strategically – that makes
these changes sustainable in the business going forward
into the ‘new normal’.

20
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From the pandemic experience, two focus tracks are
particularly prevalent at the moment. Firstly, buildings
generally (whether an office or apartment building, for
example) have a significant role to play in combatting
COVID-19. This is because buildings are by virtue where
people come together, which means buildings can be
used as part of the prevention and containment measures to combat the spread of the virus.
Within this context, the conditions of buildings become
the second key focus track. This is also where the issue of
green or sustainable buildings becomes very prevalent, as
these buildings offer significant advantages in providing
the basic functions required to control and prevent the

“It’s the way we have
adapted – thoughtfully
and strategically – that
makes these changes
sustainable...”
spread of the virus. At a core level, this includes things
like the building design that promotes natural light and
ventilation, quality building materials and indoor spatial planning for physical-social distancing. Collectively
green building principles also promote ‘healthier’ buildings, which can support and promote improved health of
occupants or “end-users”.
The adoption of green and sustainable building principles
also speaks to how the property market can play a role
in supporting the containment and prevention of further
spread of the virus – and thereby contribute to protecting
the communities that it serves.

Talking housing affordability on SAFM

This will continue to be an important milestone in the
market. At TUHF we remain passionate about our Massive-Small Vision. At its core, it encompasses how we
intend to have a sustainable massive impact through
many small projects. And as an extension of this, we have
launched the TUHF Luhlaza Initiative.
This initiative formalises our approach to investing in
green-lead inner-city projects. We are establishing the
Luhlaza Fund, which aims to connect investors who want
to invest into a green product with property entrepreneurs who want to create green assets. These assets will
not only contribute to their portfolios but also positively
impact the environment and society.
Q

In closing?

A: One of the key highlights over the last 18-months has
been the responsiveness of the management teams to
the challenges TUHF has faced. In any crisis, first we respond and then we recover. This has become even more
relevant during the pandemic, which really started to unfold in the local market in March 2020.

I’d also like to reflect on the support of our shareholders.
Having robust shareholders that continue to back our
efforts in such difficult times (including Future Growth,
NHFC, PIC) has been key to our business continuity.
Lastly, and from a governance point of view, we
welcomed a new appointee on the board from the PIC,
Belinda Mapingwana, and the board compliment gives
us the capacity that we need to be able to discharge our
responsibilities.
This pandemic has taught us that nothing is absolute.
However, as we learn, we get better. And we believe
we’ve got the fundamentals in place to ensure that, in
time, we will be able to thrive. But first we must recover,
which is what the next year (2020/21) will be about.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow
board members, for their strategic oversight, diligence,
and leadership in the recent challenging times TUHF has
and will continue to face.

As the board, we have been incredibly impressed with the
continuous responsiveness to the immediate challenges. It speaks volumes to the capacity for perseverance
shared by our management teams. They have remained
dedicated and focused on realising the three pillars to
building our robust platform – which positions us well for
a strong recovery, regardless of what the now and future
“new normal” looks like.
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Our CEO
reflects
Paul Jackson and Prof. Francois
Viruly at TUHF’s Inner City
Property Conference

Q

A: Operationally we’ve performed very pleasingly over
the last year. But this is by no lucky accident.
In 2018 we identified that, in our niche market, we have
an opportunity that is at least double – but potentially
triple – the size of our current loan book. We also recognised that to be able to maximise on this opportunity,
we needed to work on two things:
• removing the constraints to TUHF’s growth, and
• improving our operational efficiency and
business processes, but in a way that doesn’t
detract from our streetwise, entrepreneurial
DNA, or the niche market we operate in.
Since then, we have been working diligently to
address these two aims towards our ultimate strategic
imperative of building a robust platform for growth.
Over the last year, we set our sights and focus on improving three strategic pillars that underpin the architecture
of our business, and the agility of our robust platform.
These included:
Expanding our finance architecture, which now enables us to secure more funding, and therein finance
more projects, which will grow our loan book.
• Transforming our business architecture – where the
business has been restructured to maximise business efficiencies, and
• Enhancing our IT architecture and infrastruc-

•
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ture to support our transformation to a data and
systems-driven business – where, for example, we
have made solid progress in terms of our financing
application processes and the way we are using data
across the board.

Looking back on TUHF’s financial year
(to 31 March 2020), how did TUHF perform
against its strategic pillars?
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I am pleased to confirm that we have made enormous
progress in respect of enhancing each of the strategic architectural pillars.
Q

What opportunities do you feel were
aptly leveraged, and what value did these
opportunities create?

A: The past year has been more about consolidation
with some leveraging of opportunities. The economic
downturn and the advent of the pandemic gave us time
to manage our existing portfolio and finish the overdue
housekeeping.
All the aspects that we have been working on have taken
time – to ensure that each component is integrated and
interoperable, because of the inter-dependencies within
the business. And they have already begun reaping
rewards.
As an example, in the past, TUHF’s major constraint to
growth has been its ability to borrow enough money
to serve the enormous inner-city demand - north of R1
trillion. But our ability to manage the risks of lending in
inner-city areas, get our money back with interest and
manage a loan book of above market quality has been
bolstered with what we have achieved in getting our
financial architecture right – which has supported our

Paul Jackson with Savan Govender, Operations Executive; Lusanda Netshitenzhe, DIU Executive
and Herman Mashaba, then mayor of Johannesburg

ability to secure further funding and has been critical to
servicing our future growth. We expect to grow by about
R1 billion in lending, per annum.
Q

2020 has been a year of unprecedented shifts
across markets – not least of all due to the
impacts of the novel COVID-19 pandemic.
What impacts and shifts have you noticed in
the inner-city property market? How has this
influenced the business’ focus in response to
the impacts of COVID-19?

A: There is no denying that the property sector, with
some exceptions, like many sectors and the country’s
economy overall, was faced with some very real and
prevailing challenges that have been worsened by the
Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and lockdown containment measures.
I believe the headline for the opinion article by Peter
Bruce published in Business Day in May 2020 captured
it well: “We are broke, and now sick, but at least we are
well-led”.
Many businesses, including TUHF, were feeling the effects of the economic slowdown and technical recession
in 2019. Added to this, the average South African was
already under a lot of pressure from an income/affordability and livelihood point of view, which is a reflection
of the country’s economic situation.
While it is too early to speculate on what the full impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic will be, we can say that, firstly,

inner-city property, like all other sectors, has been significantly affected by these events. And secondly, where
we go from here will be events driven rather than time
driven. Nevertheless, our numbers have and continue
to support our market investment case and our market
position.
In context, the initial phase of the hard lockdown to a
large extent brought the inner-city economies to a grinding halt. These microeconomies are very dependent on
retail and service sectors, including passenger transport,
tourism, and restaurants, which were not allowed to operate. And, as the country moves into the lower lockdown
Alert Levels, we are already seeing an uptick in activity.

“Our focus with our
clients, and in turn our
clients’ focus with their
tenants, has been a
very strong message of
‘let’s get through this
together’.”
However, this progress, at least in the short-term, will
be influenced by future events around the pandemic.
A spike or second wave of new infections, or a medical treatment or vaccine discovery event, and what
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existing clients and continuing to manage our loan
book well.
Although we have not given blanket dispensations, we
have negotiated moratoriums or interest-only payments
on a per client basis. Our focus with our clients, and in
turn our clients’ focus with their tenants, has been a very
strong message of “let’s get through this together”.
Now that we have seen sustained uptick in collections,
we expect to continue seeing sustainable signs of recovery in the market to around mid-2021.
Q

Why is trust such an important theme
for TUHF in 2020?

A: Since inception, one of the founding principles under
pinning TUHF has been that of being a reliable partner.

Paul Jackson presenting at the African Union for Housing
Finance Annual Conference

subsequent decision-making such events may predicate,
is difficult to predict.
What has been interesting to note is that, throughout
these unprecedented times, there has been no significant
drop in demand to live downtown, or in the inner-city.
This is a testament to the deep demand and market
resilience we have always known is prevalent in the
inner-city.

For us, this has always meant that when we enter into
a funding agreement with an investor, that investor can
rely on us to meet our obligations according to the agreement and to partner with them through difficult times.
Our loan book continues to perform well because we run
a tight ship, with well-structured policies, and we abide
by the highest standards of credit authorisation and
governance.
Additionally, to our clients, we are a reliable partner in
that they know we back them and will continue to support them in their endeavours and reaching their goals.

“Because there is a huge diversity in the tenant base
across a range of economic sectors... the inner-city is
largely out-performing other property markets,
perhaps with the exception of industrial property.”

Within the inner-city environment, because there is a
huge diversity in the tenant base across a range of economic sectors – including civil service, mining, manufacturing, transport, the service sector, and education
– the inner-city is largely out-performing other property
markets, like retail and commercial, perhaps with the exception of industrial property. For example, even during
the lockdown period, we have seen similar performance
across some of the top players in the market.

Reflecting on the last 18-months, it is clear to me that
this founding principle is as steadfast as ever. It is displayed daily through the ongoing professionalism of our
employees. And, through our solid relationships, founded
in trust with investors and clients alike, and our people’s
enduring support and commitment, we will be able to
navigate through these times together.

People are certainly feeling significant difficulties and
some tenants have faced temporary challenges to their
livelihoods. Waves of salary cut interventions and retrenchments across markets have had an impact. But at
every instance, our clients have been engaging with their
tenants to come to agreements based on affordability.
At TUHF, at the onset of the effects of the pandemic locally, we shifted our focus to two immediate priorities:
• gearing up and implementing a remote/work-fromhome strategy to ensure we could continue to run
our business optimally, and linked to this
• remaining focused on navigating these unprecedented times by working closely with every one of our
24

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

Paul Jackson and Herman Mashaba at the Inner City Property Conference

Paul Jackson regularly goes potential-spotting
in Johannesburg CBD
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Group
structure
TUHF21 NPC
Group holding company exploring alternative
developmental projects such as township backyard
rental finance

TUHF21 NPC

PROPERTIES (PTY) LTD

Finances sustainable
and legal township-based rental
housing businesses

TUHF Properties (Pty) Ltd
purchases properties that
become available for onselling to entrepreneurs
under deferred sale agreements

HOLDINGS LIMITED

Provides equity finance to
previously disadvantaged
individuals for first-time
property investment

Shareholding
information
for TUHF
Holdings:

3.35%
2.51%

14.32%

An Equity holding company

32.85%

14.32%
MBS (PTY) LTD

A security Special
Purpose Vehicle
(SPV)

EQUITY (PTY) LTD

Offers equity funding to
existing property investors
with competence, but lacking
capital

URBAN FINANCE (RF) LIMITED

TUHF Urban Finance RF Limited is a securitisation of mortgage
loans originated by TUHF Limited. The issuer is an insolvency
remote entity operating in accordance with the requirements and is
administered by TUHF Limited. It has no employees of its own and
is owned by TUHF Urban Finance Owner Trust.
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BRIDGE (PTY) LTD

Provides short-term
bridging finance enabling senior debt finance from TUHF
Limited

Vuselela

LIMITED

Finances entrepreneurs
to purchase, convert or refurbish buildings in inner cities.
TUHF Limited is our main
operating company

VUSELELA
WAREHOUSE SPV
(RF) PTY LTD

A standalone bankruptcy remote entity established for the
purposes of warehousing of residential and commercial property
loans originated by TUHF. The assets funded by the warehouse
facility will then exit into future securitisation programmes.

TUHF21 NPC
NHFC
Future growth Asset Management
(Pty) Ltd on behalf of Old Mutual
Life Assurance Company (South
Africa) Limited

32.64%

Public Investment Corporation acting on behalf
of the Government Employees Pension Fund
TUHF Conditional Share Plan (CSP)
and treasury shares
TUHF Limited Treasury Shares
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17 years
of growth

2011
•
•

Our loan book

2015

Eastern Cape offices
opened
TUHF receives the
Business Award in the
Investing in the Future
and Drivers of Change
Awards

•
•

TUHF Pty Limited converts to a public company, TUHF Limited
Western Cape and Free
State offices opened

2018
Successfully lists oversubscribed securitisation on Johannesburg Stock Exchange
welcoming two new funders

R4 000 000 000
R3 500 000 000
R3 000 000 000
R2 500 000 000
R2 000 000 000
R1 500 000 000
R1 000 000 000
R500 000 000

2003

2004

2005

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

2020

2003

2009

2013

2017

2020

Founded in Braamfontein,
Johannesburg

•

TUHF is awarded Mortgage
Bank of the Year by the African Banker Awards

TUHF successfully lists a Domestic Medium Term Note
on the Johannesburg Stock
Exchange

TUHF successfully refinances
its domestic medium-term
note for a longer period and
at a cheaper cost of funds

•
28

2006
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TUHF Non-Profit
Company converted to
private company, TUHF
Pty Limited
KwaZulu-Natal offices
opened
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Our national
footprint

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

As the largest lender in our inner city market niche, we have a
significant commercial and developmental impact through our five
branches in all eight South African metros: Johannesburg, Tshwane,
Ekurhuleni, Mangaung, eThekwini, Buffalo City, Nelson Mandela
Bay and Cape Town.

Gauteng
Johannesburg
Since 2003
54 employees
16 675 units in servicing
R2 619 441 309 728.5
loan book

Pretoria
Since 2018
2 Employees
198 units in servicing
R68 311 733.46 loan book

City of Tshwane
Pretoria

City of Johannesburg

East Rand

250 entrepreneurs assisted

Free State
Since 2015
5 employees
434 units in servicing
R66 872 132 loan book
9 entrepreneurs assisted

Eastern Cape
Since 2011
4 employees
495 units in servicing
R205 285 274.57 loan book
40 entrepreneurs assisted

Ekurhuleni Metropolitan
Municipality

Western Cape
Since 2011
4 employees
741 units in servicing
R289 298 047.63 loan book
23 entrepreneurs assisted

Mangaung Municipality
Bloemfontein

City of eThekwini
Durban

KwaZulu-Natal
Since 2009
6 employees
2 269 units in servicing
R514 384 370.04 loan book
33 entrepreneurs assisted

City of
Cape Town

Nelson Mandela
Metropolitan Municipality
Port Elizabeth

30
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Strategy
overview

Strategy map 2019/2020
Our Competitive Advantage
Culture
Straightforward
Simple, nimble,
can-do attitude and
down-to-earth

Vision
Impact through scale

Approachable
Authentic, good
listeners and personable

Purpose

To enable access to
finance, grow entrepreneurs and develop the
economy by stimulating
property markets in
areas that require
regeneration.

Discerning:
Recognising potential, pragmatic
solutions
Street smart: commercial nous, market
savvy
High performance:
Get it done, great
lender and better
partner

Position

Strategic Review objectives
What we set out to do..
1
•
•

The Macro environment
Urban regeneration – the ecosystem
Financing property entrepreneurs
(current & alternative models)
Competition (Traditional &
Non-traditional)

•
•

2
•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Assessing the investor value
proposition
Impact investing
Sources of funding
Urban regeneration imperatives
Risk perceptions and mitigation

3
•
•

Understanding what is driving
change in our environment

Identifying HOW we should
operate
Leadership mindset
Operating model options
•
Specifically, Treasury and its
supporting functions
Enabling systems
Partnering arrangements
Culture

Outcomes
•

Detailed the broader ecosystem and various role-players in the
market and urban development trends and potential implications and opportunities for TUHF

•

Opportunities to drive impact through scale, impact through
innovation and impact through collaboration

•

•

•

•

•

Need to expand our funding toolkit , increase diversification and
link investor value propositions to customer value propositions
To create a sustainable level of Growth, TUHF will need to fundamentally review core business operating procedures, policies
and processes, e.g. Funding toolkit, IT structure, Organogram,
etc.
Confirmed that TUHF will pursue an accelerated (version 2.5)
growth strategy, once the foundation is stable
Identified opportunities, strategic imperatives and critical
enablers required to deliver TUHF growth aspiration
Developed and sequenced the strategic initiatives in an implementation roadmap that defines foundational and critical
interventions required to achieve sustainable growth

The success of the strategic review process lies in HOW we execute
32
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Our Top 6 Long Term Indicators

Leader in providing
specialised financial
services and solutions
to our clients based on
in-depth market knowledge, our appetite for
risk and our street level
approachability.

A culture for growth,
which results in:
•
•
•
•

Distinctive contribution
Engaged employees
Loyal customers
Sustained performance

Influencers
Return on Equity

•
•
•
•
•

Growth in after tax profit
(PAT)

• Dept capital raised
• Branch profitability
• Regional disbursements

Total Capital Impaired

Arrears management

NPS/CES

• Clear and timeous communication
• Improved turnaround times
• Red-tape to be simpler
• Improved public profile

Development Impact

Intuthuko and uMaStandi disbursements

Transformation of senior
management

Employment Equity Plan

Net interest margin
Net book growth
Prepayments
Operational costs
Loan impairments

Strategic Imperatives

Scale funding to
support growth

Sustainable growth

Key Focus Area

Key Outcomes

•
•
•

Create sustainable level of funding
Restructure balance sheet
Shareholding

•
•
•

Sustainable level of funding
Strong TUHF brand
Right-size capital structure: shareholding

•
•
•

Business performance management
Growth culture
Sustainable growth and Risk management
Development finance product

•
•
•
•

Manage risk
Entrench TUHF culture
Support resources
Measure business performance

Refine customer segmentation
Provide targeted products and
services

•

Business architecture to enable customer
value propositions
Differentiate products and services across
segments
Achieve high levels of customer satisfaction

•
•
•

Customer Value
Proposition

Execution with
Disciplined Resilience

Development

•
•

•
•
•
•

Establish PMO
Business process design
Implement business architecture
Optimise execution

•

•

Partner for success

•

•
•
•

•

Ideal business architecture (robust, and flexible operating model)
Standardise and optimise processes
Increase internal efficiencies
Implement changes
Identify partnership and collaboration
opportunities
Realise and prioritise innovation
T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Business
model
Inputs

Activities

Outputs

Outcomes
Vuselela

What we do

Human Capital

•

Our team, including professionals who specialise in unearthing
inner-city potential in areas, buildings and people.

Intellectual Capital
We are street smart and know our
market niche well. Our characterbased lending approach is supported by a robust LCMS. This process
is customised to our market niche
and specialisation supported by
our IT systems.

Social and
Relationship Capital
Our strong and interdependent relationships with role players across
our stakeholder Groups such as
ASISA, HSOB, JPOMA, JICBP,
NASHO and National Treasury’s
Jobs Fund.
34
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•

•
•
•

Finance SMEs for inner
city property investment
Offer experience, knowledge and expertise on
property entrepreneurship
Connect entrepreneurs
to our greater network
of role players
Induct, train and mentor
starter and emerging
entrepreneurs
Offer value-added
services such as events
where industry experts
share industry and
market related trends
and information on
challenges close to inner
city property entrepreneurship

Our Product
Mortgage bond finance for
mixed-use developments of
which the largest component
should be residential.

Property finance
•

•
•
•
•

A single mortgage loan
facility over 15 years for
acquisition and development
Prime-linked interest
rate
Once-off raising fee
No monthly service fees
Financial structuring
such as grace periods
to accommodate the
property development
and tenanting stages

This fund provides the
balance between entrepreneurs’ equity contributions
and the minimum requirement for property finance
from TUHF.
Only available to previously disadvantaged clients for
realising first-time property
investment opportunities.

VUSELELA
WAREHOUSE SPV
(RF) PTY LTD

Vuselela is an important
building block of our
funding architecture. This
brand was created as part
of Standard bank’s R700m
loan facility in 2020.

Clients
• 355 current entrepreneurs financed
• 43 911 housing units
financed since inception

Funders
• Sustained commercial
returns to funders and
investors over 17 years
• R973.9 million in interest and capital repaid

Shareholders
• Consistent growth in
ROI through dividends
• ROE % is 4% on
contributed Capital

Complemented by

The funds available to TUHF,
including debt capital, equity
funding and the reinvestment of
retained income.

Supported by

Financial Capital

EQUITY (PTY) LTD

Using their title deed as
security, township property
owners obtain mortgage
loans to build rental rooms
on their property with
access to proper ablution
facilities.

Equity funding is offered to
existing property investors
with competence, passion and drive but lacking
in funding to take their
property business to the
next level in exchange for
an equity stake in their
business.

Employees
• Opportunity to contribute to a growing business with development
impact
• R52.4 million in remuneration

Government and
Municipalitites
• A growing economically
empowered urban community that contributes
rates, utilities and taxes
and ultimately, places
less strain on government resources
• R36.18 million paid in
taxes (income tax, value
added tax and pay as
you earn tax)

South Africa
• Affordable rental housing and local economic
development contribute
to broader socioeconomic development
• Financed projects in all
eight metros
• 2 729 permanent and
5 926 short-term jobs
created since 2015

Inner City Communities
and Organisations
Affordable housing made available in places close to
opportunities of employment
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As we strive to achieve Impact through Scale, our development
impact is critical to our decision-making.
We consider three impact areas in everything that we
do, namely entrepreneur growth, urban regeneration and
local economic growth. Through investment in the refurbishment of a single abandoned, derelict, or hijacked
building, we affect change for the better in the precincts
surrounding the building.
From here we see regeneration in the neighbourhoods
and communities that live and work there. As people be-

gin to thrive in the areas in which we invest – starting
businesses, purchasing goods and accessing local amenities – the influx of talent and increased diversity stimulates local social and economic development.

HOW?
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WHAT?

ACTIVITIES

OUTCOMES

• TUHF identifies potential areas
for urban regeneration
• TUHF sources financing from
funders
• TUHF identifies potential entrepreneurs

• Access to finance:
Entrepreneurs receive finance
for high risk inner city building
upgrades through TUHF
• Entrepreneurs earn a financial
return
• Entrepreneurs are up-skilled
through participating in the
TPPE

• TUHF provides financing to entrepreneurs to upgrade buildings
• Entrepreneurs previously unable
to access finance receive loans
from TUHF
• Entrepreneurs participate in
TUHF Programme for Property
Entrepreneurship (TPPE)

This is Massive-Small. This is Impact through Scale.

• Entrepreneurs upgrade buildings
• Construction Company is contracted
• Property management solution
is employed

• Provision of affordable housing
• Affordable housing stock is
made available in the inner city
• Increase in occupied rental housing in the inner city
• Individuals access safe, clean,
affordable accommodation in
inner cities
• Individuals pay rent and utilities
• Landlords pay rates and taxes

36

TUHF enables access to finance
for inner city redevelopment projects

URBAN REGENERATION

WHY?
IMPACT

Entrepreneur
growth

• Job creation: Throughout the
upgrade process short and long
term jobs are created/maintained
• Provision of affordable
housing and “bridging the
gap”: Affordable housing stock
is made available in the inner
city for individuals/families to
access, who may not qualify for
a home loan or RDP housing
• Creation of vibrant, mixed
income communities

Improved
livelihoods

• Green outcomes: Possibility
of improved energy and water
efficiency in TUHF-financed
buildings, and a decrease in the
construction of new buildings
• Increased market activity:
Individuals’ access to amenities
is improved and they are able to
purchase goods and services in
inner cities
• Commercial entrepreneurs start
trading in un/under-used spaces
created in TUHF financed
buildings, which enables them
to earn financial return from
goods purchased by tenants and
others

Local economic
development

• Increased rates and utilities
contribute to local municipal
budget: This may lead to
improved government services

Local fiscal impact

REGENERATION OF INNER CITIES

Our
development
impact

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

37

Our development impact in numbers
Entrepreneurial Growth

“TPPE is not only about lectures and the project,
it is also about offering an excellent networking
opportunity.”
SUPPORTING ENTREPRENEUR GROWTH
The impact we have on community development starts
with our property entrepreneurs. We are passionate
about helping them to succeed, not only through our
range of financial products but by providing advice, support, mentorship and training.
“TPPE is not only about lectures and the project, it is also
about offering an excellent networking opportunity,”
says Paul Jackson, CEO of TUHF.
The TUHF Programme For Property Entrepreneurship
(TPPE) is aimed at supporting TUHF entrepreneurs
to grow their businesses and to improve both their investment and management decisions. The TPPE affords
TUHF clients the platform to learn and appreciate property as an asset class.
The programme is presented in collaboration with the
University of Cape Town, which has an impeccable track
record of academic excellence. This includes well-respected Professor Francois Viruly as the Course Convenor and Henry Chitsulo of Bold Moves as industry expert
and facilitator. It is this infusion of a variety of minds in
various disciplines that makes TPPE a rich learning experience.
TPPE equips our clients with an in-depth understanding
of the various aspects of owning and managing rental
property, including:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Property Entrepreneurship and Property Investment
Principles of Economics
Drivers of the Real Estate Market
Property Valuation Techniques
Property Law
Property Finance, Feasibility Studies, Interest Rates
and Hedging
• Property Management and Leasing
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• Construction Management
• Green Building
• The Role of Municipalities: Town planning including
corridors of freedom, transport oriented development, utilities, rates and taxes among others
• General Business Management; including Business
and Personal Financial Management, Tax, HR, etc.
On completion and attendance of all the planned course
sessions, delegates are awarded a certificate of completion from the University of Cape Town during a certification dinner hosted by TUHF.
MORE THAN A CERTIFICATE
We are confident in the formal training programme we
provide for our clients, and we take this even further by
ensuring each property entrepreneur has a personal mentor to guide and support them concerning their existing
facilities and future projects. Each mentorship plan is individually tailored to suit their needs.
The mentorship programme provided by Henry Chitsulo
entails on the job training at the time and place that suits
the client. Henry is an experienced commercial property finance expert with over twenty years of investment
banking and financial services experience.
His property sector finance experience includes co-facilitating training programmes offered by the South African
Property Owners Association (SAPOA) and the University of Cape Town.
MASSIVE-SMALL.
With each individual entrepreneur we support and each
building we help to revive, we are confident that each
small intervention has a massive impact for the better.
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Access to Finance

current entrepreneurs
financed

Client racial profile

6%
56%
4%
33%

801

Regeneration & Densification

679

Asian
Black

79%
21%

White

250

Bloemfontein

TPPE Logistics

181

male
female

No. of Clients per Region

9

Johannesburg

Buildings
in Total

Client gender profile

Coloured

Geographic Growth

total loans
since inception

39

Port Elizabeth

33
Durban

23

Cape Town

6 day course
Certification

Total attendees
since inception

Awarded upon completion and
awards ceremony held

Breakdown of jobs created since 2015
Description

Jobs Fund 3

2018-2020

TUHF 21 Jobs Fund 7

Total

TUHF Job
creation
Programme

TUHF Book

Intuthuko Job
Creation
Programme

uMaStandi Job
Creation
Programme

SHORT TERM

5127

400

174

225

5926

PERMANENT

2433

180

101

15

2729
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Cementing our
commitment
to green
building

Sqiniseko Mbatha, Financial Analyst at TUHF

TUHF has long been committed to investing in South Africa’s inner
cities through a green approach.
And now with the TUHF Luhlaza (meaning ‘green’)
Initiative, it has formalised this way of thinking to provide investors and developers alike with a standardised
and measurable blueprint around which to drive a more
energy-efficient way of building and getting value from
their residential projects.
“Without any direction from us, the entrepreneurs we
have funded have examined ways to contribute to sustainability by creating green assets using things such as
heat pumps, solar options, and LED lighting. Our financing has benefited from this with the creation of more resilient building assets. This has become the impetus behind the need to come up with a more formalised green
practice with Luhlaza as the platform,” says Sqiniseko
Mbatha, Financial Analyst at TUHF.
Another driver has been a rampant increase in utility
costs in the country. He says that between 2006 and
2016, electricity prices had gone up by more than 300%.

Braamfontein Gate Apartments, 209 Smit Street,
Wanderers View Estate, Johannesburg
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The TUHF team, from left to right: Sqiniseko Mbatha,
Simnikiwe Ntyantya and Mahlatse Kekana

“This has pushed our clients, and the market in general,
to look at mitigating the risks of these spiralling costs.”
In 2018, TUHF received technical assistance from one of
its funders to come up with a concept of what this green
inner city would look like. It started developing a methodology of what this building strategy would encompass
that would act as best practice for all green initiatives
going forward. In collaboration with several institutions,
TUHF standardised this green build approach and formalised it with the introduction of the Luhlaza Initiative.
“This is our platform that consists of innovative green
best practices for the urban environment. We want to
give our clients a standardised way of measuring the success of their green projects.
“Typically, TUHF has two categories of buildings Category A is for refurbishments and Category B is for
new developments. Luhlaza guides both and has metrics

“Typically, TUHF has two categories of buildings Category A is for refurbishments and Category B
is for new developments. Luhlaza guides both and
has metrics in place to evaluate how the energy
efficiency of buildings delivers shareholder value.”
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A room with a view in Braamfontein Gate

Sqiniseko Mbatha, Financial Analyst at TUHF

Focus 1 displays preliminary compliance with
Luhlaza’s standard

“The market is quickly getting to a point where being
green is no longer opt-in but integral to creating a
quality asset.”
in place to evaluate how the energy efficiency of buildings delivers shareholder value.”
TRANSFORMING THE MARKET
As a member of the Green Building Council of South
Africa (GBCSA), TUHF has introduced the initiative to
the Council. And the feedback provided was invaluable
in establishing a way of working towards greening more
buildings within inner cities.
“It is important to back Luhlaza up with finance and see
how our buildings are resulting in the establishment of
green environments that are feasible over the long-term.
The residential environment has been quite difficult to
get traction for green tools because of the unique energy
make-up of each building.
“Ultimately, our focus is to ensure that the end-user is
the one that benefits the most from green initiatives.
This ties in directly with our vision and mission of Massive-Small that translates to having a massive impact
through many niche projects,” he says.
One of the biggest issues for green residential buildings
has been a lack of buy-in from major funds and a lack of
concession to get greening going. To this end, TUHF will
be looking at the larger development finance space and
identifying partners who are interested in funding green
buildings and seeing the positive impact it will have on
South African society.
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“Ultimately, our focus
is to ensure that the
end-user is the one that
benefits the most from
green initiatives.
This ties in directly with
our vision and mission of
Massive-Small that translates to having a massive
impact through many
niche projects.”

“Now with Luhlaza, TUHF can present proper grade assets that can have a massive social and regeneration impact. Our focus is on transformation and empowering ordinary people with green technology. We want to make
it easy for the person in the street to understand what
this green focus means and how to benefit from it. For
our investors, we want to demonstrate long-term sustainability through consistent monitoring,” he adds.
GOING GREEN ALL THE WAY
Mbatha explains that, “more property developers and
entrepreneurs need to get an appetite for going green.
That being said, with the cost of becoming more energy
efficient decreasing over time and the price of utilities
increasing, being green makes business sense.

are more resilient and hold their value for longer. Furthermore, green environments attract different types of
clients and across diverse sectors that provide more longterm value for the investor and developer.
“The Luhlaza Initiative fits in perfectly with our
Massive-Small approach. If we can change one unit at a
time making it more energy-efficient, we can go a long
way in transforming the country.
“Today, becoming energy-efficient is a mainstream way
of thinking. We want to speak to people and show them
how to use energy wisely and build with that in mind.
In a population-dense inner-city environment, this can
radically transform living conditions for the better,” he
concludes.

“We are people who want to shore up their business with
long-term resilience. And their tenants are the ones looking at comparing rental cost with the money spent on
utilities and want to find a more affordable way of living.
“Today, adding green elements to a building has become
financially feasible. For example, five years ago LED lighting was considered too expensive and now it is virtually
part of standard development practice. The market is
quickly getting to a point where being green is no longer
opt-in but integral to creating a quality asset,” he adds.
While buildings physically might look the same, the
focus is on lengthening their economic life with green
initiatives. Buildings that have these elements in place
T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020
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Empowering inner-city
property entrepreneurs
Pressage Nyoni, Liason Officer

Established in 2004, the Intuthuko Equity Fund (IEF) is a unique innercity property finance initiative supporting previously disadvantaged
individuals who want to enter the property investment market but
face constraints in accessing the finance needed to do so.
“The IEF is the means for us to provide an opportunity
for individuals who want to become active in inner-city
property development but lack the resources. This initiative centres on attracting people with some experience
and knowledge on property management and providing
them with the means to purchase different types of
buildings and convert them to affordable rental housing
units,” says Pressage Nyoni, Liaison Officer at TUHF.
Through the IEF, TUHF helps address the demographics
of ownership of property within South Africa and drive
an entrepreneurial spirit of inner-city rejuvenation.
“One of the things that differentiates the IEF is that
TUHF’s individual portfolio managers provide extensive
guidance to the entrepreneurs the organisation funds.
They train them in the areas where they might lack sufficient knowledge. And if more specialised skills are required, our portfolio managers match those needs with
the relevant external stakeholders.
“We focus on providing hands-on training to ensure
IEF clients get the most value from their property investments,” says Lusanda Netshitenzhe, Development
Impact Executive at TUHF.
ECONOMIC GROWTH
Netshitenzhe notes that, to date, the IEF has assisted
more than 100 entrepreneurs who have developed over
2 000 affordable rental units.
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@Fourteenth in Boksburg CBD

“The uptake as a percentage of the total TUHF customer
base has been good. And, while the initiative is targeting
inner-cities and peripheral surroundings throughout the
country, there has been an especially high prevalence of
entrepreneurs in Johannesburg, Bloemfontein, and Port
Elizabeth,” she says.
This has also seen a significant impact on people. According to Nyoni, the positive effect of the IEF can be felt
across several areas. “From building an entrepreneurial
base to providing tenants access to quality housing and
creating economic nodes around the properties, the initiative has been extremely successful. TUHF has seen an
increase in the affordability of units while also growing
the knowledge of our client base and providing a platform for residents to be more economically active,” says
Nyoni.
TRANSFORMING PROPERTY
With the IEF delivering equity support for the purchase,
refurbishment, and construction of low- to middleincome housing in areas of urban decline, it is fundamentally helping transform the South African property sector.
“True transformation cannot be achieved without funding at concessionary rates. TUHF enables access to
funding for entrepreneurs that have traditionally been
overlooked by banks for any number of reasons. This initiative gives people access to funding below prime rates.
Of course, they must also commit their own money to
ensure the focus remains on effectively managing and
maintaining the property and meeting their obligations,”
says Netshitenzhe.
She states that if the private sector and government are
serious about land reform, they must look at it from a
multi-year point of view. Part of this entails providing
more people with funding at preferential rates to unlock

the opportunities that property investment provides.
MAKING IT PRACTICAL
According to Nyoni, affordability and sustainability are
key elements of the IEF.
“However, local municipalities must start doing more
to protect the investment of emerging property entrepreneurs. Whether this takes the form of better rates,
provisioning of prepaid meters, or even just ensuring law
enforcement is taken care of, it takes a partnership-led
approach to change the inner cities of South Africa,” says
Nyoni.
Some of the eligibility requirements for entrepreneurs
to access IEF funding include having a net asset value
of less than R2.5 million and generating an income from
full-time employment or having regular other income to
support personal living costs. IEF entrepreneurs display
a willingness to take feedback through mentorship and
follow a path of continuous learning, and can demonstrate a tenacious spirit in the ongoing management of
the property over the long-term.
For a project to be eligible for IEF funding it must be located in the inner city or near city areas. The entrepreneur should have already approached the seller or owner,
and the property should be purchased with no liabilities
transferred to the new owner.
“IEF is a vital tool to rejuvenate the inner-city and rapidly transform the property sector in South Africa. We
are committed to creating a sustainable and scalable
initiative that positions the country better for economic
inclusion and enablement,” concludes Nyoni.
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TUHF expands
to Boksburg
Through the Intuthuko Equity Fund, we have extended our footprint
into new areas and enabled Leroy Slava’s entrepreneurial growth.
@Fourteenth, a bright new residential
complex, offers affordable accommodation in the Boksburg CBD.
Originally a mixed-use structure
containing retail facilities on the
ground floor and residential units on
the first and second floors, the building had become run down.
When it was put on the market for
sale, local resident and property entrepreneur, Leroy Slava, recognised
an opportunity and set out not only
to give the building a facelift, but a
new purpose.
Knowing that this was exactly the
kind of inner-city property project
that TUHF has the appetite to invest
in, Leroy approached us for property finance in 2018. However, he did
not have the 20% deposit required
to fully meet the loan agreement.
Khumbulani Chikomo, a Portfolio
Manager at TUHF, advised him to

entrepreneurial spirit. Khumbalani
and Leroy had discussed similar opportunities in the past, and Khumbalani was thrilled when this project
met TUHF’s criteria.
“Leroy knows the Boksburg inner
city, demonstrates impressive property management skills and has a
good track record of providing good
customer service and maintaining
his properties well,” says Khumbulani.
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH
The project is a sustainable livework-play integrator, in that it offers
secure and affordable housing in the
CBD. @Fourteenth is located on the
main road in and out of Boksburg,
close to schools, other amenities and
workplaces. In particular, the Boksburg Municipality is across the road
from the refurbished building and
adjacent to a bus station and taxi

“Leroy knows the Boksburg inner city, has
demonstrated his property management
skills and has a good track record of
providing good customer service.”
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apply for the equity through the Intuthuko Equity Fund to bridge the
gap between the requirements necessary for a loan approval and Leroy’s
own personal contribution.

rank. The building’s conversion from
a derelict Video Town to affordable
residential accommodation provides
for sustainable, optimal use of valuable infrastructure.

AN INTUTHUKO ENTREPRENEUR
An Intuthuko entrepreneur like Leroy displays a willingness to participate in mentorship and a tenacious

DELIVERING VALUE THROUGH
SUCCESSFUL PARTNERSHIPS
As a true Inthuthuko entrepreneur, with the tenacity to follow a
path of continuous learning, Leroy

participated in the TUHF Programme
for Property Entrepreneurs (TPPE) –
one of TUHF’s value added services.
TUHF also introduced Leroy to a
seasoned team of consultants, who
helped him to package and manage
his project.
The Ekurhuleni municipality assisted TUHF by expediting the approvals necessary for the project to go
ahead. The client, his design team
and contractor all played key roles in
the project’s successful completion.
“The experience of working with
TUHF has been great,” says Slava. “I
rent out and manage a few smaller
properties, but this was my first conversion development project and
property of this scale.
“It was a real learning opportunity
for me, and the team from TUHF
went above and beyond, not just in
terms of helping to establish financial feasibility, but also in terms of
advising on risk management.”
The building not only showed promise to be economically sustainable,
but fully meets TUHF’s vision of
achieving ‘impact through scale’.
This was TUHF’s first investment in
Boksburg, and we were proud to support Leroy’s entrepreneurial ingenuity to create a positive impact in the
area.
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R9 522 228

PROJECT S TORY

total
investment

Configuration upon completion

100%
Current
tenanted units

31

residential units
consisting of

1-bed, 2-bed & bachelor studios
Rental value per unit

R3 800 to R5 000
Turnaround time
for full tenanting

Green
building
features

February to
September
2020
Nearby amenities

48

Municipality

Offices

Library

Retail

School x 2

Transport
routes
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Low flow taps

LED lighting

22

direct jobs created through
the construction contract
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uMaStandi: Reinventing
the township rental
market
In 2015, following the success of its inner-city small-scale developer
projects, TUHF examined ways to expand into the outlying township
communities.
With so much potential, this would further reinforce our
mission and vision to create impact through scale and
massive-small initiatives that make a significant difference in the lives of ordinary South Africans.
“At the time, we had been funding inner-city projects for
12 years where we assisted developers who wanted to
provide quality, affordable rental units. It therefore made
sense to target entrepreneurs and landlords who provided
backyard accommodation in the townships. Many
potential clients are asset rich but income poor and need
a way to unlock the dead equity in their existing properties to create a revenue stream. This provided us with
the inspiration for uMaStandi, our township backyard
rental finance solution,” says Lusanda Netshitenzhe,
Development Impact Executive at TUHF.
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Streetview outside Sisana Heights, Soweto

on a three-pronged training programme. Firstly, it was
about teaching people basic money concepts and the
principles of investment. We followed this up with training on what it means to own a home and manage it as an
economic asset and ended this training approach with a
simulated demonstration of what is required to become
a successful landlord, manage tenants, build a portfolio
while ensuring one is able to manage their mortgage obligation and other costs,” says Netshitenzhe.
“Only once the first two components were understood
could the participants become real potential clients of
uMaStandi and be enrolled in the simulation training.
“The simulation is a gamified training programme designed to demonstrate what uMaStandi offers and covers
such things as how to plan the approach of building on a
property, how to get approval from the city to develop,
how to maximise the use of the available space, what
it means to work with contractors and sub-contractors,
and the like,” adds Netshitenzhe.

Fundamentally, uMaStandi uses the property as equity to
fund a rental enterprise where the owner or entrepreneur
gets the peace of mind that the construction will be professionally managed and built according to the required
planning permissions. But before TUHF could drive the
initiative in the townships close to where its offices were,
it had to focus on educating the market on its benefits.

The simulation shows most, if not all the cost implications of the various steps in the process and practically
highlights how potential clients would need to manage
the finances of their property once development was
completed. It is designed to be a very hands-on simulation that lays the groundwork for becoming an uMaStandi
client. And once the approval process is completed,
uMaStandi provides one-on-one mentorship to the client
to help increase the likelihood of success for the project.

FOUNDATION BUILT ON EDUCATION
“We started with community awareness drives such as
mall activations and meetings at community centres in
the townships. The intention was to target every community member. Early on, we realised that we had to focus

PRACTICAL BENEFITS
Many resident landlords need a way to unlock the dead
equity of their property because most have not been able
to access traditional finance solutions. Typically, they
would embark on a long, incremental process of buying

bricks, cement, and other materials but might only be
able to start building several years into the process.
“With uMaStandi, we unlock the potential for income
very quickly. Of course, it comes with the responsibility
that the owners must understand they now have a longterm loan to repay,” says Netshitenzhe.
Those property owners or entrepreneurs who hold title
deeds or want to purchase an identified property can
apply for uMaStandi finance to develop units for rental.
Qualifying criteria include the area (selected townships
in Soweto, East Rand, and parts of Cape Town), a good
credit record, and enough space to build rental accommodation on the subject property. We typically conduct
a feasibility study and, if approved by uMaStandi’s Credit
Committee, will work with the owner to professionally
construct the property in compliance with the approved
municipal designs as well as assist the clients with the
letting and property management process.
uMaStandi is a product that TUHF is exceptionally proud
of.
“It covers the three pillars of our funding initiatives,
namely is the product repeatable so it can be launched
anywhere; is the product scalable and able to grow rap
idly; and is the product sustainable? uMaStandi ticks all
those boxes. The 50 loans TUHF has provided to date
through uMaStandi have resulted in 430 people being
able to access rental property that they would not have
been able to before,” concludes Netshitenzhe.
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Soweto entrepreneur
reaches new heights
Sisana Heights, a multi-unit property development, brings affordable
residential rental space to the heart of Soweto.
Khosi Makolota worked as a travel
agent, but her dream was to develop two stands in Soweto, which she
had owned for some time. Her vision
was to refurbish the stands into a
high-quality residential rental property for middle-income tenants.
“You know how it is when you’re
working for someone, and all the
time you’re thinking ‘You know, I
could be doing this thing?’ It was like
that,” says Khosi.
THE JOURNEY WASN’T EASY
A single mom to two daughters,
aged five and 15, Khosi had resigned
from her job three times to focus on
developing her property, but each
time she ran out of funds and had to
return to full-time employment. Her
dedication to realising her dream
even led her to put her home up for
sale to fund the development.

Then, Khosi met Henry Chitsulo,
owner of Bold Moves and appointed
mentor for uMaStandi clients. uMaStandi, a member of TUHF, specifically funds rental property entrepreneurs in townships.
uMaStandi together with the TUHF
Programme for Property Entrepreneurship (TPPE) helped Khosi to fulfil
her long-term dream in just over six
months.
FUNDING AND MENTORSHIP
“We were so impressed by Khosi’s
determination and commitment to
this project,” says Chitsulo. “So, we
tailor-made a mortgage loan for her,
and provided training and mentorship to help her achieve her goals
quickly.”
With funding from uMaStandi
in place, development at Sisana

“We were so impressed by Khosi’s determination and commitment to this project. So,
we tailor-made a mortgage loan for her…”
In 2015, Khosi made the tough decision to focus exclusively on getting
Sisana Heights completed. She approached several financial institutions to fund her dream, but without
success.
Funding is difficult to come by for
smaller projects like Khosi’s, and traditional investors are often wary of
property developments in Soweto as
the rentals tend to be low compared
to more high-end areas like Sandton.
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The first site contains 14 studio
apartments. Each unit is intended
to house a maximum of two people,
aimed at couples or single parents of
young children.
The open plan studio layout includes
a kitchenette, combined living and
bedroom area, and a bathroom. The
rent ranges between R2 500 and R3
000 per month, depending on the
unit’s total floor space.
Sisana Heights is conveniently located close to a mall, clinic and church.
Situated just off one of Soweto’s
main roads, it also offers easy access
to transport, 24-hours a day.
And, with South Africa’s continuing
challenges around the provision of
electricity, the building incorporates
energy-storing LED bulbs, ensuring
residents will have up to 8-hours of
light should the building be affected
by load shedding.

Heights started in earnest in July
2019. Unfortunately, the contractor
became ill and passed away soon after, which was a blow to Khosi and
her team.
However, they were able to restart
in October 2019. Construction on
the first site has been completed and
units are ready for tenanting. The
demand is promising, as the ground
floor is already fully rented, and tenants are keen to move in.
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R2 247 232
14
14 units
90%

PROJECT S TORY

total
investment

after construction and value created

Number of
tenants housed
Original
configuration:

1

undeveloped
stand

Configuration
upon completion

Current
tenanted units

as a percentage of total

1 month

Turnaround time for full tenanting

51
28
R 2 500 R 3 000
residential
bachelor
studios

Short term
jobs
Green
building
features

Low flow taps

LED lighting

per month

Rental value per unit
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Our
People

OUR PEO PLE

TUHF
offices

Gauteng
Free State
KwaZulu-Natal
Eastern Cape
Western Cape

51

5

7
Gender
breakdown

3

5

23 male
48 female

Race
breakdown

8

14 42

Indian

White

7

African

Coloured

Age
breakdown

54%
< 35 years
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46%
35 years

> 35 years
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Our
people

“We focus on
bringing people
into our team
whose values
align with those
of TUHF.”

TUHF’s
Culture
Tebogo Moseamedi
Treasury Specialist,
Johannesburg

“I am fortunate to be a part
of the TUHF family – a family
that encourages us to share in
the growth story of the business
while we grow and learn on a personal level.”

Sabir Yusuf
Portfolio Manager,
KwaZulu-Natal

“From the CEO to EXCO and
credit committees, who personally visit projects, to my
colleagues who collaborate and
share best practices and market intel, I truly believe in TUHF’s ability to
see opportunity where others don’t.”

Our people’s ability to spot potential, deal with the complexities
of South Africa’s inner cities and make entrepreneurial decisions
differentiates us.

Ripfumelo Chavani
We create a culture that values each individual’s unique
contribution, and we acknowledge that competitive remuneration and rewards for excellence, engagement and
commitment are key components in attracting and retaining the best people for our business. Our people form
a key part of our strategy.
ENTREPRENEURIAL SPIRIT AND CULTURAL FIT
We seek out individuals with an entrepreneurial spirit who embrace our vision of achieving Impact through
Scale, and who believe that every small action they
take can create massive impact. This cultural fit ensures
aligned growth for TUHF and its people.
Each of our offices in five provinces accommodate the
right balance of resources and skills to support our business growth. Within each office, we have identified and
defined the key competencies needed in each position
across the group, and our people understand the professional, personal, service and, where relevant, leadership
competencies they need to bring to their role.
TUHF uses the competencies of each role to guide our
recruitment efforts and to support our people’s development in line with their specific roles. We also focus on
58
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bringing people into our team whose values align with
those of TUHF. This enables us to build, develop and
safeguard our organisational culture as we grow.

programme for those of our people that needed it, and
have built key negotiation skills competencies in our
operations team.

GROWING OUR EFFICIENCIES
We invested significantly in reviewing our organisational
structure in the last year, in line with our broader strategic focus on optimising our impact through scale. Various
working sessions were held with a wide range of our people to develop an organisational structure that is aligned
to our core purpose, increases efficiencies and supports
autonomy, accountability and growth. This structure
will be implemented over the course of 2020.

Line managers work with their teams to identify skills
development investments and TUHF supports individuals’ growth through learning initiatives. Over the
last year we have created a skills inventory of all our
people’s skills and identified their growth opportunities relevant to their specific roles. This will guide very
targeted development initiatives in the coming year.

GROWING OUR TALENT
The right people – with passion and purpose – define
our success. We operate in a constantly changing environment and are conscious of the need to grow our
teams’ skills. We have also found that each province has
a distinctly unique environment, and we aim to build our
talent consistently and in a manner that supports their
specific needs.
TUHF supports both short-term skills development and
longer-term qualifications. We have invested in an ABET

CREATING OPPORTUNITIES
Youth unemployment remains one of South Africa’s
key challenges. We understand how important it is to
create opportunities for young people to gain work experience.
TUHF’s intern programme employs young graduates
for 12 – 24 months, ensuring they gain transferable
workplace skills from which they can develop their careers. This programme provides exposure to key areas
of our operations, and gives interns access to mentorship by experienced TUHF staff, allowing them to provide a significant work contribution.

Marketing Assistant,
Johannesburg

“TUHF’s engaging culture allows for transparent and open
communication. Working with
an approachable team of individuals yields rapid and superior results.”

Janine de Goede

Contract and Conveyancing
Manager, Johannesburg

“I see people who make use
of our services being supported to become the best version
of themselves. It is rewarding to
know that, even if indirectly, I have
played a part. I have the opportunity
to make a positive impact on people’s lives and make a difference.”

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

59

OUR PEO PLE

OUR PEO PLE

A VALUES-BASED ORGANISATION
Our values guide the culture we are building, and were developed by engaging with all our people to define the values and the behaviours that make our people uniquely TUHF. We entrench these values throughout the group and,
because our people helped to refine them, we believe everyone is aligned with our values and our purpose.

Our Values

Grit

Human Connections

The tenacity to keep
going and going and going

Authentic, enduring
relationships

“Our success
depends on the
experience and
diversity of our
employees.”

TUHF’s
Diversity
Keabetswe Nkotswe
Portfolio Manager,
Pretoria

“Our variety of skills and experiences brings out different
viewpoints, which comes in
handy when planning and executing our business strategy. This
gives us a competitive advantage
that leads to greater profits.”

Chané Beckmann

Operations Administrator,
Free State

Enquiring Mind

Ground-breakers

Looking beneath the surface
to see what’s real

A healthy disregard
for limitation

Our Culture
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Straight-forward

Approachable

Discerning

Simple, nimble, can-do
attitude and down to earth

Authentically engaged, good
listeners and personable

Recognising potential and
problems, pragmatic solutions

Street Smart

High performance

Commercial know-how, market
savvy

Get it done, great lender –
better partner
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CREATING VALUE BY MANAGING PERFORMANCE
TUHF’s balanced scorecard links its performance management to key business-level strategic indicators and
objectives. The CEO delegates and oversees these elements as they are implemented by managers. These are
incorporated into plans at a departmental level and performance contracts at an individual level.
Our people and their line managers hold monthly performance discussions. We hold performance reviews every
four months to focus our people and their managers on
performance contracts and, consequently, the business
strategy and plan.
Longer-term performance is now being targeted and
managed by the introduction of key strategic long-term
indicators. Achievement of these indicators is linked to
the employee conditional share plan, which is open to
key strategic staff members. Performance against these
long-term indicators is monitored and managed at a
Board level.
DIVERSITY IS KEY
Our success depends on the experience and diversity of
our employees. TUHF has always understood that diversity creates organisational strength. Our recruitment
policy focuses on appointing the best candidate for the
position, according to diversity and equity targets.
FOCUS FOR THE YEAR AHEAD
TUHF hones simple systems and nimble decision making
that aren’t constricted by bureaucracy – our employees
enjoy reasonable autonomy. To this end, we have reviewed formal delegations of authority and are finalising
them to give employees as much decision making independence as good governance allows.

“Working with a diverse team
gave me a broader view of how
every individual is important.
Diversity makes sure that a team
has the skills and knowledge necessary for success.”

Kate Keeling

Junior Portfolio Manager,
Johannesburg

“With diverse backgrounds
and qualifications, we are able
to pull together and make the
most informed decisions and
serve our clients’ needs best.”

Sanet Badenhorst

Operations Administrator,
Western Cape

“It’s in the diversity of people and their views where we
tend to find solutions we could
not have come up with ourselves
as individuals. Teamwork makes the
dream work!”
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Challenges and
opportunities
Opportunities and our response
1
•

We have good portfolio management systems in place, and each loan is analysed and property fundamentals tested annually. This process will be more detailed going forward, thereby incorporating some of the stressed assumptions, especially on valuations where rentals, expense ratios and cap rates will be tested at various levels.
TUHF’s strength has always been its people, their understanding of the inner city and their entrepreneurial spirit
coupled with a sense of creativity.
Finally, TUHF has a deep understanding of the markets it operates in and relies on local knowledge and market
know-how of its professionals. This has always set TUHF apart from other players in the inner city.
We expect proximity to workplaces and transport systems to become even more important to potential tenants as
incomes remain under pressure. In addition, the forecasted reduction in demand for office space is likely to present
good refurbishment opportunities to either student accommodation or affordable flats.

•
•
•

Challenges for the year ahead
1

2

COVID-19
The pandemic had a severe impact on TUHF’s operations, its clients and its clients’
clients. We granted tailor-made concessions to most of our clients. On some projects
only interest payments were serviced, on others fixed instalment arrangements were
entered into and in some cases, payment holidays were granted. However, we were able
to maintain full collections throughout Levels 4 and 5 on some projects as well. A virtual shutdown of the capital markets made it difficult to raise funding to continue lending
activities (granting credit).

4
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2
•

•

Dependence on municipal power
Operating costs, especially administered costs and municipal charges, continue to rise as
seen in a number of municipal budget increases and proposals. The increasing operating
costs without any increases in rent levels results in margin squeeze, losses and decreasing
yields if left unchecked.

Inner-city unrest and xenophobic attacks
Safety is not guaranteed in several areas where TUHF has financed projects, and while
xenophobic attacks have not made headlines recently, we are still concerned about this
as it is subject to rumour. People working and living in these areas are afraid as there is a
discourse which is causing fear and there has been no formal commitment or statement
from the Police regarding law enforcement.
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3

Managing operating costs and reducing dependence

TUHF continues to encourage its clients to be pro-active in managing operating costs to avoid margin squeeze
through measures such as:
•
Lobbying municipalities against rampant increases through JPOMA, etc
•
Monitoring and managing water and electricity use, including leaks and waste
•
Checking and attending to incorrect billing
•
Recovering operating costs from tenants to place accountability for responsible utilities use on the end user
•
Installing pre-paid water and electricity meters
•
Installing green solutions such as solar, LED lighting, heat pumps and so on wherever possible to reduce reliance on Municipalities
TUHF remains focused on helping our clients to buy well, and advise them on using alternative technology, recycling buildings and materials, and creative design including more compact and affordable units. All of these measures lower upfront costs and have also proven to contribute to achieving the required yields despite the tighter
margins.

Declining economic growth
While economic growth continues to decline, resulting in job losses, there has been
weakening demand for rental space, softer rent levels and lower rent increases.

3

Recovery from the pandemic

4

Our role in addressing safety

TUHF aims to facilitate a series of engagements with all relevant decision makers to craft a long-term solution to
inner-city unrest and xenophobia, otherwise the case for inner-city investment will be undermined.
We believe that if we put in collective effort to resuscitate the situation the negative effects can be rescued to some
extent. But this requires strong political will as a first step. Once the area is stable again, and once ownership has been
introduced, we can re-attract economic diversity and affordable housing opportunities.
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Great civic
life needs
cultivating
and curating
Transforming our cities through
urban management

In 2018, TUHF’s Development Impact Unit (DIU) adopted urban management as a strategic focus area within
urban regeneration. The department is led by Lusanda
Netshitenzhe, Development Impact Executive at TUHF.
“The reasoning behind its establishment was for TUHF to
innovate and collaborate for sustainable and functional
urban neighbourhoods to increase the liveability and
walkability in those communities where the organisation
has invested,” says Netshitenzhe.
To this end, the DIU is driving the urban regeneration and
urban management agenda for TUHF, using the standard
City Improvement District (CID) model as a regeneration
tool. Netshitenzhe and her team have been mandated
to continue research into effective urban management
interventions within the complexities of South Africa’s
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challenging urban environments.
CONTRIBUTING TO CITY BUILDING
Private urban management is an urban regeneration tool
with which property owners, tenants and stakeholders
work together and contribute funds to pay for top-up
service above what the municipality is providing. This
can include public safety and security, fixing potholes,
repairing water leaks, maintaining stormwater systems
and public space maintenance, landscaping, reporting
by-law infringements, business retention and attraction
programmes, public space activation and place-making.
All of this is centred on the public realm within a defined
geographic area.
“The main reason behind this is to prevent urban areas
from decaying, or to regenerate those areas that have

Lusanda Netshitenzhe, Development Impact
Executive, TUHF

Property entrepreneurs attending our TPPE.

already begun to decline It can also be used as a lobbying platform to give extra voice to the private sector with
local government,” says Katherine Cox, Research, Development and Innovation Manager at TUHF.
It all started in the late 1960s when property and business owners in cities across the world realised that revitalising and sustaining vibrant downtowns, city centres,
and neighbourhood districts required special attention
beyond the services that city administrations could provide. Subsequently, emphasis was placed on CIDs or BIDs
(business improvement districts) to receive funding from
those owners, with which urban renewal projects and
safe and clean programmes were funded.
Today, CIDs drive significant change in every major metropolitan area internationally. New York, Washington

DC and London are great examples of how cities can be
turned around with private urban management.
CIDs develop tools and strategies to address a range of
issues impacting and directing how people live, work and
play in cities. There are now more than 4 000 CIDs globally, employing more than 150 000 people, directly
“When it comes to urban management, the CID model
is primarily an urban revitalisation strategy to renew inner-city districts. The levies paid to the CID help in creating a stable revenue source for the provision of supplementary activities and improvements within the district
boundaries,” Cox says.
“By attracting pedestrians, commercial activity, and
new businesses, the investments begin to stimulate
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underperforming urban areas, creating employment, and
retaining valued tenants. So, CIDs have the potential
to transform the entire area through the fast appreciation of real estate value and achieved rentals,”
Netshitenzhe adds.

“[DIU aims to] increase
livability and walkability in those communities
where we have invested.”
A LOCAL PERSPECTIVE
In South Africa, there are currently 60 private urban
management districts. Their successes are dependent
on their intrinsic, local nature as well as their ability to
deliver visible results quickly and react efficiently to local needs. Their adapted approach operates on a smaller
basis at a local level. They are, therefore, effective in responding to crises and engage consistently in prediction
and planning in the urban environment, ensuring that the
precincts under management are resilient.
Examples of how urban management has benefitted
specific areas in South Africa include Cape Town City
Centre, Umhlanga, Florida Road, Nelson Mandela Bay,
Braamfontein, Newtown, Main Street Mall, Maboneng,
Gandhi Square, Sandton Central, Rosebank and the
Illovo Boulevard.

“Urban management can
bring about sustainable
development and the exponential growth of economic opportunities in
communities.”

URBAN MANAGEMENT

In these instances, it is important to do it on a community
basis and grow it from there,” she continues.
REMAINING INNOVATIVE
After all, proper urban management is mainly about
communities, working at a local level, and responding to
people’s needs. TUHF believes it is critical to start small
and expand, creating a ripple effect of positive neighbourhood development. This culminates in stitching areas of excellence together in an urban environment.
“We want to help create liveable and functional urban
spaces. It is about taking care of our clients’ clients. For
us, urban management is about not only making the
building safe but ensuring that when tenants step outside to go to school, go shopping, or visit the park, they
can do so without any fear. Additionally, they must have
access to transport and all the amenities within public
districts,” says Netshitenzhe.
CIDs are as much about urban realities as they are about
visibility and changing perceptions. They are about passion for making local improvements and about compassion for the urban environment at a local level. CIDs bring
transparency and accountability to urban spaces.

Jeppe Park Primary is at the centre of a managed precinct that includes a now safer Jeppe Park

Through this, as well as the services which they deliver,
they achieve an increase in land value, rentals, tenancy,
business retail and footfall within their boundaries.
“CIDs are collaborative entities that work in partnership
with the community and local authority, driving local
economic investment and urban transformation. Urban
management, through sustainable neighbourhoods and
CIDs, is just one of the ways TUHF is contributing to the
liveability and walkability of urban areas,” she concludes.
Mahlatse Kekana, Junior Portfolio Manager

“However, to work effectively, urban management precincts like these need a champion to drive them and get
the buy-in and commitment from other stakeholders as
well as push the urban renewal agenda and constructive
partnership forward with local government,” Cox says.
“We have seen mixed-use areas – with a strong commercial and retail base such as Sandton, Rosebank, and Illovo
Boulevard – work especially well in this regard. But there
is also potential in areas where there are many small
landowners such as Yeoville, Bertrams, and Turffontein.
CIDS help entrepreneurs thrive
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At work on Braamfontein Gate
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Chief Financial
Officer’s
review
As we strive to create shared value, we measure our business success
in holistic terms, taking into consideration both our financial and social measures.
TUHF’s key milestone achievement during 2020 is navigating the business through uncharted territory and putting key resources and building blocks in place to take the
organisation forward.
Because the Group’s revenue is derived solely from its
lending activities, growing our loan book in a responsible
manner is key to growing our revenue. As we are not a
deposit-taking institution, and as a non-banking financial institution, our ability to grow our advances is dependent on our ability to access debt capital at appropriate interest rates.
TUHF continues to seek partners that offer well priced
debt. We embarked on a strategy to grow our internal
resources and partnerships in the last financial year. To
this end, we appointed a full-time Treasury Specialist –
Tebogo Moseamedi – in September 2019 and supported
the initiatives introduced by Capital Market Specialist –
AJ Rothman – to build our Treasury capacity.
We also concluded a warehouse funding facility, and secured a R700 million investment with Standard Bank of
South Africa Limited. This warehouse facility has played
a significant role in ensuring that we continue to have
access to liquidity to fund the business during unprecedented times.
Sanlam showed their support by increasing their investment in the listed Domestic Medium-Term Program that
was rolled over and extended in January 2020 to October
2024. New funding partners – Taquanta Asset Managers
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“Advances represent the largest asset class on the
Group’s statement of financial position, and we ended the year under review with a loan book that had
increased to a net R3.606 105 278 billion.”
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OVERVIEW
The statement of financial position shows the position of the Group’s assets, liabilities and equity at 31 March 2020.

Cash and cash equivalents

Change
%

2020
R

2019
R

16.9

107 995 979

92 368 020

Money market assets

-90.3

4 308 934

44 406 460

Tax receivable

107.6

11 739 546

5 654 612

Advances (A)

17.2

3 606 105 278

3 077 270 454

Other Assets (B)

47.4

5 885 387

11 184 330

Properties in Possession (C)

100

11 400 000

-

46 359 310

31 975 185

Loans to group companies and related parties

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

9.5

29 272 155

26 733 494

Equipment and intangible assets

8.3

6 713 381

7 323 308

Right of use lease assets (D)

100

8 258 342

-

and the Small Enterprise Finance Agency – have meant
that we continue diversifying our funders and were able
to reduce exposure to Futuregrowth Asset Management.

Deferred tax

11.2

27 796 576

24 674 399

Total assets

16.4

3 865 834 888

3 321 590 262

Financial liabilities (E)

18.1

3 288 265 798

2 784 700 848

A key focus during 2020 is that the JSE Limited is a crucial regulator for the Group. This meant that the 2020
Financial Statement for the Group and listed structures
were reviewed closely, resulting in some restatements of
the prior year’s results. The restatements stem from the
accounting treatment of IFRS 9. This had the effect of reclassifying income without changing the overall income
from prior years.

Lease liabilities (D)

100

9 227 648

-

Other liabilities (F)

2.9

34 206 954

4 381 451

Total liabilities

8.3

3 331 700 400

28 285 453

Total equity capital and reserves

8.3

534 134 488

493 044 896

16.4

3 865 834 888

3 321 590 262

Total liabilities and reserves

Note: For the full statement of financial position, refer to page 102 of the annual financial statements.

As our environment continues to increase in complexity, and in particular this year, grappling with uncertainty
and the impact of potential future losses remains a significant focus area. The Group is in the second year of
applying IFRS 9 and the impact of the novel Coronavirus
pandemic has meant that this was regarded as a post
balance sheet adjusting entry. As this is an area of judgement, it has resulted in some differences in the way our
auditors assess such judgements. But these differences
were not material.

A – Advances represent the largest asset class on the Group’s
statement of financial position, and we ended the year under
review with a loan book that had increased to R3.606 billion
(2019: R3.077 billion). The growth in advances is a function
of our responsible lending processes and the Group’s success
in accessing additional debt capital during the year. Good
disbursements moderately under target of R800 million were
achieved at R756.7 million and this was offset by collections
and prepayments of R227.7 million, resulting in a net growth
of almost R530 million.

TUHF’s assessment of the expected credit losses was
more conservative than previous years, to take into
account the weakened South African economy and the
impact that this will have on property prices, unemployment and credit risk. There was a small amount of bad
debt amounting to R 12.7 million (0.35% of book) well
within the 2.5% bad debt written off covenant.

tributed to movements in deferred expenses on balance sheet,
expensed during the year. These costs relate to funding structures that extend beyond one year and a portion is written off
each year over the period to which they relate.

B – The decrease to R5.9 million in other assets is mainly at-

C – TUHF Limited, our main loan originator, brought in two

problematic properties after the loans were written off. We
seek to recover a better recovery value of the underlying property to mitigate our losses.

D – Right of use of lease assets relates to the right of use we
enjoy of our office premises in each of our branches, including
Head Office in Johannesburg. The lease liabilities reflects the
obligation we have to landlords for the duration of these leases and the treatment differs to the prior year due to the new
accounting standard, IFRS 16, that requires operating leases to
be reflected on the balance sheet.
E – Financial liabilities grew by 18.1% to fund the growth of

the loan book. A big component of this growth is due to a new
Bank Warehouse facility extended by Standard Bank of South
Africa Limited. This facility is a key achievement and important building block in our growth strategy. Additional diversification of funder relationships enabled us to repay a portion of
the Futuregrowth exposure and build new relationships with
Taquanta Asset Managers, the African Currency Local Bond
Fund and the Small Enterprise Finance Agency.

F – Other liabilities increased slightly mainly due to an increase in deferred tax relating to deferred expenses.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME OVERVIEW

and the National Housing Finance Corporation (NHFC).
They have, however, condoned in writing the covenant
breach at 31 March. The remaining funders have adopted
a higher covenant of 12.5% and we fall within the measure.

The statement of comprehensive income reflects the revenue generated by the Group, as well as the expenses
incurred in the process of generating this revenue for the year ended 31 March 2020.
GROUP SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Change
%

2020
R

Restated 2019
R

Net interest income (A)

12.3

176 857 475

157 438 834

Loan impairment (B)

71.7

(45 290 414)

(26 383 213)

Gains or losses from derecognised financial assets

100

(12 740 112)

-

Income from lending activities

-9.3

118 826 949

131 055 621

Non-interest income (C)

28.9

10 121 901

7 851 017

Other Operating gains

-31.2

802 888

1 166 782

Operating expenditure (D)

33.8

(123 865 352)

(92 549 441)

-87.6

5 888 386

47 523 979

Investment income

14.4

5 977 446

5 225 509

Profit/(loss) before taxation

-77.5

11 863 832

52 749 488

Taxation (E)

-75.9

(3 716 562)

(15 390 855)

Total comprehensive income

-78.2

8 147 270

37 358 633

Operating profit

Note: For the full Statement of Comprehensive Income, refer to page 117 of the annual financial statements.
A – Net interest income increased by 12.3%, driven mainly
by net loan book growth of 17.2% and the margin maintained
during 2020. The net interest income represents the interest
margin and profit margin between the interest rate earned on
advances made, and the interest rate paid on funding we receive. Benchmark lending rates, such as the prime interest rate
in South Africa, available liquidity and perceived risk within
the capital markets are key factors that cause variation in the
net interest margin (NIM).
B – Loan impairment charges of R45.3 million were incurred
during the year – 71.75% higher than the prior year – while
gross average loans and advances increased by around 18%.
This charge represents the amount provided for expected
credit losses, and the increase is attributed to a slight deterioration in the book during 2020, but mostly due to broad
market uncertainty linked to the impacts of the Coronavirus
pandemic. As the pandemic is an unprecedented event and is
not based on past history of default and loss, we had to apply
more conservative measures to ensure sufficient coverage. We
have provisions of 3.4% of book.

D – Operating expenditure consists primarily of employee
costs, consulting fees and other costs necessary to successfully run the business such as information technology (IT) costs,
office rental and telephone costs, etc. During the year, this
expense increased by 34% to R123.9 million due to additional
capacity created through the work done on establishing our
funding architecture, enhancing business process and IT architecture. The growth in operating costs is significant for the
Group at a time when income has been materially affected but
over time the benefit in economies of scale will be realised.
E – The tax expense for the Group reduced to R3.7 million,
representing a 76% decrease. The effective tax rate of 31%
compares unfavourably to the actual tax rate of 28%. The
current year tax charge was impacted by adding back non-deductible interest on preference shares of R 707 195.

Change
%

2020
R

2019
R

Total arrears TARGET 1%

>0.59

1,22

0,63

Capital impaired TARGET 10%

>2.46

10.97

8.51

Impaired capital deteriorated by 2.46% of book. Total arrears deteriorated from 0.63% to 1.22% of book.
Arrears are monitored closely, and although the arrears
levels remain relatively low, the broader economic environment impacted on collections and increasing loans
70

C – Non-interest income increased to R10.2 million from
R7.8 million in 2019, primarily due to the increased income
imposed as a penalty on early settlement, sub lease rental
income and penalty recoveries on loan instalments.
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in arrears.
The measures we have contracted to monitor performance is conservative, recording all loans in arrears irrespective of duration and recoverability. These measures
are also covenants with funders Sanlam, Futuregrowth

In terms of measuring other key covenants TUHF has
performed adequately and has met all key measures.

Change
%

2020
R

2019
R

Risk weighted capital adequacy (15-20%)

<7.0

23

30

Debt service cover ratio 1.1x

>0.1

1.4x

1.3x

Gearing <90%

>1.0

86

85

> 0.35

0.35

0

Bad debts <2.5%
LOOKING AHEAD
At the time of reporting, there is still immense market
uncertainty for the immediate period – marred by prevailing challenges to economic growth in the country and
the socioeconomic impacts of this, which has all been
heightened by the impacts of the Coronavirus pandemic
– and what the country’s recovery will be in the shortterm.
However, we are confident in the steps taken to re-invest
in the business, with particular focus on enhancing three

strategic architectural pillars – finance, business and IT
– which in the short-term have already proven valuable
to the resilience of our business in these unprecedented
times. Taking this into account, and with the continued
support of our Funders and Shareholders, TUHF is well
poised to move quickly when there are signs of recovery
in the market, to lend responsibly and activate cautiously
its growth trajectory. Raising sufficient, well-priced debt
capital will be key to achieving our full future business
growth potential, sustainably.

APPRECIATION
I would like to extend my appreciation to the Board
for its guidance during the year. To our Funders –
both old and new – thank you for enabling our
growth. In particular, I would like to thank the National Housing Finance Corporation, Futuregrowth,
Sanlam and Standard Bank of South Africa for their
ongoing support.

Finally, to our employees: Thank you for your hard
work. We can look back on the year with the knowledge that with resilience and by thinking on our feet
we navigated our way through uncharted territory.
We can look forward to the next financial year with
cautious optimism, thanks to your resilience and
true TUHF grit.

Ilona Roodt		
Chief Financial Officer
29 September 2020

ON A TECHNICAL NOTE:
Restatement of Prior Year Results
As part of the review of the company’s basis of preparation policy to consistently comply with IFRS and through
feedback from the JSE Limited review, management have passed some reclassification adjustments in 2020.
The adjustments relate mainly to IFRS 9 and resulted in a restatement between interest income and expected credit losses but did not change income or taxation overall. Further details of the reclassifications can be
obtained in note 41.

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

71

LOOKING AHEAD

LOOKING AHEAD

A Victorian gem in
Observatory, Cape Town
Situated in the heart of Observatory, Mitra Mews merges history
with contemporary design in a beautiful, privately developed small
mixed-use precinct.
Husband and wife architect duo
Alastair Rendall and Gita Goven
completed construction of Mitra
Mews at the end of 2019. The precinct features a complex that offers both short-term and long-term
rental options - with nine fully furnished units, including fibre Internet
connectivity and smart TVs. Four of
the units are duplexes with four bedrooms and a bathroom on each level.
The rest are two-bedroom units both
with en-suite bathrooms.
The 840sqm site has parking for
11 cars and includes a convenience
store, a music studio, letting office,
and laundry, as well as a completely
refurbished Victorian house which
is part of the Observatory Heritage Protection area. The precinct is
within walking distance of over 20

restaurants and bars as well as the
metrorail station, bus stops, and two
shopping centres.
SUSTAINABLE DESIGN
Alastair says, “We have been in the
rental business for 26-years and were
looking for an investment that would
ultimately allow us to reduce our dependence on our professional service
business. This would free us up in
generating innovative solutions to
mixed income inspiring settlements.
This property was small enough to
make the development manageable for us without the services of a
third-party developer.”
Both Alastair and Gita are passionate about designing everything using sustainable materials and making their developments as water

and energy efficient as possible. To
this end, the complex has been constructed using eco-friendly green-lite
concrete blocks, and water supplied
by a borehole that is fully filtered
and purified on-site. For energy, the
development relies on a photovoltaic water heating and electricity
generation system, with heat pump
back-up. The urban courtyard is
predominantly edible, with 24 fruit
trees and medicinal, herbal and
culinary plants.
Even though Mitra Mews was receiving good online reviews and started
building momentum on the rental front, the recent lockdown has
meant that the owners had to rethink their short-term plans.

“TUHF has created an impact in Cape Town by giving great
attention to Bellville, Parow, Observatory, Goodwood and
areas within the Voortrekker Road corridor.”
EXPLORING OPPORTUNITIES
Mitra Mews received R11 million in
funding from TUHF and while there
was still a lot of uncertainty in the
market, they explored making the
units available to health professionals as the building was within walking distance of a hospital.
“It has been a great experience
working with committed clients like
Alastair and Gita. Not only have
they followed through on what they
promised to accomplish, but they

also produced quality work. This
goes a long way in establishing the
foundation of a strong client relationship,” says Anne Meiring, Credit
Analyst at TUHF.
Given the picturesque location and
the quality of the development, it
certainly does have a lot of potential
that will benefit its owners and tenants well into the future.

to Bellville, Parow, Observatory,
Goodwood and areas within the
Voortrekker Road corridor. Through
providing financial backing to private developers, TUHF has assisted
in uplifting these formerly neglected and under-invested areas which
were regressing rapidly, by improving
safety, quality of life and the socioeconomic situation,” says Dihedile
Mphachoe, Portfolio Manager at
TUHF.

“TUHF has created an impact in
Cape Town by giving great attention

TUHF product

Location
31 Station Road, Observatory,
Cape Town, 2935

Original
configuration
Victorian house with old
sheds and a shop

Configuration
upon completion

4

four-bedroom
units

Music studio
72
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Shop

5

9

apartments

two-bedroom
units

Letting office

Laundry

Heritage site
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From eyesore to
urban asset
Irene Court was a run-down apartment building in the Bloemfontein CBD,
transformed by the passion of entrepreneur, Ntombi Sithole.

Despite its potential, Irene Court
was a run-down apartment building
in the central business district of
Bloemfontein. The apartments had
no doors, there were very few walls
due to a lack of maintenance and
tenants had to use curtains as dividers. And yet, Ntombi Sithole saw an
opportunity to revitalise the building
and transform it into the prime location it is today.
TUHF’S FIRST INVESTMENT IN
BLOEMFONTEIN
With the assistance of TUHF, Ntombi
purchased the property in 2017 and
began a refurbishment project that
was completed a year later. TUHF
was eager to fund Irene Court, as it
would be our first building project in
Bloemfontein, and was strategically

located downtown at the heart of
the Urban Development Zone.
“This property was a gem at an incredibly attractive price. Situated
at the corner of Charles and Hanger Street opposite the Department
of Health and next to Sanlam Plaza
and China Mall, the opportunity to
turn this into beautiful real estate
was just too good to pass up,” says
Ntombi.
Additionally, given its location the
property provided a great tax incentive and, once completed, attracted
a lot of tenants despite its previous
condition.
SIGNIFICANT SCALE
“To be honest, before we started the

refurbishment, the place looked like
a dumpster. The previous owner did
not perform any upkeep or maintenance. We literally had to start from
scratch and put in new tiles, doors,
brick walls inside the apartments,
burglar proofing, and new bathrooms. The scale of the project was
significant,” she adds.
Considering this was the first project
TUHF would undertake in Bloemfontein, Ntombi was motivated to prove
the potential of Irene Court.
“As this was a brownfield initiative
in the city, we had to establish relationships with builders and other
stakeholders to ensure its success.
The scope of the refurbishment presented us with many challenges and

“Before we started the refurbishment, the place looked like
a dumpster. The previous owner did not perform any upkeep
or maintenance.”
the first contractor really did not
provide any assistance. I had to take
over and invested R200 000 from
my own funds to supplement the
R4.6-million funding from TUHF and
the Intuthuko Fund.”

ish it and walked with us throughout
the process. The team from TUHF
provided invaluable assistance. Paul
Jackson in particular was an incredible mentor and it has been amazing
to work with TUHF throughout the
project.”

Ntombi is quick to point out that
TUHF really came to the rescue and
was more than a funding partner
on the project. “They helped me refinance the property to be able to fin-

Location

Today, she says it is an honour and a
privilege to know that people are living in a decent place.“To bring Irene
Court from what it was to what it is

TUHF Property Finance
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“Yes, it was hard work and we went
through difficult times, but the
continued 100% tenancy rate of
Irene Court makes it all worthwhile
in the end,” concludes Ntombi.

Corner of Charles and Hammer Streets,
CBD, Bloemfontein, 9301

TUHF product

Configuration
upon completion

today required a major leap of faith.
Fortunately, the equity growth has
been marvellous and the support
we received from TUHF throughout
means we were never alone in this
project.

Original
configuration
Dilapidated apartment building

11

one-bedroom
flatlets

4

two-bedroom
units
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Corporate
Governance
at TUHF

The group governance structure
OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The boards of the TUHF Group provide effective leadership and guide
management in the strategic decisions that determine the future direction of the Group. The boards are
ultimately responsible for corporate
governance within regulatory risk

parameters. They ensure sound governance to the benefit of long-term
equity performance and shareholder
value. Most importantly, the boards
are responsible for transparent and
open reporting to stakeholders on
the Group’s performance and how

their responsibilities have been fulfilled. The boards are expected to
make efficient, objective and transparent decisions. To this end, they
are supported by sub-committees,
governance policies and internal
governance codes.

TUHF 21 Group

TUHF21 NPC

KEY:
Independent Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Executive

TM Adler
C Coovadia
SS Moraba
JK Mamatela
JS Strelitz

IL Roodt
PGN Jackson
LN Netshitenzhe

PROPERTIES (PTY) LTD

Introduction
The King IV Report on Corporate
Governance for South Africa, 2016™
(King IV) defines corporate governance as the exercise of ethical
and effective leadership toward the
achievement of an ethical culture,
good performance, effective control
and legitimacy as the outcomes of
good governance. The application
of King IV is on an apply and explain basis and practices underpinning the principles espoused in King
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IV are entrenched in many of the
Group’s Governance Framework, internal controls, policies and procedures governing corporate conduct.
TUHF embraces King IV in keeping with the commitments to good
governance and broader stakeholder interests. The boards accept
the responsibility for considering
and applying the King IV principles
and are satisfied that they have
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made every effort to comply with
these principles in all material aspects where applicable to the TUHF
Group. The TUHF Group King IV
Application Register is uploaded on
our website https://www.tuhf.co.
za/wp-content/uploads/2020/10/
T UHF-Group-King-IV-Application-Register-.pdf.

C Coovadia

C Coovadia

IL Roodt
PGN Jackson

IL Roodt
PGN Jackson
NH Makwela
LN Netshitenzhe

TM Adler
C Coovadia
SS Moraba
JK Mamatela
JS Strelitz
IL Roodt
PGN Jackson

The board is satisfied with its composition in terms of the mix of knowledge, skills, experience and diversity. There are
eight directors of whom three are Executive Directors and five are Non-Executive Directors. The demographic targets
for board composition are 50% black and 25% black female which has been achieved over the prior reporting periods.
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TUHF Holdings Group directors

ETHICS
Ethical practice is part of the system
of governance within TUHF and there
are rules for employees when performing their duties. TUHF’s reputation and brand are affected by what
the board, management and employees do every single day. The board is,
therefore, responsible for setting and
steering the strategic direction and
culture of the Group. It also holds
management to account for ensuring the Group adheres to the highest standards of ethics and integrity.

HOLDINGS LIMITED
KEY:
Independent Non-Executive
Non-Executive
Executive

L Vutula
TM Adler
JF Howard
C Coovadia
SS Moraba
JK Mamatela
JS Strelitz
BL Mapongwana

BRIDGE (PTY) LTD

TM Adler
C Coovadia
SS Moraba
JK Mamatela
JS Strelitz
RR Emslie
IL Roodt
PGN Jackson

LIMITED

URBAN FINANCE (RF) LIMITED

Vuselela

VUSELELA WAREHOUSE SPV
(RF) PTY LTD

L Vutula
TM Adler
JF Howard
C Coovadia
SS Moraba
JK Mamatela
JS Strelitz
BL Mapongwana
RR Emslie
IL Roodt
PGN Jackson

RR Emslie
IL Roodt
PGN Jackson

EQUITY (PTY) LTD

L Vutula
TM Adler
JF Howard
C Coovadia
SS Moraba
JK Mamatela
JS Strelitz
BL Mapongwana
RR Emslie
IL Roodt
PGN Jackson

Based on the strategic shareholder approach for the TUHF Holdings
Board, the board is satisfied with its composition in terms of the mix of
knowledge, skills, experience and diversity. The Board has eleven directors
of whom two are Executive Directors, one is an Independent Non-Executive Director and the balance are Non-Executive Directors.

The board approved the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct policy that
is implemented by management. The

MBS (PTY) LTD

C Coovadia
IL Roodt
PGN Jackson
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dation. This includes timely, relevant
and meaningful reporting to shareholders and other stakeholders that
provides an objective overview on
the company and its activities. This
directs the strategy and operations
of the Group with the intention of
building a sustainable business that
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It is about following the spirit and
intention of the law and ultimately treating all of our stakeholders
and peers fairly and respectfully. All employees are expected to
read, understand and apply the
Code of Ethics and Business Conduct policy. Anything less would

RESPONSIBLE CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP
TUHF’s mission and values, strategy and TUHF is committed to building
and conduct are consistent with it sound relationships, based on trust,
being a responsible corporate citizen honesty, value creation and fairness.
in the commercial property finance
environment. The strategy and oper- The board is responsible for ensuring
ations of the group are intended to the company’s corporate citizenship
build a sustainable business that is on an ongoing basis and sets the
considerate of the short- and long- direction for how this is to be apterm impact on the economy, society proached and addressed, ensuring
and the environment. It is recognised that the company’s efforts in this
that the group is an integral part of regard are in compliance with all apthe communities in which it operates plicable laws, leading standards and

impact TUHF’s reputation and
damage its ability to do business.
TUHF has a Whistleblowing Policy
that is overseen by the Audit and Risk
Committee, which has an amplified
role in assuring that whistleblowing procedures are in place. There
is an independent Hotline, through
TUHF’s internal auditors, that provides a third-party anonymous and
confidential whistle-blower reporting service for potential fraud, ethical issues, and any other concerns.

its own codes of conduct and policies. The oversight and monitoring
of the Group’s corporate citizenship
is performed by the Social and Ethics
Committee.

Governance Framework
•
•

Rubeena Solomon resigned as a
director on 20 September 2019.
Belinda Mapongwana was appointed as a director of TUHF
Holdings, TUHF Limited and
TUHF Equity on 25 March 2020.

The TUHF Group board
LEADERSHIP
The board recognises that, through
good governance, the Group realises
an ethical culture, good performance,
effective control, accountability and
legitimacy. TUHF directors recognise
the need to manage the group with
integrity and to provide effective
leadership based on an ethical foun-

Social and Ethics Committee is responsible for monitoring the continued implementation of ethics. This
Policy clarifies the Group’s mission,
values and principles, linking them
with standards of professional conduct. Ethical behaviour at TUHF goes
beyond just observing the law.

The boards review and update the
Group’s governance policies and
procedures to adhere to King IV,
the JSE Debt Listings Requirements,
the regulatory environment and national best practice. They carefully consider all new non-statutory
corporate governance concepts and
implement those that are in the best
interests of the Group and its stakeholders. Governance requirements
should enable, not detract, from the

director’s ability to carry out their
statutory and fiduciary duties as
well as their duties of care and skill.

services to the board and the board
is satisfied with the effectiveness of
their services.

The Governance Framework allows
the boards to keep effective control
and stay accountable while delegating authority to board committees
and the CEO, along with clearly defined mandates and authority. The
company secretary of the Group
provides all corporate governance

The board is therefore satisfied that
the delegation of authority framework contributes to role clarity and
the effective exercise of authority
and responsibilities.

creates value for all its stakeholders, and that considers its short- and
long-term impact. The board is responsible for the implementation of
the Group’s corporate governance
which results in the Group being a
responsible corporate citizen.
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Delegation framework
The boards of the entities in the
TUHF Group delegate Group corporate governance functions, decisions
and applications to the TUHF21 and
TUHF Holdings Group boards. However, these boards and the memorandums of incorporation (MOIs),
Board Charter and the Governance
Framework, will instruct TUHF’s
directors, who will be required to
safeguard the interests of the re-

spective companies when executing the management agreements.
The TUHF boards are committed to
a high standard of responsibility, accountability, fairness and transparency. These four governance principles are fundamental to the smooth,
effective and transparent operation
of a company, as well as to sustainable growth for shareholders and

stakeholders. The Companies Act,
No. 71 of 2008, as amended (Companies Act) and Group policies and
codes require directors to undertake
certain duties carefully and skilfully.
TUHF continuously devotes considerable time and resources to identify
and implement best practice.

support and guidance to directors.
In fulfilling their role as the focal
point of corporate governance, the
TUHF boards (where applicable) and

The roles, functions and responsibilities of the TUHF Group Boards can be summarised as:

•

•
DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT OF THE GROUPS
As the focal point of the Group’s
governance and operations, TUHF
Ltd has entered into management
agreements with all the entities in
the TUHF Holdings and TUHF21
Group companies. TUHF Ltd will
provide management and administrative services necessary, incidental
and ancillary to satisfy the ongoing
requirements of each of the companies concerned, including but not
limited to secretarial services, accounting services, banking services,
administrative services, corporate

governance services, social and ethics management, strategic planning
and reporting services, and statutory
reporting services.
TUHF Limited’s role will:
• be subject to the MOI of the
Company referred to
• be subject to instruction from the board of the
company referred to and will be
entitled to impose and implement any and all decisions
• remain responsible for the over-

•

all direction and control of that
company and
provide any and all management services, including signing
documents and taking actions
incidental to the business of the
company referred to.

The TUHF Group boards are satisfied that the delegation of authority
framework clarifies roles and responsibilities and improves disclosure on
how authority and responsibilities
are exercised throughout the Group.

•
•

TUHF Holdings, as a Group with a
commercial focus and with entities
and structures that are Debt Listed
with the JSE, has appointed an independent non-executive director to
bring balance to the board.
The CEO and the CFO are members
of the board and serve as such for
all the Group companies. There is no
fixed-term service contract in place
for the CEO and the CFO, and their
tenures are subject to normal terms
and conditions for employer/employee relationships. The board has
approved a succession plan for Executive Directors and senior managers
to improve employment contracts
continuity.
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The non-executive directors of TUHF
Holdings, as a strategic shareholder
company, are appointed for an indefinite appointment and a director
only ceases to be a director under
the circumstances provided for in
the Companies Act or the MOI.

•
•

In terms of TUHF21’s MOI, one-third
of its non-executive directors retire
by rotation at each annual general
meeting (AGM). Retiring directors
may offer themselves for re-election.
A formally documented and approved Board Charter outlines the
scope of authority, responsibilities,
powers and functioning of the TUHF
board. The board reviews the Charter
periodically to keep it relevant and in
line with governance best practice.
The Governance Framework Policy
sets out the operating principles of
directors and prescribed officers as
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well as directors’ fiduciary conduct
and probity.
The procedures for appointing and
inducting new directors are detailed
in the TUHF Governance Framework
and the Board Charter. The role,
function and powers of the boards,
TUHF21 members, shareholders and
committees, and their relationship
with direct and indirect subsidiaries,
are determined by law, the MOI’s,
third-party agreements, governance
regulations and best practice guidelines and policies. These include resolutions of the board and members,
all of which are related to the decision-making power or control of the
individual companies.
The Group’s boards are assisted by
a competent, suitably qualified, and
experienced outsourced Company
Secretary who provides practical

Setting the Groups’ objectives,
strategy, short-term and medium-term plans and the monitoring of actual performance
against budgeted and operational results
Reviewing and approving the
Annual Financial Statements,
management accounts, management reports, dividends,
financial matters and covenants
Approving the annual strategic
and business plans
Setting and reviewing the
Groups’ risk appetite, funding
requirements and liquidity sta-

•
•

•
•
•

tus
Appointing and succession planning for the CEO and executive
directors
Delegation of authority to the
CEO, the board committee mandates and authorities as well as
the annual review thereof
Regularly reviewing Group policies and procedures
Ensuring effective internal systems of control including IT
management
Overseeing the external reports
stakeholder
communication
and appropriate action to re-

•

•

•

solve issues
Assessing and implementing a
suitable and cost-effective riskbased internal audit and risk
mitigation strategy
Setting the corporate governance philosophy and continuing compliance with laws and
regulations
Assessing the performance of
the board, its committees and
its individual members.

During the year, the TUHF Holdings Board undertook strategic tasks, including:

The Group boards structure
The boards of the TUHF Group comprise both executive and non-executive directors with the majority being
non-executive directors.

management ensure that the businesses of the Group is run effectively
and efficiently, for the benefit of all
stakeholders.

•

Confirming
the
strategic
direction of the Group
Implementing the TUHF@10Billion strategy for growth and
appointing a Programme Management Office to develop and
implement the business, financial and information strategy as
well as technology architecture
Overseeing the implementation
of the review of business processes, the review of the IT systems and architecture and the
implementation of the funding
architecture

•

•

•

Managing the risk of the Group’s
borrowing strategies and overseeing and understanding the
liquidity risks, while maintaining
a funding architecture that provides for ongoing access to reasonably priced debt and diversification of the pool of funders
Receiving feedback from the
Shareholding sub-committee on
the plans to raise capital to support growth
Continuing to promote the
Group’s development objectives
by improving livelihoods, effect-

ing housing for low to moderate-income earners, funding
entrepreneurs and small businesses, and urban land reform.

During the year, the TUHF21 Board undertook strategic tasks, including:

•

•

Developing the transitioning
plan to separate TUHF21 from
TUHF Holdings which inter alia
includes funding, strategic focus, Group structure and employees
Reviewing the strategic objec-

•

tives of TUHF21 and its subsidiaries
Discussing and agreeing on the
role of TUHF21 as a shareholder
of TUHF Holdings.
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TUHF Governance Structure

SAMSON MORABA^

ROBERT EMSLIE*

CAS COOVADIA^

JAMES HOWARD*

MANDU MAMATELA^

LUSANDA NETSHITENZHE*

Board responsibility:
Chairman

Board responsibility:
Lead Independent Non-Executive
Director for the TUHF Holdings Group

Board responsibility:
Deputy Chairperson - TUHF21

Board responsibility:
Non-Executive Director

Board responsibility:
Non-Executive Director

Board responsibility:
Executive Director - TUHF21 Group

Appointed to TUHF Board:
18 January 1993

Appointed to TUHF Board:
28 August 2012

Appointed to TUHF Board:
21 November 2006

Appointed to TUHF Board:
30 August 2018

Length of Service:
26 years

Length of Service:
7 years

Length of Service:
13 years

Length of Service:
1 year

Education:
BCom (University College, Durban);
Housing Finance Course (Wharton Real
Estate Centre, University of Pennsylvania); Effective Directors Programme
(Kagiso School of Leadership)

Education:
BCom (Stellenbosch University)

Education:
Associate Accountant Technician
International Executive Development
Programme (IEDP) (University of the
Witwatersrand Business School); MBA
(North-West University,
Potchefstroom)

Education:
Master of Business Leadership (UNISA),
Master of Science in Development Planning (Wits University), Higher Diploma
in Development Planning (Wits University), Bachelor of Arts (Wits University)

Appointed to TUHF Board:
21 May 2003
Length of Service:
16 years
Education:
BCom (UNISA); PMD (Harvard
Business School)
Expertise:
Housing finance, corporate finance,
banking, development
Experience: 38 years

Appointed to TUHF Board:
1 August 2009
Length of Service:
10 years
Education:
CA(SA)
Expertise:
Financial services sector, banking,
commercial and residential property
industry, strategic leadership
Experience: 36 years

Expertise:
Financial Services Charter, Basel III and
similar regulations, lobbying, government interaction and
broader stakeholder engagement, banking operations

Expertise:
Impact investment, private equity funds,
property assets
Experience: 34 years

Expertise:
Strategic leadership, credit risk assessment, project finance and financial management, organisational restructuring

Expertise:
Housing, planning, social impact,
investment (ESG)
Experience: 17 years

Experience: 30 years

Experience: 47 years

PAUL JACKSON^

ILONA ROODT^

TAFFY ADLER^

LUTHANDO VUTULA*

JILL STRELITZ^

BELINDA MAPONGWANA

Board responsibility:
Chief Executive Officer

Board responsibility:
Chief Financial Officer

Board responsibility:
Non-Executive Director

Board responsibility:
Non-Executive Director

Board responsibility:
Non-Executive Director

Board responsibility:
Non-Executive Director

Appointed to TUHF Board:
21 May 2003

Appointed to TUHF Board:
1 December 2016

Appointed to TUHF Board:
17 May 2013

Appointed to TUHF Board:
27 July 2018

Appointed to TUHF Board:
18 January 1993

Appointed to TUHF Board:
25 March 2020

Length of Service:
16 years

Length of Service:
3 years

Length of Service:
6 years

Length of Service:
8 months

Length of Service:
16 years

Length of Service:
7 months

Education:
BSc Agricultural Economics (University
of Natal); BSc (Hons) Agricultural Economics (University of Pretoria); Property
Development Programme (University
of Cape Town); Housing Finance Course
(Wharton Real Estate Centre, University
of Pennsylvania)

Education:
CA(SA); HDipTax

Education:
BPhil African Studies; MSc Building
Science (University of the
Witwatersrand)

Education:
Masters Degree in Development Finance
(University of Stellenbosch); Bachelor
of Business Administration (Hons)
(University of Stellenbosch); Bachelor of
Economics and Accounting (University
of Botswana), Chartered Development
Finance Analyst (CIDEF)

Education:
BBA (Hons) Sociology; MSc in Town and
Regional Planning, Diploma in Financial
Instruments, Executive Development
Programme (run jointly by the University of the Witwatersrand and Harvard
Business School)

Education:
Master of Laws (LLM) in International
Business Law (Vrije University, Amsterdam), Bachelor of Social Sciences and
LLB (University of Cape Town)

Expertise:
Property, financial management, risk
management, reporting, stakeholder
relationships
Experience: 23 years

Expertise:
Commercial property finance, development finance, housing, economics
Experience: 33 years
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Expertise:
National housing policy, housing, political and social activism, urban
development and human settlements
Experience: 44 years

^ Members of TUHF21 NPC, TUHF Holdings Limited and TUHF Limited Boards
* Members of TUHF Holdings Limited and TUHF Limited Boards only

Expertise:
Finance, property, housing, banking,
Leadership
Experience: 21 years

Expertise:
Housing, finance, social impact
Experience: 40 years

Expertise:
IMergers and Acquisitions, Corporate
Governance, Banking and Regulatory,
Compliance and Risk, General Corporate
Law, General Commercial Transactions
Experience: 15 years

^ Members of TUHF21 NPC, TUHF Holdings Limited and TUHF Limited Boards
* Members of TUHF Holdings Limited and TUHF Limited Boards only
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BOARD SUB-COMMITTEES

THE CHAIRPERSON OF THE BOARDS OF TUHF GROUP
The Chairperson of the TUHF Group Although the Chairperson is currentboards is Mr Samson Moraba – a ly a non-executive director, TUHF
Holdings’ board has appointed a lead
non-executive director.
independent non-executive director,
The Group Chairperson and Group Mr Robert Emslie, to assist in bringCEO have distinct and separate roles ing balance to the board.
with clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairperson and CEO’s roles and The Chairperson provides overall
functions are formalised in the Board leadership to the board and presides
over board meetings, AGMs and
Charter.
THE CEO
The CEO is an executive director of
the companies in the Group and is accountable and responsible to all the
boards for implementing the strategies, objectives and decisions within the delegated authorities, values
and policies of the applicable Group
companies. The CEO plays a critical
role in the day-to-day business and
is required to alert the Chairperson

of all forthcoming complex, contentious and sensitive matters affecting
the Group.
All the authority of the board has
been delegated to the CEO with
certain material exceptions. TUHF
Holdings’ MOI contains protected
matters that cannot be undertaken,
engaged in, agreed to, or performed

DIRECTORS’ ACCESS TO INFORMATION AND RESOURCES
Directors have unrestricted access consultants at the Group’s expense,
to Group management and compa- as outlined in the Board Charter.
ny information. For them to carry Subject to the approved protoout their duties and responsibilities, col, the board may engage, at the
all Group resources are available to Group’s expense, any firm of accounthem, as is the advice of outsourced tants, lawyers or other professionals

general meetings to ensure they are
productive. The Chairperson acts as
the link between the board and management, particularly between the
board and the CEO, and safeguards
relations with the shareholders of
TUHF Holdings.

by the Company or its subsidiaries,
unless directors representing shareholders who hold at least 75% of the
issued share capital of TUHF Holdings have agreed to it in writing.
REMCO reviewed the CEO’s performance and rated it as “good and
competent”.

Board sub-committees
The Group has appointed board committees with delegated functions to
assist in discharging the boards’ duties. The committees enhance the
standards of governance and effectiveness within the Group.
The Audit and Risk Committee is a
statutory body, and the shareholders elect its members. The boards
appoint the members of the other committees. However, creating
a committee does not absolve the
boards of their overall responsibility
and, accordingly, a board decision

AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE

RR. Emslie (Chairperson)
C. Coovadia
JK. Mamatela
By invitation:
P Jackson
I Roodt
External Auditors – PWC
Internal Auditors – KPMG

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
In terms of the Companies Act, directors are required to make a general declaration disclosing their outside interests.
The declaration must be updated as and when any changes occur. The Company Secretary keeps a record of these
declarations, which are tabled annually.
BOARD EVALUATION
The Social and Ethics Committee,
assisted by the Company Secretary,
evaluates the board every two years.
An evaluation of the board was performed by the Company Secretary
during the financial year and the following areas were identified as ongoing areas for improvement:
• Board structure and composition, including ensuring that the
COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary’s role and
function is formalised in the board
charter and Kilgetty Statutory Services (Pty) Ltd, an independent secretarial practice company represented by Matthew Wray, is appointed
as the Company Secretary of the
Group.
84

•
•

board has the right number of
directors
Board evaluation processes and
accountabilities
Effective process for communication with shareholders, including the broader stakeholder
engagement and feedback process.

The Company Secretary observes
board procedures, duties, responsibilities and statutory regulations.
The Company Secretary guides
members of the boards on governance, compliance and their fiduciary
responsibilities. All new and amended legislation and regulations that

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

The board, with the oversight of the
Social and Ethics Committee, has addressed these areas of improvement.
The committee is satisfied with the
board evaluation process and recommended that a board evaluation be
formulated for future board evaluations.

are relevant to the Group’s business
will be provided to the members of
the board at meetings or by circulars.
Directors have unrestricted access to
the Company Secretary.

Each committee has clear board-approved terms of reference that set
out its purpose, functions and delegated authority. Each committee
gives written or oral reports to the
board on its activities and the minutes of its meetings. The boards, assisted by the Audit and Risk and Social and Ethics Committees, annually
reviews the activities and functions
of the board committees.

It is the responsibility of all the
board sub-committees to:
• Lead ethically and effectively
• Balance the interests of the
Group and its various stakeholders
• Ensure that management best
serves shareholders and stakeholders’ interests
• Enact corporate governance
within regulatory risk parameters
• Practise sound governance.

The following are the board’s sub-committees:
MEMBERS

for independent counsel and advice
on any review or investigation into
the performance of their fiduciary
duties.

(by majority vote) overrides any
committee recommendations.

Roles and responsibilities
Reviewing Group accounting policies and practices and,
when necessary, recommending
changes
• Reviewing Group financial, operational and internal control
systems including business rescue plans and, when required,
making recommendations to
the board
• Reviewing the implementation
of IT structures, processes and
mechanisms and ensuring that
the IT strategy is integrated with
the Group strategic and business process
• Ensuring that risk assessments
are formally documented
• Reviewing the Group’s regulatory compliance and overseeing

•

the compliance risk management processes
• Monitoring management’s compliance with reporting best practice
• Overseeing reporting by internal
and external auditors, that exceptions are noted, and that the
level of risk tolerance and appetite are set
• Evaluating, reviewing, approving and recommending to the
boards the Annual Financial
Statements and Integrated Annual Report
• Liaising with the Social and Ethics Committee on ethical matters
The Audit and Risk Committee Report
is set out in page 94

SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE
MEMBERS
JS. Strelitz
JF. Howard
IL.. Roodt
By invitation:
P Jackson

The TUHF board guards the Group’s
ethics and values. The Social and
Ethics Committee, a statutory committee as provided for in the Companies Act, monitors the Group’s
corporate citizenship status. King IV
requires the Social and Ethics Committee to enhance its focus on corporate governance.
Roles and responsibilities
• Monitoring the Group’s activities with regard to legislation, best practice, social and
economic development, good

•
•
•

corporate citizenship, environmental health, public safety and
stakeholders’ perceptions, and
labour and employment
Liaising with the Audit and Risk
Committee on ethical matters
Ensuring compliance with legislation, regulation and governance codes, including King IV
Reporting to the board and
shareholders on any matters
within its mandate.

The Social and Ethics Committee Report is set out on page 96
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LOAN COMMITTEE (LOANCO)
MEMBERS
C. Coovadia (Chairperson)
RR. Emslie
TM. Adler
L. Vuthula
By invitation:
P Jackson
I Roodt

LOANCO keeps abreast of developments relevant to the Group’s
loan and credit policies, systems,
procedures, loan applications and
approvals, funding requirements
and sources, and financial covenant
requirements. It takes due consideration in evaluating the risks attached
to commercial mortgage and bridging loan applications and whether
the Group’s levels of risk tolerance
and risk appetite are met. Where
there are risk tolerance concerns related to commercial mortgage and
bridging loan applications, the loan
application is referred to the board
for authorisation.
Roles and responsibilities
Identifying and managing the
Group’s credit exposure as well
as trends and responses affecting this exposure

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

Reviewing and recommending
changes to the Group’s credit
and loan policy, including the
adequacy of allowances for
credit losses
Tracking and ensuring policies
and controls operate effectively
Delegating to the Management
Committee (MANCO) the authority to evaluate and approve
financing and guarantees of
projects within the established
value band (below R10 million)
Evaluating and approving financing and guarantees of projects within the established value band (above R10 million)
Referring to and requesting authorisation from the board for
loan applications where there
are risk tolerance concerns
Reporting approved projects to
the board.

Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
• Is monitoring progress and receiving feedback from management on the non-performing
Maboneng portfolios, which
were under liquidation, and
some of the properties that had
been sold
• Is monitoring the review of the
Mortgage Loan and Credit Pol-

•

•

•

•

•

icy, which will incorporate the
IFRS9 Model and the developments from treasury
Is reviewing the Sectional Title
Policy as the demand for the
product is increasing in the market
Introduced reporting on TUHF’s
different regional property markets and market conditions that
looks at trends on arrears, vacancies, cap rates, rentals and
rental increases, and demand
with a view to adapting lending
methods to market conditions
Monitored the arrears and the
non-performing loans given the
weaker economic situation and
high levels of arrears in relation
to funder requirements
Monitored the unrest in the cities, which included xenophobic
violence and some business forums, and the effect they had
on TUHF’s market; then recommended proactive engagements
with relevant stakeholders like
the police and security personnel.
Exceeded the budget of R800
million for the year, with total
Group disbursements of R756
million.

JOBS FUND COMMITTEE

MEMBERS
JK. Mamatela
C. Coovadia
JS. Strelitz
JF. Howard
By invitation:
P Jackson
I Roodt

The function of the Jobs Fund Committee is to make debt capital available to entrepreneurs through grants
received from the National Treasury
for the purpose of creating permanent, as well as short-term and
temporary jobs during both the construction or refurbishment phase,
and management phase of developments. The committee ensures all
terms and condition of the grants are
adhered to and achieved.
The committee gives detailed reports on project closures to the Na-

KEY: Independent Non executive Non executive Executive
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tional Treasury covering self-evaluation, project close-out audits,
and summative evaluation reports.
Summative evaluation reports are
independent assessments carried
out immediately after completing a
project. The committee continually
monitors the project’s sustainability
for two years after its completion.

Roles and responsibilities
• Overseeing the use of, and
acting as a sounding board to
TUHF’s CEO and management
in respect of, the National Treasury’s Jobs Fund grants
• Conducting post-monitoring assessments of the sustainability
of permanent jobs created and
small, medium and micro-sized
enterprises (SMMEs) funded
through the initial Jobs Fund
grant for a two-year period from
April 2018 to March 2020
• Overseeing the Development
Impact Unit’s (DIU’s) activities
• Measuring outcomes and/or impact of energy efficiency/greening, entrepreneur growth, local
economic development, fiscal
impact, affordable housing pro-

vision and inner-city regeneration.
The Jobs Fund Committee oversees
the DIU, which develops specific
economic and social outcomes. The
DIU is neither a board or management committee. It is an operating
division of TUHF. Due to its diverse
responsibilities, the DIU is accountable to a number of board and management committees, as well as to
TUHF21 in relation to uMaStandi and
Intuthuko Equity Fund’s operations
and outputs.

•

•

jobs through the National Treasury’s Jobs Fund programme
TUHF21 Group has a continued
constructive relationship with
the National Treasury’s Jobs
Fund Investment Committee
TUHF Group facilitated one Programme for Property Entrepreneurship training (TPPE) intake
with 181 participants completing the training and receiving
certificates from the University
of Cape Town.

The DIU Report is set out on page 36
Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
• TUHF21 Group has created 104
permanent and 174 short-term

ASSET AND LIABILITIES MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (ALCO)

MEMBERS
R Emslie (Chairperson)
JK. Mamatela
C Coovadia
By invitation:
I Roodt
P Jackson
External Consultants

• AJ Rothman- Independent Consultant
• Gill Raine – Independent Expert

The ALCO is a sub-committee of the
board and will assist the board in discharging its duties relating to:
• Identifying significant risks facing the TUHF Group as regards
the management of assets and
liabilities, with a specific focus
on treasury risk, which includes
but is not limited to: liquidity,
funding, capital structure, and
interest rate risk
• Developing, implementing and
monitoring a documented treasury risk management policy
and plan
• Developing, implementing and
monitoring appropriate risk
management reports.

Roles and responsibilities
• Identifying treasury risks proactively and continuously
• Reviewing the Group’s risk management
• Monitoring risk evaluation and
mitigation
• Developing risk strategies
• Monitoring maturity mismatch
strategy
• Managing the liquidity and internal capital adequacy assessment processes
• Monitoring internal funding and
capital structure
• Transferring and accepting risk
• Assessing the impact of risk or
likelihood of it occurring.
Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
• Implemented funding architecture to enable growth
• Evaluated the treasury resources necessary to implement the
funding architecture
• Received feedback from management on the implementation
of the approved IFRS9 model
• Monitored progress on the per-

•
•

•

•
•

formance of the securitisation
structures
Monitored TUHF’s credit rating
Continued with the management of significant treasury risks
by using developed dashboards
that cover funding cost, funding
concentration, liquidity, maturity mismatch, capital/leverage
and NIM targets
Designed a capital adequacy determination model and continued to monitor TUHF’s funding
model
Continued to develop the ALCO
policy considering the growth of
the Group
Monitored the Group’s going
concern assumption and liquidity considering the COVID-19
pandemic to ensure that the
business is resilient and sustainable.

The Committee engaged the services
of G. Raine, a specialist consultant in
treasury, and AJ Rothman, a specialist consultant in securitization, capital markets and facility structuring.

KEY: Independent Non executive Non executive Executive
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MEETINGS ATTENDANCE

Board and committees meetings attendance report

TUHF EQUITY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

88
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REMCO

TUHF Equity

Social and Ethics Committee

Paul Jackson

Loanco

1

Jobs Fund Committee

Samson Moraba

Audit and Risk Committee

1

ALCO

1

TUHF21 NPC Board

Number of Meetings

TUHF Holdings Board

KEY: Independent Non executive Non executive Executive

Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
The Committee continued with the
evaluation of the projects and assessing new investments for approval.

KEY:
X Did not attend
- Not a member

Shareholders’ Subcommittee

The Equity and Investment Committee is a sub-committee of the TUHF
Equity (Pty) Ltd Board. TUHF Equity,
or EQ, is an equity investment partner to inner city landlords that own
and develop inner city properties.

A minimum of six meetings are scheduled per year with additional
ad hoc meetings as required.

Shareholders’ AGM - TUHF NPC

By invitation:
P Jackson

monitoring a documented Investment Committee management policy and plan.

Shareholders’ AGM TUHF Holdings

MEMBERS
TM. Adler (Chairperson)
RR. Emslie
C Coovadia
L. Vuthula

Roles and responsibilities
• Overseeing TUHF Equity
• Reviewing and approving investments into joint ventures with
inner-city residential entrepreneurs
• Reviewing the performance of
approved joint venture investments
• Identifying significant risks
confronting joint venture investments and developing,
implementing and monitoring
appropriate risk management
reports
• Developing, implementing and
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MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEES

Management committees

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (MANCO)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (EXCO)
MEMBERS
P Jackson
I Roodt
L Netshitenzhe
B Cooke
S Govender
N Makwela
V Derrocks
R Jeffery

EXCO is responsible for the day-today activities of the Group and oversees various management committees. Committee members assist the
CEO and CFO to develop and implement the board-approved strategies,
operational plans, policies, procedures and budgets. It also assists in
dealing with all operational matters
affecting the Group.
Roles and responsibilities
The board has delegated TUHF’s
management to the CEO and oth-

MEMBERS

er members of EXCO. EXCO, under
the CEO’s leadership, is responsible
for the Group’s overall management
and, at a strategic level, its business.

•

Weekly meetings are scheduled
to:
• Assess and discuss key strategic
business issues, including liquidity and stakeholder relationships
• Review the Group’s balanced
scorecard and the implementation of strategic solutions
• Discuss progress on high-risk
projects identified, including litigation matters
• Assess all operational aspects
of projects, financing, development and implementation, including procedures for project
preparation and approval
• Ensure compliance with legislation, regulation and governance
codes, including King IV

Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
• Assessed the implementation
of the PMO key initiatives for
Group growth, including the information technology architecture, the review of business processes and the implementation
of the treasury architecture
• Assessed company resources
and reporting structures with
a focus on the operations and
information technology structures
• Supervised the staff change
management and the skills audit.

•

Discuss matters surrounding existing or required staff
Discuss views and perceptions
with funders and shareholders.

P Jackson
I Roodt
L Netshitenzhe
B Cooke
S Govender
N Makwela
V Derrocks
R Jeffery

LOANCO establishes the principles
of MANCO, clearly setting out its
purpose and functions.

Committee members are required
to keep up-to-date on relevant matters relating to loan and credit policies, systems and procedures, loan
applications and approvals, funding
requirements and sources, and financial covenant requirements.
LOANCO and Group directors have
unrestricted access to information
and documents from MANCO’s deliberations.

•

less than R10 million on a weekly basis
Recommending projects of a
value exceeding R10 million that
were submitted to LOANCO.

Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
The committee approved 102 loan
applications.

Roles and responsibilities
• Approving financing and guarantees of projects with a value of

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
MEMBERS
I Roodt (Chairperson)
B Cooke
K Chikomo
S Govender
P Jackson
R Jeffery
L Dube

The Risk Management Committee
is a management sub-committee of
the Audit and Risk Committee and is
responsible for enterprise-wide risk
management.
Roles and responsibilities
Reviewing risk management
policy and processes
• Ensuring risk management is
integrated into business operations
• Ensuring management considers
and implements appropriate risk
responses
• Evaluating the basis and adequacy of insurance cover

•

90

•
•
•
•

Ensuring internal audit is aligned
with risk management processes
Identifying emerging areas of
risks
Ensuring compliance with legislation, regulation and governance codes, including King IV
Identifying areas of governance
non-compliance and proposing
remedial action.

Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
• Developed a new approach to
risk management and drafted a
Risk Management Framework
that was recommended by the
Audit and Risk Committee to
the board and subsequently approved
• Is continuing to implement the
new approach, which involves
risk champions being responsible for risk identification and
assessment within their areas of
operations
• Is continuing to assess, monitor
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and manage risks covering general risk, market risk, treasury
risk and IT risk.
Planned focus areas are:
• Enhancing the risk management
framework and top-down methodologies
• Automating the risk management system and training the
champions
• Embedding risk management
within the business and developing an enhanced risk management culture
• Monitoring and reporting on any
reportable incidences arising
from the KPMG Hotline
• Developing and implementing a
POPIA Compliance Framework
to ensure POPIA compliance.
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GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONAL MATTER S

GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONAL MATTER S

Governance functional matters

Governance functional matters

GOVERNANCE OF RISK
The Audit and Risk Committee,
ALCO and Risk Management Committee identify, assess, measure and
manage those key risks that arise
from the Group’s business activities.
To this end, the committees continually review risks and establish mitigating internal controls. TUHF Ltd is
ultimately responsible for managing
risk in the Group and implements a
risk awareness culture.

IT FOCUS AREAS
• Building additional IT resourcing
and capacity within the organisation by expanding the TUHF
team with the appointment of
an IT executive and additional
resources such as business analysts.
• System security is always on the
agenda of all IT related forums.
New firewalls are installed continually at all the branches and
successfully passed a security
audit.
• The initial weakness in the testing of the disaster recovery
system was remedied and the
IT Policy and Disaster Recovery
Process were updated during the
year.

Effective risk management is key to
the Group’s success. Our business
strategy depends on our ability to
take calculated risks without compromising stakeholders’ interests.
We are mindful of the need for a
healthy balance between performance and acceptable risk levels.
The board approved a Risk Manage-

ment Framework which is implemented by management to ensure
effective and ongoing risk assessments and processes to anticipate
unpredictable risks.
The Risk Management process oversees financial reporting risks, internal financial control risks, market
risks, IT risks, reputational risks and
business risks including money laundering and compliance with industry
codes, controls and regulatory requirements.
Although the Audit and Risk Committee is accountable to the boards
of TUHF, each employee is responsible for risk management. Employees at all levels manage risks as part
of their daily operations and, each

quarter, the risk register is updated and submitted to the Risk Committee. The Chairperson of the Risk
Committee reports these to the Audit and Risk Committee. The committee reviews and submits the risk
register to the TUHF Group boards
with comments and recommendations. The Audit and Risk Committee
together with the internal auditor,
KPMG, maintain a rolling three-year
internal audit plan based on various
executive functions.
The Audit and Risk Committee is
satisfied that the risk management
processes and the adopted methodology are appropriate, effective and
sustainable.

Hambisana Technologies are an independent external service provider
and support the Group’s hardware
and software IT requirements, including system monitoring and logging.
AS-Tech are an independent external
service provider and support the development and configuration of the
Loan Cycle Management System on
Sage CRM.
The Group developed an industry-leading, bespoke Loan Cycle
Management System (LCMS) as
well as an accounts receivable module. The loan proposal for credit approval is purely system-generated,
based on data captured. LCMS uses
workflows to manage processes and
includes loan proposal, default man92

agement and portfolio management
capabilities. Reporting is continually
improved to meet management requirements and a data warehouse
has been developed for historic reports.
The system’s development is ongoing. Improvements are introduced
to meet any new requirements, and
optimise system processes and other enhancements, while ensuring the
necessary controls are in place and
compliance is maintained.
The system ensures information is
readily available so that the Group
continues to meet reporting and
governance requirements and enhances its product offering. Groupwide accountable and principled
business practices promote the ethical behaviour and quick decision
making among the boards, managers
and employees.
The Group uses the Kyriba Treasury
Management system from TreasuryONE to improve cash and liquidity
reporting and forecasting. ALCO
uses the reports generated by the
treasury management system.
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IT architecture was developed
during the year, focusing on:
• Business Architecture
(aligned with strategy)
• Application Architecture
• Data and Information
Architecture
• Technology and Infrastructure Architecture
• Security and Risk Management

•
•
•
•

collection of information
Processes and procedures for
conducting architecture work
A baseline (as is) architecture
across the domains mentioned
A target architecture across the
domains mentioned above
A repository for the collection,
analysis, evolution and sharing
of EA and Programme related
information.

Such capability includes:
A clear Enterprise Architecture
(EA) Mandate from the Executive
• An organisation structure and
resources to focus on EA
• A meta-model to structure the

•

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE

INFORMATION AND TECHNOLOGY GOVERNANCE
The Risk Committee is responsible
for all information and technology
risk management, and reports to the
Audit and Risk Committee. TUHF
has two main vendors – Hambisana
Technologies that provides infrastructure support and AS-Tech that
provides software development and
system reporting support.

•

To reduce risks associated with the
dependency on the IT infrastructure, the Group has an offsite disaster recovery system and this is
independently audited. An IT Management Committee assists in monitoring the IT risks, IT infrastructure,
compliance and alignment of IT with
the business strategy. All stakeholders are represented in the IT user
committee, which reports to the IT
Management Committee. An IT report is included in the board pack
to keep the board updated on IT developments. IT risks are monitored
against a risk matrix and reported to
the Risk Management Committee.

The Group’s Governance Framework
provides the compliance management framework. This framework
ensures effective and ongoing compliance assessments. It also ensures
processes to anticipate unpredictable compliance risks. The Audit
and Risk Committee and the Risk
Management Committee identify,
assess, measure and manage key

compliance risks that arise from the
Group’s applicable laws, binding and
non-binding rules, codes and standards to ensure that the Group is a
responsible corporate citizen.
A specialist outsourced compliance
consultant conducts a critical and
objective analysis of the Group’s
compliance policies and processes.

The internal auditors review TUHF’s
internal compliance controls.
There were no material or repeated regulatory penalties, sanctions
or fines for contraventions of, or
non-compliance with, statutory obligations imposed on the company
and any employees of the Group.

Planned focus areas include:

•

•

Reviewing
the
Regulatory
frameworks for all TUHF highrisk legislations to form part of
TUHF’s Compliance Manual
Reviewing the FICA Risk Management Compliance Programme

•
•

Ensuring
compliance
with
POPIA
Developing tools to ensure effective compliance reporting
and management by the Audit
and Risk Committee

STAKEHOLDER GOVERNANCE ENGAGEMENT
TUHF’s business is built around implementation and execution of
creating shared values in the areas effective stakeholder relationship
in which we operate and realising management has been delegated to
opportunities that drive impact the Social and Ethics Committee and
through scale, innovation and col- to management.
laboration. We are committed to
recognising and unearthing potential The Social and Ethics Committee
in inner cities, buildings and people oversees the implementation of the
and creating value for all our stake- Stakeholder Engagement Policy. The
holders in the areas of interest.
Group’s main stakeholders are clients, employees, funders, inner-city
The board exercises ongoing over- communities, regulators and govsight of stakeholder relationship ernment and municipalities. TUHF
management, but responsibility for communicates honestly and trans-

•

Drafting effective Compliance
Risk matrixes.

parently to enable stakeholders to
assess the Group’s economic value
and prospects.
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Audit and risk
committee
report
The audit and risk committee is
pleased to present its report to the
shareholders of TUHF Holdings Limited as required in terms of section
94(7) of the Companies Act 71 of
2008.
The committee has the financial and
commercial expertise and experience
to properly execute its duties and
responsibilities. The external audit
partner and representative of the internal auditors attend the meetings
by invitation. Both external and internal auditors present formal reports to the committee.
Duties and responsibilities
The committee’s duties and responsibilities are set out in the audit and
risk charter approved by the TUHF
Holdings Limited board and reviewed
annually, as well as in terms of the
Companies Act. The committee has
regulated its affairs in compliance
with this charter. The committee
assists the Group’s boards in discharging their fiduciary and corporate governance responsibilities in
relation to:
• the safeguarding of assets
• the operation of adequate systems and controls, including
business rescue plans
• the adequacy and effectiveness
of financial, audit, compliance

94

•
•
•
•

and IT-related matters
preparation of statutory financial reporting and statements
developing and sustaining the
Group’s compliance framework
and process
preparation of sustainability information
prioritising and ranking risks
facing the Group and understanding their causes and consequences.

A risk management committee,
chaired by the CFO and comprising
senior management, has been established to assist the committee in its
governance of risk management.
During the year under review, the
committee held three meetings.
The committee is satisfied with the
quality, effectiveness, independence
and objectivity of PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. as the external auditors.
The committee has approved PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. terms of
engagement and, in addition, has approved the fees paid to them.
At the annual general meeting held
on 29 September 2020, the committee proposed that PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. be the Group auditors
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•

•

•

•

for the 2021 financial year. This
appointment will comply with the
Companies Act.
Key focus areas and achievements
in the year
The committee examined the following matters during the financial
year:
• The reports of the external auditors for the 2019 financial
year-end, discussed in July 2019,
which dealt with:
• Impairment of advances
– IFRS 9 has been implemented since March 2019
• Credit risk investigation
and findings
• Investment of equity stake
in Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited
• IT general and application
control environment
• Corporate
governance
duties
• Monthly management accounts
and loan book analyses, quarterly funders’ reports for key
stakeholders, the annual financial statements and accounting
policies and integrated annual
report
• The development of work programmes to provide management with a broad understanding of the status of compliance

•

•

•

with higher-risk regulatory requirements
The development of a POPI
compliance project to comply
with applicable regulatory requirements
The reports of the internal audit
functions and recommendations
on the state of the Group’s internal financial controls, credit
risk management process and
portfolio management (Audits
of liquidity risk and market risk
management have been postponed to the forthcoming financial year)
The review of the external auditor’s March 2020 audit plan
highlighting key audit areas,
such as IFRS 9
The review of the internal audit
plan for the financial year ended March 2021, which will cover
liquidity risk management, market risk management, credit risk
management follow up, selected IT controls review and internal financial control review
The review of the annual financial statements and recommended it to the board for approval
Reports on the risk assessments
and risk management processes
in the Group and the exposure
to the following:
• Strategies and managing
processes for the IT Risk
Management framework
• Liquidity risk and progress
in the Jobs Fund programme
and the DMTN programme,
as well as negotiations with
current and potential new
funders
• Credit and solvency risks
and a continuous assessment that key ratios remain
within the dashboard indicators and funder covenants
• Market risk, the effect of
negative macro-economic
developments and the necessity of monitoring these
effects as the outcome becomes more certain
Operational and political risks.

The review of the application of the

King IV principles was assessed by
holding two workshops during the
2020 financial year. Some amendments and updates to the sub-committees’ terms of reference, governance policies and codes were made
to align them to recommended practices. Additional improvements will
continue to be introduced, such as
the changes to the audit and other
relevant committees in line with the
recommended practices.

the committee is satisfied that the
finance function requirements are
adequate and appropriate.

In discharging its responsibilities
during the year under review, the
committee has not found or become
aware of any material failures, irregularities or misstatements affecting
the Group’s internal controls, structures and systems. This includes financial controls, accounting policies
and controls, and reporting, incorporating the maintenance and improvement of accounting and control systems.

Chief financial officer
The committee has, under review,
affirmed that Ms. Ilona Roodt has
the expertise and experience to undertake the duties and responsibilities of the chief financial officer.

Internal auditor
The committee has evaluated the
role, independence and effectiveness
of the internal auditor, KPMG, and
is satisfied that their performance
meets requirements of the Group’s
risk management system.
Statutory reporting
The committee has evaluated the
consolidated and separate annual
financial statements of the group
for the year ended 31 March 2020.
Based on the information provided
to the committee, it is of the opinion that the group complies in all respects with the requirements of the
Companies Act, the International
Financial Reporting Standards and all
other applicable legislation.
Internal financial functions
The Group’s board has delegated the
responsibility for the oversight of
the financial reporting to the committee. The committee has taken
responsibility for the governance of
financial reporting, internal and external audits, and internal controls
and policies.
The competency, skills and resources
of the finance function required by
the Group have been assessed, and

The committee is satisfied that the
internal controls of the Group operated effectively during the year ended 31 March 2020. The committee
also provides reasonable assurance
that the financial records for the
preparation of the annual financial
statements can be relied upon.

Company secretary
The committee has satisfied itself
that the company secretary, Kilgetty
Statutory Services Proprietary Limited, has the appropriate competence
and experience and will maintain an
arm’s-length relationship with directors.
King IV register
The application of the King IV Code
is undertaken by the Group and disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements of TUHF Limited and
TUHF Holdings Limited, and in the
TUHF21 NPC Integrated Annual Report, which can be found on tuhf.
co.za.
Recommendation of the annual
financial statements
The committee has fulfilled its oversight role regarding the reporting
process for the consolidated and
separate annual financial statements
and, being satisfied with the integrity
of this report, recommends that the
annual financial statements be approved by the board of directors.

Robert Emslie
Chairman, Audit Committee
29 September 2020
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GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONAL MATTER S

SOCIAL AND ETH ICS COMMITTEE REPORT

Social and
ethics
committee
report

The terms of reference task the committee to monitor the Group’s activities with regard to:

•

Social and economic development, including:
• The United Nations Global Compact Principles and
Sustainable Development
Goals
• The Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development regarding the
prevention of corruption
• The International Labour
Organisation’s decent work
agenda
• The Employment Equity
Act
• The Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act

MEMBERSHIP
The committee comprises
following members:
• Jill Strelitz (Chairperson)
• James Howard
• Ilona Roodt
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The Social and Ethics Committee is a
statutory committee of TUHF that is
responsible for the statutory duties
as required by section 72(4) of the
Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008, as
amended (Companies Act) (read in
conjunction with Regulation 43 of
the Companies Regulations, 2011)
together with such other duties assigned to it by the boards and TUHF’s
holding and subsidiary companies.

ant principles that the Group adheres
to and summarises how the various
activities are handled without issues
being overlooked. A monitoring report is presented during every committee meeting to ensure that the
committee activities are aligned to
the workplan. The committee will
review the workplan from time to
time to ensure that it is relevant to
its mandate at all times.

The committee has an approved
workplan which clarifies the import-

King IV has made the Social and
Ethics Committee more relevant by
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having an ethical focus and it recommends that the committee upholds,
monitors and reports on organisational ethics, responsible corporate
citizenship, development and stakeholder inclusivity beyond mere compliance and towards value creation.

•

•

the

•
•

The Consumer Protection
Act
• Those regulatory acts and
industrial charters relevant
to the Group’s business.
Good corporate citizenship,
including:
• Promoting equality
• Fair and non-discriminatory practices
• Preventing corruption
• Contributing to the development of communities.
• Job creation
• Consumer relationships
• Compliance with consumer
protection laws

in ensuring that the committee
governs and manages its corporate citizenship responsibilities
Implemented the CSI Policy
Conducted the evaluation of the
board with the Company Secretary and noted the need to
change the evaluation process
as well as the board’s areas for
improvement
Monitored the implementation
of B-BBEE recommendations to
ensure compliance and accreditation.

Senior management and the external
HR consultant attend all meetings by
invitation. During the 2020 financial
year, the committee held two meetings. The committee Chairperson attends the AGM to answer any questions that shareholders may have.

•

Key focus areas and achievements
• Completed the 2020 work plan,
clearly setting out specific social
and ethics matters for which the
board and management committees are responsible
• Approved regular reports on
social and ethics matters from
the board and management
committees, as a critical step

Planned focus areas include:
• Continuing to oversee stakeholder engagement and value
creation
• Focusing on achieving impact
for impact funders
• Improving TUHF’s public profile
• Monitoring the update of company internal policies
• Overseeing King IV Compliance.

•
•
•
•

•

Record of donations
Charitable giving.

Health and safety for employees
and the public, including the impact of the Group’s activities
The Group’s employment relationships and its contribution
to the training and educational
development of its employees,
performance evaluations, board
effectiveness and adherence to
the Code of Ethics and Business
Conduct.
The environment, including
greening and waste management.

CONCLUSION
The roles, functions and responsibilities of the Social and Ethics Committee covers non-financial activities
that have a broad scope. To contribute to the Group’s success and sustainability, committee members are
required to understand the terms
of reference clearly. To this end, the
committee will rely on executive
management’s reporting systems
and processes to produce the information the members require to discharge their duties.

Samson Moraba		
Chairperson
29 September 2020
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CSI investment
in Jeppestown
In addition to the social and economic impacts we achieve through our commercial investments, as a responsible corporate citizen we are committed to
contributing part of our net profit after tax each year towards CSI initiatives.
TUHF pursues initiatives that make
a positive and sustainable impact on
the quality of life of those communities in which we operate. This we
do through innovative and mutually
beneficial partnerships with all relevant stakeholders.
One example is our investment in
Streetlight Schools’ flagship – Jeppe
Park Primary. “Jeppe Park Primary
fully embodies the concept of impact through scale,” says Lusanda
Netshitenzhe, Development Impact
Executive at TUHF.
“It has not only converted a disused
shoe factory into a globally competitive school that provides quality
education in one of the most underserved communities in South Africa.
It has also integrated with the local

community so extensively as to have
a far-reaching impact on the surrounding area.”
CREATING LOCAL OPPORTUNITY
For example, the professional team
involved in designing and building
the school’s facilities sourced much
of the construction and fitout materials used in the primary school
campus, as well as a third of the construction team, from within a 200m
radius.
In addition, much of the school’s
teaching staff share similar backgrounds to the learners and have
been trained by Star Schools to enter
the teaching profession for the first
time.
These two examples have created

work opportunities for Jeppestown
residents and involved the local
community in the school’s development every step of the way.

“Jeppe Park Primary fully embodies the concept
of impact through scale.”

The school’s presence also played
a key role in the refurbishment of
Jeppe Park across the road, where
the community and municipality
got involved to improve safety for
the children, most of whom walk to
school and back.

through its CSI fund, the school had
grown to 261 learners from Grade R
to 4.

the demand at the early stages, so
that Jeppe Park Primary now caters
for 350 learners in total.

The school has grown with its pupils.
“We started with just 70 Grade R
learners in 2016, and we’ve grown
a grade every year,” says David Fu,
CEO of Streetlight Schools.

TUHF’s grant of R 150 000 has funded the addition of two new Grade 5
classes, allowing 2019’s Grade 4s to
move on to their next year of education at the school.

GROWING BY GRADE
In 2018, when Streetlight Schools
approached TUHF for a grant

The grant also allowed for the addition of a third Grade 1 class to meet

This isn’t TUHF’s first contribution to Jeppe Park Primary’s development. “In the early days, TUHF
helped us build the playground, both
in the form of materials donated and
time from a number of employees,”
Fu confirms.

Location

CSI Programme
Configuration
upon completion
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Jeppe Park Primary aims to grow to
500 learners, doubling its impact in
the community and beyond.

Gus Street, Jeppestown,
Johannesburg

TUHF product
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FUTURE ASPIRATIONS
The school’s future includes five
more classrooms, indoor play courtyards, additional bathrooms and a
staff room for middle school teachers, as well as expansions to the library and a new computer room.

Original
configuration
Disused shoe factory, adjacent
to existing school premises

2

additional
classrooms
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The
remuneration
report

The committee was established to:

•
•
•

•
•

•

100

performance. The system uses the
balanced scorecard approach. Performance contracts are developed
annually to align with the overall
strategy and organisational balanced
scorecard.

BACKGROUND STATEMENT
Our Remuneration Philosophy
In line with our strategy, the remuneration philosophy and policies recognise the importance of our people
in the continued growth and sustainability of the Group and its overall
performance.

Internal and External Factors Influencing Remuneration
The company ensures that there is
internal pay parity throughout the
Group and develops a wage curve
annually that is informed by market
related data. This ensures that the
company remunerates in line with
the market, which assists in ensuring the retention of employees and
sustainability within the Group. Although the wage curve is considered
in salary increases, such increases are
mainly informed by performance, affordability and the market.

TUHF’s remuneration philosophy
includes the principle of rewarding
individuals in direct proportion to
their contribution towards their specific job objectives, and the degree
to which they contribute to meeting overall organisational goals. A
TUHF performance management
system is used to monitor and assess

Shareholder Voting on the Remuneration Policy and the Implementation Report
The remuneration policy and implementation report are put to separate, non-binding advisory votes
at the company’s Annual General
Meeting, in line with King IV. During
the 2019 AGM, held on 25 July 2019,
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the shareholders unanimously voted
in favour of the Remuneration Policy and the Implementation Report.
In the event that either the policy
and/or implementation report is
voted against by 25% or more of
the votes exercised, REMCO will actively engage with shareholders and
report back on the outcomes as well
as any corrective measures taken. In
the event that either the policy or
the implementation report, or both,
are voted against by 25% or more of
the votes exercised, TUHF will issue
an invitation to engage in a dialogue
in its voting results announcements
following the AGM.
OVERVIEW OF THE REMUNERATION POLICY
REMCO
The board has delegated the duties
and responsibilities relating to remuneration decisions to REMCO. The
committee is guided by the Remuneration Policy, the REMCO’s terms
of reference and the HR Policy and
Procedure manual. These policies
and the terms of reference define
the objectives of the committee and
the required operating procedure, as
well as the committee’s responsibilities and functions.

•
•

edge and reward performance
and skill
Promote an ethical culture
and responsible corporate citizenship
Comply with regulatory requirements and governance.

The committee assists the boards in discharging their duties and, therefore, oversees, reviews and recommends
objectives relating to:

•
REMCO is responsible for setting the
direction for the Group with regards
to remuneration and remuneration
reporting. This report has three parts:
1. The background statement,
which provides feedback on factors that influence the remuneration policy and the future focus
areas.
2. The overview of the Remuneration Policy
3. The illustration of how the remuneration policy was implemented over the financial year.

Attract, motivate, reward and
retain human capital
Ensure that remuneration
policies support the Group’s
strategic goals
Maximise individual qualities
and potential, and acknowl-

Recognising that individual
strengths contribute towards a
successful organization
Ensuring that all employees are
fairly and equitably rewarded
and understand how salaries are
determined
Rewarding management fairly
and responsibly
Ensuring that Executive and
Non-executive directors’ remuneration aligns with best prac-

In line with its terms of reference,
remuneration policy, best practices and feedback received from
stakeholders, REMCO continually
evaluates the remuneration policy.
REMCO and management review
employee remuneration and benefits
continuously, considering fairness,
reasonability and key management
remuneration.
A key component of the policy is the
management of remuneration parity
and fairness. REMCO believes that
the remuneration policy supports
the company’s short- and long-term
strategy and that the policy achieved
its stated objectives.
REMUNERATION POLICY OBJECTIVES
Recognising that individual strengths
contribute towards successful organisations, TUHF is committed to the
principle of a flat and lean organisational structure that maximises individual qualities and potential, and
acknowledges and rewards performance and skill.

•
•
•

tice and governance principles,
and with the benchmark set by
companies of similar size and
standing
Ensuring, as far as possible, that
people with the required skills
are recruited
Creating a strong, performance-orientated environment
Ensuring that remuneration
packages, including benefits,
are competitive with the market

Its remuneration objectives are:
Ensuring that all staff are fairly
and equitably rewarded, according to a systematic set of principles
• Ensuring that all staff understand how salaries are determined
• Ensuring that TUHF is able to attract and retain skilled resources
• Ensuring that remuneration
packages are competitive with
the market and similar organisations, and that overall market
trends and practices are considered and reviewed on a regular
basis in line with the organisational strategy and risk profile
• Recognising and rewarding individual contribution in overall organisational success within the
team approach
• Ensuring that remuneration
packages are structured with
maximum individual flexibility,
and as much tax efficiency as
current legislation allows
• Ensuring that employees operate as good corporate citizens.

•

•
•
•

and similar organisations, and
that overall market trends and
practices are considered and reviewed regularly
Selecting and structuring employer share schemes
Maintaining HR policies and procedures
Reviewing what is expected of
employees.

FRAMEWORK FOR PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT
REMCO monitors and assesses the
CEO’s performance. It also reviews
and confirms the CFO’s performance. Employee performance for
all employees during the year is assessed using the TUHF performance
management system. Performance
contracts are developed annually
and are reviewed in the trimester
performance evaluation discussions.
Within the system, job profiles are
created and agreed to by the job incumbent. Performance contracts are
developed considering both the job
profile and the organisational performance indicators. Performance
is assessed and monitored monthly through one-on-one discussions
between the individual employee
and their manager. Employee performance is reviewed and evaluated
three times a year. These reviews inform the trimester incentives.
The overall performance rating determines the participation in the annual bonus awarded by the committee. The resulting overall rating will
also inform the annual salary review.
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The key principles of the incentive
philosophy capture and embody
the Group’s remuneration policy.
The primary objectives of these
key principles are that:
• Incentives are based on actual,
measurable performance in the
Group
• Incentives for performance are
holistic and do not only incentivise volume and quantitative
measures but include qualitative
measures
• Teams and individuals are rewarded frequently to support
performance
• The system is closely aligned
to, and integrated with, the balanced scorecard and overall performance management
• The Group strongly incentivises
performance.
To achieve the objectives of the
incentive policy, the committee
creates a budgeted incentive pool
each year. The incentive pool has
two clear components comprising a
fixed portion that is allocated to the
individual incentives, and a variable
portion that is allocated to the teambased award.
Incentive award is determined as a
performance percentage against the
performance contract signed by the
employee at the beginning of the
financial year. The award is paid in
three tranches over the year.
In establishing the team-based
award, the committee determines
the overall performance of the
Group against the corporate balanced scorecard. This award is a
percentage of the current salary
bill, of which 40% is allocated as
the team-based component of the
award and 60% is allocated as an incentive determined by the employee’s performance rating achieved
at the end of the financial year.
TUHF HOLDINGS CONDITIONAL SHARE PLAN (CSP)
The CSP has been established to provide employees an opportunity to
benefit from the growth in value of
the TUHF Group in the medium and
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long term, and incentivising current
and prospective employees. Originally, it was established to recognise
services rendered, and all employees
participated in this plan. This has
been changed under the new CSP
and the Rules of the new CSP were
approved by the board on 3 October
2019.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
TUHF executive directors do not
have a fixed term contract but are
employed in terms of a standard
contract of employment. The notice
period for termination of service is
a standard one month’s notice and
there are approved succession plans
in place.

Summary of the Conditions of the
New CSP
TUHF Holdings Limited was authorised to grant awards vesting in
shares which will not exceed 10% of
the Company’s issued Shares from
time to time.
The awards will only be granted to
“line of sight employees”, defined
as employees whose duties require
them to have an overall understanding of, and responsibility for, TUHF’s
goals and core strategies. This includes all executive directors holding
salaried employment or office, of the
Employer Company, as determined
from time to time by the board in
its absolute discretion but excluding
any non-executive director.

Normal retirement age ranges from
60 to 65 years. No additional payments are made to executive directors upon termination of employment, apart from those required in
terms of the labour laws, and they
do not receive any sign-on bonuses.
REMCO determines Executive Directors’ remuneration and reports
to the board. Executive Directors’
remuneration is aligned to measurable performance criteria, which are
aligned with the strategy and objectives of the Group. The appropriateness of the executive remuneration
is informed by benchmarking remuneration for the CEO and the CFO
against executives in similar sized
organisations.

The granting of Conditional Awards
Shares will be based primarily on salary grade, individual performance,
retention of required calibre employees and market benchmarks.
The overall conditional awards to
be granted will also take into consideration circumstances such as
company performance, retaining the
required calibre employee and company affordability.

Market related data is sourced from
the Deloitte Executive Salary Survey.
Remuneration is reviewed both in
terms of guaranteed remuneration
and total remuneration including
incentives. Annual increases and incentive bonuses for Executives are
directly informed by performance
both at an individual and an organisational level. This ensures that remuneration and incentive awards are
directly influenced and aligned to
performance.

The grants of conditional awards that
are made to the selected employees shall vest in the shares awarded
after a performance period of five
years commencing on the date of the
grant award. These grants are subject
to the performance conditions being
achieved.
The rules allow for both cliff and
staggered vesting. Cliff vesting, as
agreed to by the board and REMCO, will apply to the CEOs shares.
Staggered vesting will apply to all
the employees for a five-year period, starting from 2019 with the first
vesting year being 2021.
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Executive Directors are paid a shortterm incentive designed to reward
performance.
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Non-Executive Directors do not receive short- or long-term incentives.
They are paid an annual fee for their
services. The fees that they are paid
are in relation to attendance fees for
each board or committee meeting
they attend, including a fee for each
round robin event they are required
to act in other than a meeting. These
fees are reviewed and decided on by

REMCO annually, and reported to
the board subject to a special resolution approved by the shareholders
of TUHF.
The quarterly payment of the basic
Non-Executive Directors’ fee is subject to the director attending 60%
of the meetings convened in the
quarter for which payment is made.
Non-Executive Directors are entitled
to subsistence and travel allowances
at the rates indicated in the financial
management and administration
manual. Any non-director appointed
to a board committee is remunerated on the same basis as a Non-Executive Director. Alternate directors
will not be paid attendance fees but
are entitled to subsistence and travel
allowances.

During the year, no outside remuneration consultant was employed.
Remuneration levels were referenced
with market related information that
is available.
PLANNED FOCUS AREAS FOR
THE YEAR
• Approval and implementation of
the updated CSP
• Achievement of the TUHF
Group long-term indicators.
The committee is satisfied that it was
independent and objective in carrying out its mandate. The committee
is also satisfied that it achieved the
primary objectives of the key principles of the remuneration policy.

Implementation report
This part of the report provides insight into the implementation of our remuneration policy during the year ended
31 March 2020. It details the remuneration paid to both executive and non-executive directors.
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Cash
component

Bonus

Provident
fund

Other

Total

Paul Jackson

2 908 858

2 600 000

539 744

535 699

6 584 301

Ilona Roodt

1 869 243

900 000

322 961

139 732

3 231 936

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Apr 2019

Jun 2019

Oct 2019

Dec 2019

Mar 2020

Total

Samson Moraba

47,250

80,000

146,000

78,000

80,000

431,250

Robert Emslie

41,650

161,300

182,700

160,700

121,700

668,050

Taffy Adler

41,650

105,900

108,700

160,700

95,700

512,650

James Howard

35,250

59,500

48,500

81,500

63,500

288,250

Jill Strelitz

35,250

63,500

70,500

85,500

70,500

325,250

Rubeena Solomon

35,200

48,500

PIC

83,700
37,500

37,500

Belinda Mapongwana

75,000
48,500

48,500

Luthando Vutula

35,250

81,500

59,500

51,900

37,500

265,650

Justina Kokodi

35,250

74,500

59,500

74,500

37500

281,250

Cassim Coovadia

41,650

153,900

183,700

214,700

132,700

726,650
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The directors are required in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 to maintain adequate accounting records and
are responsible for the content and integrity of the annual financial statements and related financial information
included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the annual financial statements fairly present the state
of affairs of the group as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period
then ended, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The external auditor is engaged to
express an independent opinion on the annual financial statements.
The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and are
based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the group and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the
directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing
the risk of error or loss in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities
within a clearly defined framework , effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an
acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the group and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the group’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the group is on identifying, assessing, managing
and monitoring all known forms of risk across the group. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the group
endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behaviour are
applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion , based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system
of internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the group’s cash flow forecast for the year to 31 March 2021 and, in light of this review
and the current financial position, they are satisfied that the group has or had access to adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future.
The external auditor is responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the group’s annual financial statements. The annual financial statements have been examined by the group’s external auditor and their report is presented on pages 9 to 11.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 12 to 68, which have been prepared on the going concern basis ,
were approved by the board of directors on 29 September 2020 and were signed on their behalf by:

Samson Moraba		
Chairperson

Paul Jackson		
Chief Executive Officer

29 September 2020

106

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

107

T UHF21 NPC (REGIS TRATION NUMBER 1993/000217/08)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR END ED 31 MARCH 2020

T UHF21 NPC (REGIS TRATION NUMBER 1993/000217/08)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR END ED 31 MARCH 2020

Company secretary’s certification

Directors’ report

In terms of Section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008, as amended, I certify that the group has lodged with
the Commissioner all such returns as are required of a public company in terms of the Act and that all such returns
are true, correct and up to date.

The directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the annual financial statements of TUHF21 NPC and it’s
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2020.
1.

Incorporation
The company was incorporated in South Africa on 18 January 1993 and obtained its certificate to commence
business on the same day.

2.

Nature of business
The main business of the company is to invest in subsidiary companies whose main business is to provide commercial property finance in the form of bridging, equity finance and long term loans secured by
mortgage collateral and other financial products to finance entrepreneurs and landlords for the purchase,
construction and improvement of property for the purpose of the regeneration of South African inner city
precincts and surrounding suburbs showing indications of decline where the primary objective is the supplying of housing and associated commercial property for rental stock.

Matthew Wray 		
for and on behalf of
Kilgetty Statutory Services (Pty) Ltd
Johannesburg
29 September 2020

The group operates in a very narrow segment of funding. There are no clearly distinguishable segments within the business. As such no segmental information has been provided.
There have been no material changes to the nature of the group’s business from the prior year.
3.

Review of financial results and activities
The consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 71 of 2008. The accounting policies have
been applied consistently compared to the prior year, except for the adoption of new or revised accounting
standards as set out in note 2.
Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the group are set out in these
consolidated annual financial statements.

4.

Conditional share plan
The Group has a Conditional Share Plan (CSP) from which conditional share and cash awards are granted to
senior employees and junior employees respectively of TUHF Limited.
The awards granted are subject to a performance management system and are measured over a three year
performance period. The performance conditions of the awards are determined by the management of the
employing companies (presently only TUHF Ltd) for each of the performance years by means of a performance management assessment (Performance Contract).
For each of the financial years covering the performance period, the performance level of the Performance
Contract will be reviewed. At the end of the performance periods the Performance Contract will be finalised.
The Group’s Remuneration Committee, together with the management of TUHF Limited, will examine the
extent to which performance conditions have been satisfied and determine the awards that employees will
be entitled to. The awards decided upon will be vested over a period of three years in equal numbers.

During the year under review, the following transactions took place:
Conditional awards granted

5 234 292

Conditional awards vested
Conditional awards purchased

8 747
41 899

43 454

Total shares vested

2 668 297

2 710 176

Treasury shares held by TUHF Limited

1 997 621

1 955 747

As at 31 March
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5.

Directors’ report

Directorate
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows:
Directors

Designation

SS Moraba

Non-executive

T Adler

Non-executive

C Coovadia

Non-executive

PGN Jackson

Executive

JK Mamatela

Non-executive

JS Strelitz

Non-executive

IL Roodt

Executive

LN Netshitenzhe

Executive

6.

Borrowing powers
In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation, the borrowing powers of the group are unlimited. However
all borrowings by the group are subject to board approval as required by the board delegation of authority.

7.

Special resolutions
No special resolutions, the nature of which might be significant to the shareholder in their appreciation of
the state of affairs of the group were made by the group or any of its subsidiaries during the period covered
by this report.

8.

Events after the reporting period
The Covid-19 pandemic is an adjusting post balance sheet event for TUHF21 NPC. Refer to note 40 for
details.

9.

Funding
A revolving 3-year R 400 million warehouse funding facility from Futuregrowth Asset Management Proprietary Limited, acting as agent for various lenders, was approved to be used over three years. The facility
is currently in its third year and R 350 million of the facility was repaid in the first quarter of 2020, but the
repayment of the remaining R 50 million is currently being re-negotiated.
The warehouse facility was used to originate assets for the listed Domestic Medium Note Program. The R
280 million Domestic Medium-Term Note program matured in January 2020 and was extended to October
2024. The note program remains listed.
During the year under review the company secured the following funding facilities :
• R 60 million National Housing Finance Corporation
• R 100 million Taquanta Asset Management
• R 60 million Small Enterprise FinanceAgency
A securitisation funding structure raising R 500 million was implemented in December 2018. A further tap
assistance of R150 million was raised in October 2019. TUHF Limited is the originator in this capital market
scheme and retains the role of servicer and administrator. The issuer, TUHF Urban Finance (RF) Limited is a
bankruptcy remote company, independently owned by the TUHF Urban Finance Owner Trust.
A senior revolving facility for R 700 million was put in place with Standard Bank of South Africa Limited in
January 2020 in a bankruptcy remote company which uses the funding to acquire assets from TUHF Limited.
TUHF Limited is the originator in this capital market scheme and retains the role of servicer and
administrator Vuselela Warehouse SPV (RF) Proprietary Limited is a bankruptcy remote company, inde-

110

T UHF21 NPC (REGIS TRATION NUMBER 1993/000217/08)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR END ED 31 MARCH 2020

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

pendently owned by the Vuselela Warehouse Owner Trust. As at the end of March 2020, the company had
acquired assets to the value of R 437 million. The acquisitions were funded by R 387 million drawdown from
the Standard Bank warehouse and a R 50 million subordinated loan from TUHF Limited. The facility remains
active and at year end R 387 million was committed under the Bank Warehouse.
The liquidity mismatch pertaining to the period up to five years after reporting date will be managed by
refinancing interest bearing liabilities . Refer to note 9 for the maturity analysis relating to advances . Refer
to the Liquidity risk note for the calculation of the liquidity mismatch.
10.

Material uncertainties relating to the going concern
In determining the appropriateness of the use of the going concern assumption, the directors are required
to consider whether the company and group can continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future. We
draw attention to the fact that there are material uncertainties relating to the going concern assumption
which is disclosed in note 39.
The directors believe that the group has adequate financial resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future and accordingly the consolidated annual financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The directors have satisfied themselves that the group is in a sound financial position and
that it has access to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements. The directors
are not aware of any new material changes that may adversely impact the group. The directors are also not
aware of any material non-compliance with statutory or regulatory requirements or of any pending changes
to legislation which may affect the group.

11.

Support programme for social housing
The Company continues to act as agent for and on behalf of the National Housing Finance Corporation SOC
Limited and its representative in respect of a social housing programm e funding in the sum of R 23.1 million
originated from the Commission of the European Community.

12.

Equity funding
Supporting emerging entrepreneurs who qualify for debt support in the form of variable interest subordinated loans continues to remain one of the principles of the Company’s lending approach.

13.

Members’ funds
The Company is a non-profit company and there are no members’ funds vested.

14.

Subsidiary companies
Information regarding the Company’s interest in companies whose business is to provide commercial property finance to entrepreneusr and landlords for the purchase of property for the purpose of the regeneration of
South African inner cities can be found under note 13.

15.

Borrowing powers
Borrowing capacity is determined by the directors in terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation, from time
to time.
Debt capital (interest bearing debt/ interest bearing debt plus capital and reserves) of the Group must be
90% or below. For the current year debt capital was 85%.
The company’s subsidiary, TUHF Limited issued listed notes on the JSE Limited amounting to R 280 million
in January 2017. TUHF Holdings Limited is the guarantor in this structure. The issued notes are secured by
loan assets with a book value of R 330 million and an underlying collateral value of approximately R 625
million. The notes were re-issued for a further period in January 2020 with a maturing date of October 2024.
The covenants achieved on issue date and at year end:
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• Loan to value ratio of 67.5%
• Concentration of top 5 assets < 35%
• Pool and Group debt service coverage ratio 1.1
TUHF Limited reports to investors every six months, in September and March of each year. TUHF Limited can
substitute assets where covenants are not met with other qualifying assets. At the 2020 year end no events
of default were reported but the arrears exceeded the 10% covenant by 0.97% and was reported to the
investor. At the 2020 year end no events of default were reported but the arrears on TUHF Limited company
level exceeded the 10% covenant by 0.97% and was reported to the investor. During the year, the average
arrears was at 13% but reduced to 10.97% as at year end. In addition, TUHF Limited also breached its cost to
income ratio covenant of 65% by 10% as required by certain funder loan agreements.
TUHF Limited has received condonation from National Housing Financing Corporation SOC Limited (NHFC),
Futuregrowth on behalf of OMLACSA and Sanlam Investment Managers (SIM) regarding the covenant
breach following year end. This is also evidenced in the ongoing support of the business by not calling on the
facilities for payment despite the covenant breach , the extension of the terms of existing facilities, payment
concessions granted by all balance sheet funders from April to September and the approval of additional
injection of funds by Futuregrowth and the NHFC of R 55 million in the form of a subordinated shareholders
loan. At the date of the approval of the financial statements, the legal contracts are still outstanding.
The group has a listed, rated securitisation structure that has performed well to date during the Covid-19
pandemic with no covenant or trigger breaches reported. This will positively impact the group’s ability to
continue to access funds through the capital markets as capital markets open.
16.

Preparation of financial statements
The consolidated financial statements together with the accounting policies applied for the year under
review were prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The Annual Financial Statements were independently
compiled by Lulic Mosoane BAP (SA) - Winsome Africa with Ilona Roodt CA (SA) performing the management review.

17.

Management agreement
In September 2009 the Company entered into a management agreement with TUHF Limited in terms
of which TUHF Limited will provide management and administrative services necessary, incidental and
ancillary to satisfy the ongoing commercially reasonable requirements for the Company including, but not
limited to secretarial services, accounting services, banking services, administrative services, corporate
governance services, social and ethic management, strategy planning and reporting services and statutory
reporting services.
The board agreed to delegate the corporate governance functions, decisions and applications to the board of
TUHF Limited The directors of TUHF Limited will however be subject to instructions from the board, to the
Company’s Memorandums of Incorporation and be required to safeguard, at all times, the interests of the
Company when implementing the obligations and duties set out in the management agreement.
The board of TUHF Limited will therefore respect the fiduciary duties of this board.
The implementation and adoption of policies, processes and procedures of TUHF Limited will be considered
and approved by this board as a signatory to the management agreement.
A formally documented and approved Board Charter outlines the scope of authority, responsibilities, powers
and functioning of the TUHF Limited board. This charter is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that it
remains relevant and in line with governance best practice.

18.
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Directors’ report
of the non-distributable reserves would be available to all shareholders.
19.

Secretary
The company secretary is Kilgetty Statutory Services Proprietary Limited.

20.

Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. continued in office as auditors for the company and its subsidiaries for 2020.
At the AGM, the shareholders will be requested to reappoint PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc. as the independent external auditors of the company until 31 December 2020. This would allow for the conclusion of a
tender process where the appointment of the external auditors will be invited and considered. PWC will be
invited to tender in this process.

Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of TUHF21 NPC
OUR OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of TUHF21 NPC (the Company) and its subsidiaries
(together the Group) as at 31 March 2020, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and
its consolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.
What we have audited
TUHF21 NPC’s consolidated and separate financial statements set out on pages 12 to 68 comprise:
• the consolidated and separate statements of financial position as at 31 March 2020;
• the consolidated and separate statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then
ended;
• the consolidated and separate statements of changes in equity for the year then ended;
• the consolidated and separate statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and
• the notes to the financial statements, which include a summmy of significant accounting policies.
BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate
financial statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the sections 290 and 291 of the Independent Regulatory Board
for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised January 2018), parts 1 and 3 of the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors ‘ Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (Revised November
2018) (together the IRBA Codes) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of financial
statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities, as applicable, in accordance with the
IRBA Codes and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The
IRBA Codes are consistent with the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants and the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) respectively.

Non-controlling shareholders share of reserves
The amount reflected on the statement of financial position as the portion attributable to non-controlling
shareholders is stated assuming that the Group is a going concern. On liquidation it is noted that the portion
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Independent auditor’s report

Independent auditor’s report

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING TO GOING CONCERN

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s and the Company’s internal control.
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s rep01t to the related disclosures in
the consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group and / or Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the group audit . We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
• We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We draw attention to Note 39 in the consolidated and separate financial statements, which indicates that the Group
is heavily dependent on the intention and the ability of its funders to either grant new funding or to refinance existing facilities that are due for repayment in the next 12 months in order to fund the liquidity mismatch in the next 12
months. As stated in Note 39, these events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth in Note 39, indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
OTHER INFORMATION
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other info1·mation comprises the information included
in the document titled “TUHF21 NPCAnnualfinancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020”, which includes
the Company Secretary’s Certification and the Directors’ Report as required by the Companies Act of South Africa.
The other information does not include the consolidated or the separate financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies
Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group
and the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group and/or the
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Inc.
Director: Gino Fraser
Registered Auditor
Johannesburg
30 September 2020

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED AND SEPARATE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report tliat
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it e.·<ists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate financial statements.
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Statements of financial position as at 31 March 2020
Group
Note(s)

Company

2019

2020

2019

77 833

284 547

Figures in Rand

Note{s)

Interest income

7

107 995 979

92 368 020

Money market assets

8

4 308 934

44 406 460

11 739 546

5 654 612

679 445

867 915

3 606 105 278

3 077 270 454

-

4 826 192

Loans and advances

9

Other assets

10

5 885 387

Properties in possession

11

11 400 000

Loans to group companies and related
parties

12

46 359 310

31 975 185

71 962 334

40 281 770

Investments in subsidiaries

13

-

-

26 333 534

26 333 534

InvestmentsIn joint ventures

14

4 699 154

2 963 381

Unlisted investments

15

24 573 001

23 770 113

Equipment

16

1 928 347

2 119 114

Right-of-use assets

17

8 258 342

Intangible assets

18

4 785 034

11 184 330

313

9 508

5 204 194

19

Total assets

27 796 576

24 674 399

592 414

58 637

3 865 834 888

3 321 590 262

99 645 873

77 942144

2019
Restated

2020

2019

25

477 684 854

401 862 025

1 742 301

1 851 505

Interest expenses

26

(300 827 379)

(244 423 191)

(805 769)

(816 281)

Expected credit losses

27

(45 290 414)

(26 383 213)

(3 375 205)

(149 713)

Gains (losses) arising from
derecognised financial asset measured
at amortised cost

(12 740 112)

Income from lending activities

118 826 949

131 055 621

(2 438 673)

885 511

10 121 901

7 851 017

1 565 500

7 173 498

Non-interest income

28

Other operating gains

29

802 888

1 166 782

Other operating expenses

30

(123 865 352)

(92 549 441)

(1 890 168)

(4 500 409)

Operating profit (loss)

27

5 886 386

47 523 979

(2 763 341)

3 558 600

Investment income

32

5 977 446

5 225 509

11 863 832

52 749 488

(2 763 341)

3 658 600

33

(3 716 562)

(15 390 855)

102 272

468 899

8147 270

37 358 633

(2 661 069)

4 027 499

2 716 592

12 272 312

(2 661 069}

4 027 499

5 430 678

25 086 321

8 147 270

37 358 633

(2 661 069)

4 027 499

(2 661 069)

4 027 499

(2 661 069)

4 027 499

Taxation
Total comprehensive Income (loss)
for the year

Equity and Liabilities

Profit (loss) attributable to:

Equity

Owners of the parent

Equity Attributable to Equity Holders of
Parent

Non-controlling interest

Owners' reserves

113 033 777

108 413 966

48 693 441

51 354 510

166 886 154

35 541 651

9 386 395

Non-distributable reserves

20

193 041 410

Share based payment reserve

24

6 997 098

Equity development fund reserve
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income (loss)
attributable to:
Owners of the parent

(1 556 585)

556 666

311 515 700

275 856 786

222 618 788

217 188 110

534 134 488

Non-controlling interest
84 235 092

60 740 905

493 044 896

84 235 092

60 740 905

15 410 693

17 200 559

88

680

Company

2020

Profit (loss) before taxation

Deferred tax

Group

2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax receivable

Statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

2 716 592

12 272 312

5 430 678

25 086 321

8 147 270

37 358 633

Liabilities
Lease liabilities

17

9 227 648

Trade and other payables

21

25 438 991

25 193 804

Financial liabilities

23

3 288 265 798

2 784 700 848

Current tax payable

273 694

Dividend payable

22

Deferred tax

19

Total Equity and Liabilities
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10 319 959
8 767 963

8 057 061

3 331 700 400

2 828 546 366

15 410 781

17 201 239

3 865 834 888

3 321 590 262

99 645 873

77 942144
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Statement of changes in equity
Share based
payment reserve

Equity
development
fund reserve

Nondistributable
reserve

Total reserves

Owners'
reserves

Total attributable Non-controlling
to equity holders interest
of the group/
company

Total equity

Figures in Rand
Group
Opening balance as previously reported

15 482

380 869

157 499 759

157 896 110

Adjustments
Change in accounting policy - IFRS 9
Balance at 01 April 2018 as restated

15 482

380 869

157 499 759

157 896110

Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of shares
Acquisition of treasury shares
Employees share option scheme

(15 482)

lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited transfer of fund

93467 446

251 363 556

194 068 669

445 432 225

3 451 128

3 451 128

7 578 092

11 029 220

96 918 574

254 814 684

201 646 761

456 461 445

12 272 312

12 272 312

25 086 321

37 358 633

8788

8 788

8 788

(184 596)

(184 596}

(184 596)

(15 482)

(15 482)

9 386 395

9 386 395

35 220

35 220

(15 482)
175 797

175 797

(175 797)

margin
Grant received from National Treasury Jobs Fund

9 386 395

9 386 395

Share premium

35 220

Dividends
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company recognised
directly in equity

(15 482)

Balance at 01 April 2019

(460 535)

(460 535)

(9 544 972)

(10 005 507)

175 797

9 386 395

9 546 710

(776 920)

8 769 790

(9 544 972)

(775 182)

556 666

166 886 154

167 442 820

108 413 967

275 856 787

217 188 110

493 044 897

2 716 592

2 716 592

5 430 678

8 147 270

200

200

200

(210 233)

(210 233)

(210 233)

26 155 256

26 155 256

26 155 256

6 997 098

6 997 098

6 997 098

32 942 321

Total comprehensive income for the year
Issue of shares
Acquisition of treasury shares
Grant received from National Treasury Jobs Fund
Equity-settled share-based payment transacitons

26 155 256
6 997 098

lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited transfer of fund

(2 113 251)

(2 113 251)

2 113 251

margin
Total contributions by and distributions to owners of

6 997 098

(2113 251)

26 155 256

31 039 103

1 903 218

32 942 321

6 997 098

(1 556 585)

193 041 410

198 481 923

113 033 777

311 515 700

company recognised directly in equity
Balance at 31 March 2020
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Statement of changes in equity
Share based
payment reserve

Equity
development
fund reserve

Nondistributable
reserve

Total reserves

Owners'
reserves

Total attributable Non-controlling
to equity holders interest
of the group/
company

Total equity

Company
Balance at 01 April 2018

47 327 011

47 327 011

47 327 011

Total comprehensive income for the year

4 027 499

4 027 499

4 027 499

Grant received from National Treasury Jobs Fund

9 386 395

9 386 395

9 386 395

9 386 395

Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company recognised
directly in equity

9 386 395

9 386 395

9 386 395

9 386 395

Balance at 01 April 2019

9 386 395

9 386 395

51 354 510

60 740 905

60 740 905

(2 661 069)

(2 661 069)

(2 661 069)

Grant received from National Treasury Jobs Fund

26 155 256

26 155 256

26 155 256

26 155 256

Total contributions by and distributions to owners of company recognised
directly in equity

26 155 256

26 155 256

26 155 256

26 155 256

Balance at 31 March 2020

35 541 651

35 541 651

84 235 092

84 235 092

Total comprehensive Loss for the year
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Statements of cash flows

Accounting policies
Group

Figures in Rand

Note(s)

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

429 354 595

346 781 425

318 114

144 899

1 363 736

1 249 526

(311 108 743)

(225 887 904)

-

(32)

(14 447 373)

(26 139 963)

(229 444)

(619 462)

(109 922 838)

(99 550 059)

(4 262 675)

(295 811)

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest income
Rental income
Interest expenses
Tax paid
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Management fees

1 171 020

876 637

-

(1 810 344)

Cash received from clients

1 927 566

3 441 852

1 232 000

1 032 000

(10 093 517)

(13 853 399)

Net movement in advances

{220 023 009)

(471 469 982)

5 035 609

(215 944)

Proceeds from financial liabilities

1 016 987 394

325 182 125

Repayments of financial liabillties

(973 892 051)

(279 395 527)

26 155 256

9 386 395

26 155 256

9 386 395

152 657 315

500 000 000
-

445 000

Dividend paid

Grant funds received
Proceeds from notes issued
Sundry income

1 336 027

Early repayment penalty
Tax refund received
Net cash from operatlng activities

1 814 085

739 175

-

190 355

(8 056 564)

72 886 683

16

Proceeds from disposal of equipment

16

1 739

15 567

Purchase of other intangible assets

18

(1 521 299)

(1 637 739)

(10 174 299)

(11 600 000)

Loans advanced to joint ventures

(948 074)

Loan to related party

28 248 860

8 066 701

Net cash from investing actlvltles

(1046525)

616 336

500 000

5 339 927

5 839 930

(12 025 597)

(20 897 719)

5 339 927

5 839 930

(210 232)

(40 838)

Amounts paid to related parties

-

-

(49 126 466)

(21 667 138)

Amounts received from related parties

-

-

15 330 965

7 979 128

Net cash from financing activities

(4 387 404)

(40 838)

(33 795 501)

(13 688 010)

Total cash movement for the year

(24 469 565)

51 948 126

(206 714)

218 621

136 774 480

84 826 354

284 547

65 926

112 304 915

136 774 480

77 833

284 547

Total cash at end of the year
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The annual financial statements have been prepared on the historic cost convention, unless otherwise stated
in the accounting pollcies which follow and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. They
are presented in Rands, which is the group and company’s functional currency.

1.2. Consolidation

The results of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the effective date
of acquisition to the effective date of disposal.

All inter-company transactions , balances. and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Investments In subsidiaries in the separate financial statements

(4 177 172)

Cash at the beginning of the year

1.1. Basis of preparation
The consolidated and separate annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in
accordance with, and in compliance with, International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) interpretations issued and effective at the time
of preparing these annual financial statements and the Companies Act 71 of 2008 of South Africa, as amended.

Adjustments are made when necessary to the annual financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with those of the group.

by TUHF Limited

Principal lease payment

1. Significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate annual financial
statements are set out below.

The group has control of an entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from involvement
with the entity and it has the ability to affect those returns through use of its power to direct the activities of
the entity.

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments to employees for Treasury
shares purchased

The consolidated and separate annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on Tuesday, 29 September 2020.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated annual financial statements incorporate the annual financial statements of the company and
all subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) which are controlled by the group.

(7 129 022)

Dividends received

TUHF21 NPC is a public company incorporated and domiciled in South Africa.

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period, except for the changes set out in note 2.

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of equipment

Corporate information

In the company’s separate financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
1.3. Investments in joint ventures
Joint ventures are initially measured at cost and subsequently accounted for using the equity method at
an amount that reflects the group’s share of the net assets of the joint venture (including goodwill). Equity
accounting is applied from the date on which the entity becomes a joint venture up to the date on which the
group ceases to have significant influence or joint control. Equity accounting of losses is restricted to the interests in these entities, including unsecured receivables or other commitments, unless the group has an obliga-
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Accounting policies

Accounting policies

tion or has made payments on behalf of the associate or joint ventures. Where there is an indicator of impairment the carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment by comparing its recoverable amount
with its carrying amount. Impairment losses are recognised through non-trading and capital related items.
1.4. Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of annual financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to
time, to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. These estimates and associated assumptions are based on
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in
any future periods affected.
1.4.1. The impact of Covid-19 on IFRS 9 ECL
The disruption of normal economic activity as a result of Covid-19 has in many instances resulted in an
increase in credit risk for many ofTUHF Limited’s clients. The group based their ECL estimates on the
best available information about past events, current conditions and forecasts of economic conditions.
In assessing forecast conditions, consideration has been given both to the effects of Covid-19 and the
significant government support measures being undertaken. As a result of the significant uncertainty,
it is difficult to incorporate the specific effects of Covid-19 and government support measures on a
reasonable and supportable basis. However, changes in economic conditions have been reflected in
macroeconomic scenarios applied and their weightings. The company has taken steps to determine
the impact of Covid-19 on all its clients. Where a client’s business has been impacted this information
was taken into account in determini ng the expected credit losses.
Another area of significant judgement relates to the migration of accounts between the IFRS 9 staging
buckets. Any relief that is granted by the group to selected clients in the form of short-term payment
holidays was assessed in conjunction with other factors prior to determining whether accounts to
which such relief is provided move either to stage 2 or stage 3.
All reasonable and supportable information that was available to make a distinction between those
accounts where the credit risk has increased significantly and those accounts where credit risk has not
increased significantly has been carefully considered. If an account was up to date prior to the relief
measure and the account is expected to remain in up-to-date status once the relief period ends, all
other factors remaining constant, management assumed that no significant increase in credit risk has
occurred and the account has not been moved to stage 2. If however, there are adverse changes in
other circumstances which are not expected to be temporary in nature over and above the relief provided (e.g. a mortgage debtor is retrenched or an the client enters business rescue or suffers losses that
put into question its ability to repay the outstanding balance), it can be reasonably concluded that a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred, warranting the migration of the account into stage 2 or
stage 3.
The Group obtained macroeconomic forecasts from external sources in order to incorporate forward-looking information (FU) in the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models for loan and advances, loans
to group companies and loans to related parties. The main macroeconomic factor that was utilised was
GDP forecasts in order to estimate the forward-looking impact on all applicable IFRS 9 ECL provisions,
which is summarised as follows:
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1.4.2. Sensitivity analysis applicable to 2019
The property price downturn, base case and upturn is based on research obtained from Lightstone
Properties. 10 geographic areas were considered and forecasts for each area obtained, the stresses
and % used in each area differ according to the outlook for each area. Price downturn adjustments
correlate to the prime interest rate for 2019.
2019

2020

2021

2022

1. Downturn

96%

100%

102%

104%

2. Base case

96%

99%

100%

100%

3. Upturn

96%

98%

98%

98%

1.4.3. Expected credit losses (ECL’s) on loans and advances
TUHF21 NPC Group
In respect of the ECL’s for loans in the non-performingcategory we reported ECL’s of R78 976 319
(2019 :R62 907 224). In respect of the ECL’s for loans in the performing category we reported ECL’s of
R45 857 066 (2019: R18 388 635).
Total expected credit losses, Stage 1, 2 and 3 combined reported are: R124 833 385 (2019: R81 295
859).
In respect of the ECL’s for loans and advances, the weighted average of the downturn, base case and
upturn scenario is as follows:
2020

2019

1. Downturn

R125 311 786

R97 555 031

2. Base case

R124 833 385

R81 295 859

3. Upturn

R124 334 858

R69 101 480

1.4.4. Expected credit losses (ECL’s) on loans to group companies
TUHF21 NPC Group
In respect of the ECL’s for loans to group companies in the non-performing category we reported ECL’s
of R600 169 (2019:RO) .
In respect of the ECL’s for loans to group companies in the performing category we reported ECL’s of
R154 620 (2019: RO). Total expected credit losses, Stage 1, 2 and 3 combined reported are: R754 789
(2019: RO).
In respect of the ECL’s loans to group companies, the weighted average of the downturn, base case and
upturn scenario is as follows:

2020

2019

1. Downturn

R981 225

R0

Scenario

Probability

2020

2. Base case

R754 789

R0

Upside

20%

-10,2%

3. Upturn

R603 831

R0

Base

50%

-11 7%

Downturn

30%

-13,2%
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TUHF21 NPC Company
In respect of the ECL’s for loans to group companies in the non-performing category we reported ECL’s
of RO (2019 :RO).
In respect of the ECL’s for loans to group companies in the performing category we reported ECL’s of
R3 526 273 (2019:RO).
Total expected credit losses, Stage 1, 2 and 3 combined reported are R3 526 273 (2019:RO).
In respect of the ECL’s loans to group companies, the weighted average of the downturn, base case and
upturn scenario is as follows:

Expenditure incurred subsequently for major services, additions to or replacements of parts of equipment are
capitalised if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
group and the cost can be measured reliably. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they are incurred.
Depreciation of an asset commences when the asset is available for use as intended by management. Depreciation is charged to write off the asset’s carrying amount over its estimated useful life, using a method that
best reflects the pattern in which the asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the group. Depreciation of
an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale or derecognised.
The useful lives of items of equipment have been assessed as follows:

2020

2019

Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Downturn

R4 544 464

R0

Office furniture and equipment

Straight line

20% - 33.33% per annum

Base case

R3 526 273

R0

Computer hardware and telephones

Straight line

25% per annum

Upturn

R3 143 979

R0

1.4.5. Expected credit losses (ECL’s) on loans to related parties
In respect of the ECL’s for loans to related parties in the non-performingcategory we reported ECL’s of
R189 777 (2019 :RO). In respect of the ECL’s for loans to related parties in the performing category we
reported ECL’s of R54 336 (2019: RO) .
Total expected credit losses, Stage 1, 2 and 3 combined reported are: R244 113 (2019: RO).
In respect of the ECL’s loans to related parties, the weighted average of the downturn, base case and
upturn scenario is as follows:
2020

2019

Downturn

R317 347

R0

Base case

R244 113

R0

Upturn

R195 290

R0

1.5. Properties in possession
Properties in possession are properties acquired by the group which were previously held as collateral for
underlying lending arrangements that, subsequent to origination, have defaulted . The properties are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and its net realisable value. Any
subsequent write-down in the value of the acquired properties is recognised as an operating expense. Any
subsequent increases in the net realisable value, to the extent that it does not exceed its original cost, are also
recognised within operating expenses.
1.6. Equipment
Equipmentis tangible assets which the group holds for its own use or for rental to others and which are expected to be used for more than one year.
An item of equipment is recognised as an asset when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the group, and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Equipment is initially measured at cost. Cost includes all of the expenditure which is directly attributable
to the acquisition or construction of the asset, including the capitalisation of borrowing costs on qualifying
assets.

The useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in accounting estimate.
Each part of an item of equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately.
The depreciation charge for each year is recognised in profit or loss unless it is included in the carrying amount
of another asset.
Impairment tests are performed on equipment when there is an indicator that they may be impaired. When
the carrying amount of an item of equipment is assessed to be higher than the estimated recoverable amount,
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss to bring the carrying amount in line with the
recoverable amount.
An item of equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its continued use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of equipment, determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item, is
included in profit or loss when the item is derecognised.
1.7. Intangible assets
An intangible asset is recognised when:
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
entity; and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is
incurred. An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project)
is recognised when:
1.7.1. it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
1.7.2. there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
1.7.3. there is an ability to use or sell it.
1.7.4. it will generate probable future economic benefits.
1.7.5. there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or
sell the asset.
1.7.6. the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.

126

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

127

T UHF21 NPC (REGIS TRATION NUMBER 1993/000217/08)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR END ED 31 MARCH 2020

Accounting policies

T UHF21 NPC (REGIS TRATION NUMBER 1993/000217/08)
ANNUAL FINANCIAL S TATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR END ED 31 MARCH 2020

Accounting policies

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is
no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows. Amortisation
is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a
straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed every period-end.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is
an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining
carrying amount is amortised over its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are
not recognised as intangible assets.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis as follows:
Item

Useful life

Computer software

20% per annum

1.8. Financial Instruments
Financial instruments held by the group are classified in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.

1.8.3.2 If a loan was not purchased or originally credit-impaired, but it has subsequently become credit-impaired, then the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the loan in the determination
of interest. If, in subsequent periods, the loan is no longer credit impaired, then the interest calculation
reverts to applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount.
1.8.3.3 Raising fees that are integral to the to the effective interest rate are capitalised to the value of the loan
and are amortised to profit or loss and other comprehensive income over the expected life of the loan
using the effective interest rate method.
1.8.3.4 Other fees earned, such as penalty fees on late payment of instalments and early settlement penalty
amounts, accrue to the company.
1.8.4. Impairment
IFRS 9 Three Stage Model
JECL - Measurement
IFRS 9 outlines a three-stage model for impairment based on changes in credit quality since initial
recognition and is summarised as follows:
Staging

ECL measurement

Stage 1

Loans and advances that are not
credit impaired on initial recognition are classified in “Stage
1” and have their credit risk
continuously monitored by the
company.

Loans and advance s in Stage 1
have their ECL measured based
on an amount equal to the
portion of 12 months expected
credit losses that result from
default events possible within
the next 12 months.

Stage 2

If a significant increase in credit
risk (‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the loans and
advances are moved to “Stage
2” but are not yet deemed to be
credit-impaired.

IFRS 9 introduces requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as well
as accounting requirements for impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost.
1.8.1. Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on:
1.8.1.1 the entity’s business model for managing the asset; and
1.8.1.2 the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
1.8.2. Based on these factors, the entity classifies its debt instruments into one of the following three
measurement categories:
1.8.2.1 Amortised cost. This category applies only when the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on
specified dates, to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal, and where
the instrument is held under a business model whose objective is met by holding the instrument to
collect contractual cash flows; or
1.8.2.2 Fair value through profit or loss. This classification automatically applies to all debt instruments which
do not qualify as at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Loans to group companies, loans to managers and employees, and loans and advances are subsequently classified at amortised cost.
They have been classified in this manner because the contractual terms of these loans give rise, on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding, and the
group’s business model is to collect the contractual cash flows on these loans.
Application of the effective Interest rate method
Interest income is calculated using the effective interest method, and is included in profit or loss in interest
income (note 25&32).
1.8.3. The application of the effective interest method to calculate interest income on a loan receivable
is dependent on the credit risk of the loan as follows:
1.8.3.1 The effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the loan, provided the loan is not
credit impaired. The gross carrying amount is the amortised cost before adjusting for a loss allowance.
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Loans in Stages 2 or 3 have their
ECL measured based on expected
credit losses on a lifetime basis

Stage 3

If the loan is in default, the financial instrument is then moved to
“Stage 3”.

Forward looking information

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is
that it should consider forward-lookina information.

Significant increase in credit
risk

SICR- is determined through a watchlist process whereby financial
and project performance of the counterparties is discussed. In addition, the status of the construction of ongoing projects is taken into
account as well as other ad hoc
indicators.

1.8.4.1 A financial instrument that is not credit impaired on initial recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has
its credit risk continuously monitored by the company.
1.8.4.2 If a significant increase in credit risk (‘SICR’) since initial recognition is identified, the financial instruments is moved to “Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.
1.8.4.3 If the financial instrument is in default, the financial instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.
1.8.4.4 FinancialInstruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured based on an amount equal to the portion of
12 months expected credit losses that result from default events possible within the next 12 months
1.8.4.5 Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on expected credit losses on a lifetime
basis.
1.8.4.6 A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with IFRS 9 is that it should consider
forward-looking information.
1.8.5. Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and estimation techniques
Expected credit losses are the discounted product of the probability of default (PD), exposure at
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default (EAD) and loss given default (LGD), defined as follows:
1.8.5.1 PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its financial obligation either over the next 12
months (12M PD), or over the remaining lifetime(lifetime PD) of the obligation.
1.8.5.2 EAD is based on the amounts the company expects to be owed at the time of default, over the next 12
months (12M EAD) or over the remaining lifetime (lifetime EAD).
1.8.5.3 LGD represents the company’s expectation of the extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies
by type of counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other credit support.
The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each future month and for each individual exposure.
These three components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihoodof survival, (i.e., the exposure
has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier month). This effectively calculates the ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed.
The discount rate used in the EGL calculation is the original effective interest rate.
The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturing profile to the current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks
at how defaults develop on a portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of the
loans.
The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.
The 12-month and Lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected payment profile. For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over a 12
month of lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early
repayment/refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.
These assumptions vary by product type and current limit utilisation band, based on an analysis of the company’s recent default data.
The 12-month and Lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors which impact the recoveries made
post default and this is based on collateral type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery costs incurred.
Forward-looking economic information such as the gross domestic product (GDP) are included in determining
the 12-month and Lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Forward- looking economic information such as property prices
are included in the determining of the 12-month LGD.
The assumptions underlying the EGL calculation - such as how the maturity profile of the PDs and how the
collateral values change etc. - are monitored and reviewed on an annual basis.
Definitions
1.8.6. SICR:
1.8.6.1 Qualitative criteria: SICR is primarily determined through the watchlist process whereby the financial
performance of the counterparties are discussed. In addition, the status of the construction of ongoing
projects is taken into account and as well as qualitative factors such as financial distress, significant
change in collateral value or significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic status.
1.8.6.2 A backstop is applied and the financial instrument considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the borrower is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments.
1.8.6.3 The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial instruments in the year ended
31 March 2020.
1.8.6.4 The assessment of SICR incorporates forward looking information (see below) and is performed annually for all loans.
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1.8.7. DEFAULT:
The definition of default, which triggers the credit impaired classification (stage 3), is based on the
group’s internal credit risk management approach and definitions and occurs at the earlier of:
1.8.7.1 In the Group’s view, the counterparty is considered to be unlikely to pay amounts due on the due date
or shortly thereafter without recourse to actions such as the realisation of security; or
1.8.7.2 When the counterparty is past due for more than 90 days. The Group has not rebutted IFRS 9’s 90
days past due rebuttable presumption.
1.8.8. WRITE-OFF POLICY:
An impaired loan is written off once all reasonable attempts at collection have been made and there
is no material economic benefit expected from attempting to recover the balance outstanding. The
following criteria must be met before a financial asset can be written off:
at the point of write-off, the financial asset is fully impaired (i.e. 100% allowance) with no reasonable
expectations of recovery of the asset, or a portion thereof. As an exception to the above requirements
, where the exposure is secured (or for collateralised structures), the impaired loan can only be written
off once the collateral has been realised. Post realisation of the collateral, at the point of write-off any
excess amounts to be written off will be recognised in the income statement under Gains (losses) of
derecognised financial assets.
1.8.9. CURING:
Continuous assessment is required to determine whether the conditions that led to a financial asset
being considered to be credit impaired (i.e. stage 3) still exist.
Qualitative factors include compliance with covenants and compliance with existing financial asset
terms and conditions.
Where it has been determined that a financial asset no longer meets the criteria for SICR, the financial asset will be moved from stage 2 (lifetime expected credit loss model) back to stage 1 (12-month
expected credit loss model) pro spectively.
When it has been determined that the financial asset no longer meets the classification for stage 3 and
all arrears are current, the financial asset will move from stage 3 to stage 2 or stage 1.
1.8.10. Loans to (from) group companies
These loans are recognised initially at fair value plus direct transaction costs. Subsequently these loans
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment loss
recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts.
1.8.11. Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired or incurred in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers and service providers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer).
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method.
1.8.12. Cash and cash equlvalents and money market assets
Cash and cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk in changing value. Cash and cash equivalents are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.
Money market assets and cash held in trust are disclosed separately.
Cash held in trust are funds deposited into the Group’s attorneys’ trust account to facilitate the issue
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of purchase guarantees and payment of the purchase price to the property seller of the bond and
transfer registration. Cash and cash equivalents held in trust are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently
measured at amortised cost.
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include money market
assets as these are short term and highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.
Cash and cash equivalents and money market assets are regarded as having a low probability of default and therefore the related expected credit loss is not significant.
1.8.13. Mortgage-backed securities
Variable-rate notes are classified as financial liabilities and measured at amortised cost.
1.8.14. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired, or where the group has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows
on the financial asset such that it has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset. Any interest in the transferred financial assets that is created or retained by
the group is recognised as a separate asset or liability. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
financial liabilities’ obligation is extinguished, that is, when the obligation is discharged, cancelled or
expires.
1.9. Expected credit losses on loans to group companies and related parties
This relates to the intercompany expected credit losses raised on the loans granted between companies in
the group. Interest is charged at the contracted interest rate that is applicable to the relevant agreement.
The methods for calculating Expected Credit Losses for each financial asset type depends on the underlying
collateral. Sometimes several techniques and models may be used within a single asset class. Calculation
methods and models may differ from company to company based on the types of assets in each category.
Staging
The ECL’s applied is measured on an amount equal to the portion of 12 month ECL that result from default
events possible within 12 months.
Where there has been a significant increase in credit risk, a loan is regarded as being in Stage 2 and a lifetime
ECL is applied.
If a loan is credit impaired, it is regarded as being Stage 3 and a lifetime ECL is applied. No interest should be
accrued on the loan.
Loans repayable on demand
Where a loan is repayable on demand, an assessment is made of the debtor’s ability to repay if demand for
immediate repayment was made. 1t is assumed that the risk is negligible and an appropriate ECL was raised.
If, however, there are insufficient cash resources, the term of a loan is estimated by assessing how long it will
take to repay in the normal course of business with reference to the cash flow of the debtor entity. The cash
flow is estimated using the most recent financial year’s financial statements or budgeted forecasts. Management uses a Debt Service Cover ratio calculation to estimate the available cash flow and assume that this can
be used to repay the loan. Where the cash flow is negative or very low, management assume a repayment
period based on management’s strategic plans for the business to generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
loans, which is typically 2 years.
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Loans with no fixed terms of repayment
Loans with no fixed terms of repayment have been treated as repayable on demand regardless of the stated
intention of management regarding repayment of the loan.
1.10. Taxation
Current tax assets and liabllities
Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount
already paid in respect of current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is
recognised as an asset.
Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
paid to (recovered from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities
A deferred tax liability is recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except to the extent that the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which at the time of
the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. A deferred tax asset is not recognised when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss).
A deferred tax asset is recognised for the carry forward of unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
1.10.1. Tax expenses
Current and deferred taxes are recognised as income or an expense and included in profit or loss for
the period, except to the extent that the tax arises from:
1.10.1.1 a transaction or event which is recognised, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive
income, or
1.10.1.2 a business combination.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited to other comprehensive income if the tax relates to
items that are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, to other comprehensive income.
Current tax and deferred taxes are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to items that are
credited or charged, in the same or a different period, directly in equity.
1.11. Leases (IFRS 16)
The group assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at the inception of the contract.
A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.
In order to assess whether a contract is, or contains a lease, management determine whether the asset under
consideration is “identified”, which means that the asset is either explicitly or implicitly specified in the
contract and that the supplier does not have a substantial right of substitution throughout the period of use.
Once management has concluded that the contract deals with an identified asset, the right to
control the use thereof is considered. To this end, control over the use of an identified asset only exists when
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the group has the right to substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset as well as the
right to direct the use of the asset.
Group as lessee
A lease liability and corresponding right-of-use asset are recognised at the lease commencement date, for all
lease agreements for which the group is a lessee.
The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted for separately,
with consideration being allocated to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of
the lease components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components (where non-lease
components exist).
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1.12. Leases (IAS 17) (2019)
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership . A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership.
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an
operating lease asset. This liability is not discounted.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred.

Details of leasing arrangements where the group is a lessee are presented in note 17 Leases (group as lessee).
Lease liability
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the incremental borrowing rate. The incremental borrowing rates
was determined based on a rate that the group can borrow fund for a similar amount to the lease payments.
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: fixed lease payments
Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability (or right-of-use asset). The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period incurred and are
included in operating expenses (note 30).

1.13. Impairment of assets (non-financial)
The group assesses at each end of the reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset.
1.13.1. Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the group also:
1.13.1.1 tests intangible assets with an indefinite useful life or intangible assets not yet available for use for
impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its recoverable amount. This impairment
test is performed during the annual period and at the same time every period .
1.13.1.2 tests goodwill acquired in a business combination for impairment annually.
If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual
asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs is determined.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position.
The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect lease payments
made. Interest charged on the lease liability is included in interest expense (note 26).
In determining the lease term, management considers all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or periods
after termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended
(or not terminated). The group considers historical lease durations, cost and business disruption to relocate
business premises to assess if the lease term is reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated). The
assessment is reviewed if a significant event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which affects this
assessment and that is within the control of the group. IFRS 16 introduced additional guidance in determining
reasonable certainty when assessing lease terms.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. That reduction is an impairment loss.
An impairment loss of assets carried at cost less any accumulated depreciation or amortisation is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.
An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in
prior periods for assets other than goodwill may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amounts of those assets are estimated.

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position.

The increased carrying amount of an asset other than goodwill attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods.

The right-of-use assets is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the lease term. Depreciation starts
at the commencement date of a lease and is recognised in profit or loss.

A reversal of an impairment loss of assets carried at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation other
than goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Any reversal of an impairment loss of a revalued
asset is treated as a revaluation increase.

Statement of cash flows
1.11.1. The group has classified:
1.11.1.1 Cash payments for the principal portion of lease payments as financing activities; Cash payments for
the interest portion as operating activities; and
1.11.1.2 Short-term lease payments and variable lease payments not included in the measurement of the lease
liability within operating activities.
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and its value in use.
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1.14. Share capital and equity
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Ordinary shares are recognised at par value and classified as ‘share capital’ in equity. Any amounts received
from the issue of shares in excess of par value is classified as ‘share premium’ in equity. Dividends are recognised as a liability in the group in which they are declared.
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1.15. Non-distributable reserve
The group receives grant funds for the exclusive purpose of lending to its customers as per an agreement
with National Treasury. These funds are combined with senior debt raised in the capital markets in a funding
structure and represent equity in the funding structure. These funds are not repayable and meet the definition
of equity per IAS 32. The funds must be accounted for and TUHF Limited is required to report on the development impact measures such as job creation and entrepreneur training. The funds can only be lent to customers for inner city renewal projects and the funds are not distributable as dividends and therefore have been
classified as a non distributable reserve.
1.16. Share based payments (IFRS 2)
TUHF Holdings Limited operates a conditional share plan, under which TUHF limited receives services from
employees as consideration for equity instruments of 1 997 621. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the shares at grant date is recognised as an expense in TUHF Holdings
Limited.
The total amount to be expensed with a corresponding increase in equity is determined by reference to the
fair value of the shares granted.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number of shares that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the company revises its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the statement of comprehensive income,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
When the share awards are to be vested, TUHF Holdings Limited, issues new shares. The shares are purchased
from TUHF Holdings Limited at the ruling net asset value through intercompany loan account and granted to
the employees for no consideration. The actual consideration is compared to the amount provided over the
vesting period and any adjustment is made where appropriate. This is recorded in the investment in holding
company account.
Where the conditional share plan share award requires equity to be issued the impact is disclosed in non distributable reserves.
1.17. Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those that are expected to be settled wholly before 12 months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service), are recognised
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services
that increase their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs.
The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current wage and salary rates.
Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a retirement plan under which the group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.
For defined contribution plans, the group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.
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1.18. Revenue
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents the amounts
receivable for services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and value added tax.
Revenue comprises interest income and non-interest income.
Interest income
Interest income and expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income using the effective interest rate method. The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument, or when appropriate , a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset of financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the group estimates cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(e.g. prepayment options) but does not consider future credit losses.
Rental Income
Rental income is recognised equally over the period of the lease taking into consideration the clauses affecting
the rental charge.
Management fee income
Management fee income earned from the provision of management services is recognised in the accounting
period in which the services are rendered, with reference to the stage of completion of the service.
Bad debts recovered
Recoveries of financial assets previously written-off are recognised as bad debts recovered which is shown as a
deduction from expected credit losses expense.
Sundry income
Sundry income includes penalty income on outstanding instalment and early repayment settlement fee.
Dividends received
Dividends income includes dividends paid from unlisted investments and by group companies. Dividends are
recognised when the entity’s right to receive payment is established, it is probable the economic benefits will
flow to the entity and the amount can be measured reliably.
1.19. Unlisted investments
Unlisted investments comprise the equity investment in associated organisations held to earn dividend
income and/or for capital appreciation. Unlisted investments are carried at the fair values are determined by
reference to the net asset values of the respective entities.
Changes in the fair value of investments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive incomes as investment surpluses.
1.20. Segmental reporting
The executive committee headed by the CEO, has been identified by the group as the chief operating decision
maker who is responsible for assessing the performance and allocation of resources of the group. Operating
segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker.
The identification of reportable segments are determined based on a consideration of products and services,
organisational structures, geographical areas, economic and regulatory environments and the separable nature of activities or conversely inherent inter-connectedness and whether these meet the criteria for aggregation .
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The revenue from one single customer does not exceed 10% of the group’s revenues in 2020 and in 2019. The
business sells a single product, 15 year mortgage loan facility. Management assesses information relating to
the performance of the single segment on multiple levels and from multiple perspec tives. All elements are
regarded as inter-connected and as such, no part of the business is regarded as separable from the rest.
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2. Changes In accounting policy
The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards on a basis consistent with the prior year except for the adoption of the following new or revised
standards.
Application of IFRS 16 Leases
In the current year, the company has adopted IFRS 16 Leases (as issued by the IASB in January 2016) with the
date of initial application being 01 April 2019. IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives and SIC 27 - Evaluatingthe Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.
IFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significant
changes to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance leases and
requiring the recognition of a right-ofuse asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement for all leases,
except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements
for lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged . Details of these new requirements are described in the
accounting policy for leases. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the group’s annual financial statements
is described below.
The group enters into operating leases for office space (buildings). Rental contracts are typically for fixed periods between 3-5 years but may have extension options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants.
IFRS 16 has been adopted by applying the modified retrospective approach, whereby the comparative figures
are not restated. Instead, cumulative adjustments to profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2020 have
been recognised in retained earnings as at 01 April 2019, as it relates to deferred taxation for the previously
recognised straight-lining lease liability . The straightlining lease liability was treated as reduction against the
right-of-use asset as at 01 April 2019.
Leases where group is lessee
2.1. Leases previously classified as operating leases
The group undertook the following at the date of initial application for leases which were previously recognised as operating leases:
2.1.1. recognised a lease liability, measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
at the group’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.
2.1.2. recognised right-of-use assets measured on a lease by lease basis, at either the carrying amount (as if
IFRS 16 applied from commencement date but discounted at the incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application) or at an amount equal to the lease liability adjusted for accruals or prepayments relating to that lease prior to the date of initial application.
The group did not apply IAS 36 to consider if these right-of-use assets are impaired, but rather applied the
practical expedient of IFRS 16 par C10(b). In accordance with this practical expedient, the carrying amounts
were adjusted with the amount of any onerous provision which existed immediately prior to the date of initial
application .
2.2. The group applied the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as
operating leases in terms of IAS 17. Where necessary, they have been applied on a lease by lease basis:
2.2.1. when a portfolio of leases contained reasonably similar characteristics, the group applied a single discount rate to that portfolio;
2.2.2. leases which were expiring within 12 months of 01 April 2019 were treated as short term leases, with
remaining lease payments recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic
basis which is more representative of the pattern of benefits consumed ;
2.2.3. Using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.
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IFRS 16 key financial impacts
The single lessee accounting model which comprises IFRS 16’s most material impact for the group results
in an increase of R10,93 million in total assets, R10,93 million increase in total liabilities and an decrease in
deferred tax asset of R201 606 due to deferred tax associated with the release of the IAS 17 straight-lined
lease provision as well as a decreased in trade and other payables due to the release of the Lease smoothing
opening balance IAS 17 Straight-line provision. The group’s average incremental borrowing rate ranges from
9.18%-10.54%. The total undiscounted operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 amount to R9.4
million. The lease liability as at 01 April 2019 amounted to R11,85 million, this difference primarily relates to
leases that were negotiated after year-end.
31 March 2019

IFRS 16 transition
adjustment at 1
April 2019

1 April 2019

3 296 915 863

0

3 296 915 863

11 136 983

11 136 983

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes: Annual Improvements to IFRS 2015 - 2017 cycle
The amendment specifies that the income tax consequences on dividends are recognised in profit or loss,
other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised the events or transactions which generated the distributable reserves.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the group’s annual financial statements.
IFRS 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
The interpretation clarifies how to apply the recognition and measurement requirements in IAS 12 when there
is uncertainty over income tax treatments. Specifically, if it is probable that the tax authorities will accept the
uncertain tax treatment, then all tax related items are measured according to the planned tax treatment. If it
is not probable that the tax authorities will accept the uncertain tax treatment , then the tax related items are
measured on the basis of probabilities to reflect the uncertainty.

Assets
Other financial and non-financialassets
Right-of-use assets
Deferred tax

24 674 399

(201 606)

24 472 793

Total assets

3 321 590 262

10 935 377

3 332 525 639

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Retained Income

493 044 895

Total Comprehensive income for the year
Liabilities
Trade and other payables

25 193 805

Lease liabilities
2 803 351 562

Total equity and liabilities

3 321 590 262

The group expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 2020 annual financial statements. The
adoption of this interpretation has not had a material impact on the results of the group.

493 044 895
(201 606)

(201 606)

(720 022}

24 473 783

11 857 005

Other financial and non-financial liabilities

Changes in facts and circumstances are required to be treated as changes in estimates and applied prospectively. The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting model. The main changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to impact the group are as follows:

11 857 005

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.

2 803 351 562
10 935 377

The group has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2020 annual financial statements. The impact of
the standard is set out in note 2 Changes in Accounting Policy.

3 332 525 639

3. New Standards and Interpretations
3.1. Standards and Interpretations effective and adopted in the current year
In the current year, the group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for
the current financial year and that are relevant to its operations:
Long-term Interests In Joint Ventures and Associates - Amendments to IAS 28
The amendment now requires that an entity also applies IFRS 9 to other financial instruments in an associate
or joint venture to which the equity method is not applied. These include long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the entity’s net investment in an associate or joint venture.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.
It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the group’s annual financial statements.
Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation - Amendment to IFRS 9
The amendment to Appendix B of IFRS 9 specifies that for the purpose of applying paragraphs B4.1.11(b) and
B4.1.12(b), irrespective of the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contract, a party
may pay or receive reasonable compensation for that early termination.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019.

3.2. Standards and interpretations not yet effective
The group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been
published and are mandatory for the group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2020 or later
periods:
Standard/ Interpretation:

Effective date: Years beginning
on or after

Expected impact:

•

Effective date is still to be
determined by the IASB

Impact is currently being assessed

01 January 2022

Impact is currently being assessed

01 June 2020

No impact

01 January 2020

Impact is currently being assessed

01 January 2020
01 January 2020

Impact is currently being assessed
Impact is currently being assessed

01 January 2020

Impact is currently being assessed

•
•
•
•
•
•

Amendments to IFRS 1O and IAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-Current - Amendment to IAS 1
Covid-19 - Related Rent Concessions -Amendment to IFRS 16
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: Amendments
to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7
Definition of a business -Amendments to IFRS 3
Presentation of Financial Statements: Disclosure initiative
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors: Disclosure initiative

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the group’s annual financial statements.
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4. Risk management
Capital risk management
The group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for the shareholder and benefits for the other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to the
shareholder, return capital to the shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
The group monitors capital on the gearing ratio basis together with a debt service cover ratio. The capital
management function is governed primarily by management level subcommittees that oversees the risks
associated with capital managemen,t namely the group asset and liability committee (ALCO). The principal
governance documents are the capital management governance framework and the risk framework.
Financial risk management
Financial risks are identified and managed on a group basis. These risks are identified in the risk matrix which is
reported to the board.
The responsibility for risk management resides at all levels, from members of the board to individuals throughout the group. Overall risk management policies and risk appetite are established on a comprehensive, organisation wide basis by senior management and, reviewed with and where appropriate, approved by the board of
directors.
There has been no change in how the group assesses or manages its risks from the previous year, but the group
has enhanced the risk management process by adopting a risk management framework that was approved by
the board in May 2020. In terms of the framework, risks are identified both from within the organization by
designated risk champions and by management through executive committee.
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responsibility to the chief financial officer. Prudent management of liquidity contributes to sound liquidity risk
management. The key focus in managing this risk is the use of a cash flow model that monitors loan and
funders cashflows for a 12-month window period. A group 5-year financial forecast is performed annually to
review cash flow requirements and compliance with covenants.
As at 31 March 2020, TUHF Limited breached the arrears covenants of certain funder loan agreements. As per
the agreements, the breach results in the liabilities becoming due and payable immediately. As at the date of
the approval of the financial statements, these liabilities have not yet been demanded for repaymentby the
relevant funders, the maturity analysis below reflects the amounts as if they will become due and payable
within the next 12 months:

At 31 March 2020 • Group
(IFRS Compliant Maturity)

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total
Interest

Carrying
value

Trade and other payables

25 438 991

Interest bearing liabilities

1 723 633 098

1 757 442 043

752 674 116

(933 551 032)

3 300 198 225

25 438 991

1 749 072 089

1 757 442 043

752 674116

(933 651 032)

3 325 637 216

The maturity analysis below reflects the repayments based on expected cash flows, assuming that the funders
do not demand repayment in the next 12 months:
At 31 March 2020 • Group
(Expected cashflow)

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total
Interest

Carrying
value

Trade and other payables

25 438 991

Interest bearing liabilities

1 723 633 098

1 757 442 043

752 674 116

(933 551 032)

3 300 198 225

1 749 072 089

1 757 442 043

752 674116

(933 651 032)

3 325 637 216

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total
Interest

Carrying
value

25 438 991

The main risks managed by the risk committee as described below include credit risk, liquidity risk, operational
risk and interest rate risk.
At 31 March 2019 • Group

Liquidity risk
The group funds property loans through a combination of bilateral facilities, listed issuances, and off-balance
sheet securitisation structures.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the group is unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due and to
replace funds when they are withdrawn, the consequences of which may be the failure to meet obligations to
repay commitments to funders.
The board is responsible for the management of the liquidity risk of the group. The function of managing
liquidity risk is executed through the group’s Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO), a sub-committee of the
board. Prudent management of liquidity contributes to sound liquidity risk management.
The key focus in managing this risk is the use of a cash flow model that monitors cash flows in the short term
(12 months), ensuring that the group has adequate funding for repayments on lenders obligations as they
become due, ongoing operational costs and disbursements of commitments to borrowers. Furthermore, the
group performs a long term (5 years) financial forecast annually to manage and forecast cash flow requirements and compliance with covenants.
The group has developed and implemented a treasury management reporting system with full assets and
liability management functionality. The more detailed treasury and risk management processes are important
for the group In developing and enhancing the group funding strategy.

Trade and other payables

25 193 804

Interest bearing liabilities

1 101 379 679

1 812 821 035

727 327 087

(849 221 682)

2 792 306 119

25 193 804

1 126 573 483

1 812 821 035

727 327 087

(849 221 682)

2 817 499 923

In the table above the contractual maturity is shown for TUHF Urban finance (RF) financial liabilities. It is the
intention that in 2025 this structure will come to an end and the financial liabilities will be settled through
external funding.
At 31 March 2020 - Company

Less than 1
year

Trade and other payables

15 410 693

At 31 March 2019 - Company

Less than 1
year

Trade and other payables

17 200 559

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total
Interest

Carrying
value
15 410 693

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Total
Interest

Carrying
value
17 200 559

The board is responsible for the management of the liquidity risk of the group, but they have delegated this
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Liquidity mismatch • Group 2020
(IFRS Compliant)

Less than 1
year

Notes to the financial statements
1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Carrying
value

Advances
TUHF Limited

Liquidity mismatch - Group 2020
(Expected Cashflow)

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Carrying
value

463 005 822

1 393 644 249

400 552 059

2 257 202 130

31 256 247

125 024 989

437 587 462

593 868 698

-

388 292 203

388 292 203

36 704 797

-

36 704 797

13 712 876

5 374 641

5 042 880

24 130 397

507 974 945

1 560 748 676

1 231 474 604

3 300 198 225

(300 247 383)

(637 484 121)

1 388 244 491

450 512 987

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Carrying
value

TUHF Limited

93 492 203

595 414 580

1 980 962 599

2 669 869 382

126 669 134

321 098 521

470 776 196

1 586 521

6 716 852

17 932 101

26 235 474

24 280

233 600

1 779 024

2 036 904

TUHF Properties Proprietary Limited

541 704

2 045 659

5 078

2 592 441

TUHF21 NPC

145 270

801 748

4 088 590

5 035 608

124 378 903

731 881 573

2 325 865 914

3 182 126 390

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Carrying
value

858 064 095

954 695 551

457 110 239

2 269 869 885

-

350 115 269

112 500 000

462 615 269

5 056 488

16 546 894

1 483 098

23 086 480

571 093 337

2 792 306 119

1 754 772 577

389 820 271

Liabilities
145 281 096

613 078 352

1 864 326 581

2 622 686 029

TUHF Limited

TUHF Urban Finance (RF) Limited

34 276 098

174 718 316

417 961 429

626 955 843

TUHF Urban Finance (RF) Limited

Vuselela Warehouse SPV (RF) Proprietary Limited

20 389 605

110 790 681

303 010 412

434 190 698

Vuselela Warehouse SPV (RF) Proprietary Limited

TUHF Bridge Proprietary Limited
lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited

2 184 319
4 420 045

2 184 319
19 731 748

18 718 032

42 869 825

15702641

18 818 742

uMastandi Proprietary Limited

428 728

2 687 373

TUHF Properties Proprietary Limited

747 671

2 258 085

207 727 562

923 264 555

2 619 719 095

3 750 711 212

Less than 1 year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Carrying
value

TUHF Urban Finance (RF) Limited

588 758 814

176 417 316

2 257 202 130

31 256 247

125 024 989

437 587 462

593 868 698

TUHF Urban Finance (RF) Limited

23 008 541

TUHF Bridge Proprietary Limited

5 580 384

-

388 292 203

388 292 203

36 704 797

-

36 704 797

lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited

13 712 876

5 374 641

5 042 880

24 130 397

uMastandi Proprietary Limited

1 536 995 123

755 863 241

1 007 339 861 3 300 198 225

(1 329 267 561)

167 401 314

1 612 379 234

450 512 987

Less than 1
year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Carrying
value

145 281 096

613 078 352

1 864 326 581

2 622 686 029

TUHF Urban Finance (RF) Limited

34 276 098

174 718 316

417 961 429

626 955 843

Vuselela Warehouse SPV (RF) Proprietary Limited

20 389 605

110 790 681

303 010 412

434190 698

Liquidity mismatch - Group 2020
(Expected Cashflow)
Advances
TUHF Limited

TUHF Bridge Proprietary Limited
lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited

Liquidity mismatch - Group 2019

1 492 026 000

TUHF Bridge Proprietary Limited

Liquidity mismatch

Liquidity mismatch

Advances

Vuselela Warehouse SPV (RF} Proprietary Limited
lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited

lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited

3 005 756

Liabilities
TUHF Limited

TUHF Bridge Proprietary Limited

2 184 319
4 420 045

2 184 319
19 731 748

18 718 032

42 869 825

15 702 641

18 818 742

uMastandi Proprietary Limited

428 728

2 687 373

TUHF Properties Proprietary Limited

747 671

2 258 085

207 727 562

923 264 555

3 005 756
2 619 719 095

3 750 711 212

5 580 384

Liabilities
TUHF Limited
TUHF Urban Finance (RF) Limited
lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited
TUHF Bridge Proprietary Limited

36 734 485
863 120 583 1 358 092 199

Liquidity mismatch

(738 741 680)

(626 210 626)

36 734 485

The liquidity mismatch pertaining to the period up to five years after reporting date will be managed by
refinancing interest bearing liabilities. Refer to note 9 for the maturity analysis relating to advances.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk: the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.
The company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on both loan and advances and interest bearing liabilities
that are linked to the prime interest rate or JIBAR.
The market risk exposure relates to the potential adverse effect of interest rate movements on net interest
income .
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Where clients request fixed rates applicable to loans, the interest rate risk is mitigated by management entering
into an interest rate swap contract to swap the fixed interest rate for a floating interest rate. Currently no swap
contracts are in place as no fixed rate loans have been contracted with clients. In negotiating a swap contract
where relevant, the company ensures that no interest rate risk is taken on.
At 31 March 2020, if interest rates on net borrowings and advances had been 1% higher with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have been R 4 317 099 (2019: R 2 775 779) higher, mainly as a
result of higher net interest paid on variable rate borrowings and advances. If interest rates on net borrowings
and advances had been 1% lower with all other variables held constant, pre-tax profit for the year would have
been R 4 317 099 (2019: R 2 775 779) lower.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause financial loss for another party by failing
to discharge an obligation.
The credit risk that the group faces arises mainly from commercial loans and advances. The group has policies,
procedures and processes dedicated to controlling and monitoring risk from all such activities.
While credit exposures principally arise in loans and advances, the group can be exposed to other credit risks.
These exposures comprise loan commitments and contingent liabilities . The risks are managed in a similar way
to those loans in loans and advances, and are subject to the same or similar approval and governance processes.
The granting of credit is one of the group’s major sources of income and is therefore one of the most significant
risks, and the group dedicates considerable resources to controlling it effectively. A system based loan workflow process is used to facilitate the loan approval process. The granting of credit is considered on a project by
project basis and various hurdle rates are considered in terms of our loan and credit policy.
Credit risk consists mainly of advances, cash deposits, cash equivalents and money market assets. The group
only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one
counter-party.
Advances comprise a widespread customer base. Management evaluates credit risk relating to customers on an
ongoing basis. If customers are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating, risk control assessed the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position,
past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.
The board took the decision in March that no new credit decisions will be taken until they are certain what the
full extent of the fallout is from Covid-19 on their clients, the capital market, the economy of South Africa and
well as the world. This decision is reviewed on a continuous basis . The Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk is as follows:
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Group
Figures in Rand
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2020

2019

2020

2019

107 995 979

92 368 020

77 833

284 547

4 308 934

44 406 460

3 750 711 212

3 182 126 390

-

5 035 609

47 358 212

31 975 185

75 488 607

40 281 770

4 699 154

2 963 381
-

7 081

Financial instrument
Cash and cash equivalents
Money market assets
Loans and advances
Loans to group companies and related parties
Investments in joint ventures
Other assets excluding prepayments
Unlisted investments

4 099 385

8 937 211

24 573 001

23 770 113

3 943 745 877

3 386 546 760

75 566 440

45 609 007

Amortised cost

Fair value
through profit
or loss

Total

107 995 979

-

107 995 979

5. Financial assets by category
Group - 2020

Cash and cash equivalents
Money market assets
Loans and advances
other assets excluding prepayments

4 308 934

4 308 934

3 606 105 278

3 606 105 278

4 099 385

4 099 385

Unlisted investments
Loans to group companies and related parties
Investment in joint venture

Group - 2019

24 573 001

24 573 001

46 359 310

46 359 310

4 699 154

4 699 154

3 773 568 040

24 573 001

3 798 141 041

Amortised cost

Fair value
through profit
or loss

Total

Cash and cash equivalents

92 368 020

92 368 020

Money market assets

44 406 460

44 406 460

Loans and advances
other assets excluding prepayments

3 077 270 454

Loans to group companies and related parties
Investment in joint venture

-

11 184 330

Unlisted investments

Company - 2020

146

Company

3 077 270 454
11 184 330

23 770 113

23 770 113

31 975 185

31 975 185

2 963 381

2 963 381

3 260 167 830

23 770 113 3 283 937 943
Amortised cost

Total

Cash and cash equivalents

77 833

77 833

Investment in subsidiaries

26 333 534

26 333 534

Loans to group companies and related parties

71 962 334

71 962 334

98 373 701

98 373 701
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Company - 2019
Cash and cash equivalents
Loan and advances

Notes to the financial statements
Amortised cost

Total

284 547

284 547

Group • 2020

Level 2

Financial liabilities

4 826 192

4 826 192

Investment in subsidiaries

26 333 534

26 333 534

Group • 2019

Loans to group companies and related parties

40 281 770

40 281 770

Financial liabilities

71 726 043

71 726 043

Level 3

3 288 265 798
Level 2

Total
3 288 265 798

Level 3

2 784 700 848

Total
2 784 700 848

7. Cash and cash equivalents
The table below sets out the reconciliation of financial assets that are measured at fair value based on inputs
that are not based on observable market data (level 3):

Current and call accounts

Level 3 unlisted investments
Opening balance
Fair value adjustments (recognised in profit or loss)

23 770 113

22 603 332

802 888

1 166 781

24 573 001

23 770 113

There were no reclassifications, or movements between levels during the current and prior period.
The most pertinent information used to determine the fair value of the unlisted investment is the underlying
net asset value of the company.
The carrying value of financial assets (loans and advances) carried at amortised cost approximates the fair
value.

Financial
liabilites at
amortised cost

Total

Interest bearing liabilities

3 288 265 798

3 288 265 798

Trade and other liabilities

25 438 991

25 438 991

3 313 704 789 3 313 704 789
Financial
liabilites at
amortised cost

Total

Interest bearing liabilities

2 784 700 848

2 784 700 848

Trade and other liabilities

25 193 804

25 193 804

Dividend payable

10 319 959

10 319 959

2 820 214 611

2 820 214 611

Financial
liabilites at
amortised cost

Total

15 410 693

15 410 693

Financial
liabilites at
amortised cost

Total

17 200 559

17 200 559

Company - 2020

Trade and other liabilities
Company - 2019

Trade and other liabilities

13 756
92 354 264

77 833

284 547

107 995 979

92 368 020

77 833

284 647

Composition of cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include total cash and money market
assets. The money market assets are subject to restrictions and are not available to the company or group unless the guarantees are cancelled. All accounts are held at Standard Bank of South Africa Limited.
Cash on hand
Current and call accounts

107 995 979

92 368 020

77 833

284 547

77 833

284 547

4 308 934

44 406 460

112 304 913

136 774 480

Deposits for payment guarantees

2 395 018

40 541 895

Deposits pending property transfer registrations

1 913 916

3 864 565

4 308 934

44 406 460

3 750 711 212

3 182 126 390

5 035 609

(19 772 549)

(23 560 077)

(58 349)

9. Loans and advances
Loan and advances
Deferred raising fee*"

Dividend payable

Group - 2019

17 190
107 978 789

8. Money market assets

6. Financial liabilities by category
Group - 2020

Cash on hand

Expected credit losses

(124 833 385)

(81 295 859)

(151 068)

3 606 105 278

3 077 270 454

4 826 192

•• The current portion of the deferred raising fee is R10 360 377 (2019: R 9 613 096).
** The current portion of the deferred raising fee at company level is R- (2019: R 13 878).

Exposure to credit risk
Loans and advances inherently exposes the group to credit risk, being the risk that the group will incur financial
loss if counterparties fail to make payments as they fall due.
In order to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults, the group only deals with reputable counterparties with consistent payment histories. Sufficient collateral or guarantees are also obtained in all cases. Each
counterparty is analysed individually for creditworthiness before terms and conditions are offered. The analysis
involves making use of information submitted by the counterparties as well as external bureau data (where
available) . Counterparty credit limits are in place and are reviewed and approved by credit management commi
ttees. The exposure to credit risk and the creditworthiness of counterparties is continuously monitored.
Group 2020

Gross loans

Stage 1
Standard
monitoring
3 103 974 071

Stage 2 Special Stage 3 Default
monitoring
253 860 475

392 876 665

Total

3 750 711 211

Liabilities not held at fair value for which fair value is disclosed:
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Expected Credit Losses

Notes to the financial statements

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

Group 2019

9 937 098

8 451 537

62 907 224

81 295 859

Transfers between stages

28 310 478

(4 120 448)

(24 190 030)

-

Transfer to/ (from) stage 1

(1 021 356)

64 683

956 673

-

Transfer to/ (from) stage 2

4 897 132

(5 711 514)

814 382

-

Transfer to/ (from) stage 3

24 434 702

1 526 383

(25 961 085)

-

(18 670 902)

22 740 835

40 809 760

44 879 693

Opening balance at 1 April 2018

47 208 093

51 986 367

Transfers between stages

(6 398 333)

(7 106 674)

Transfer to/ (from) stage 1

7 964 248

7 964 248

Transfer to/ (from) stage 2

(9 306 415)

(9 306 415)

Transfer to/ (from) stage 3

Gross loans
Opening balance at 1 April 2019

Net impairments raised/ (released)
ECL movement in the current year
Change in ECL due to derecognition

(17 962 561)

22 740 835

(708 341)

Suspended interest current year
Impaired accounts written off
Closing balance

19 576 674

27 071 924

78 184 787

124 833 386

1. Net impairments raised/(released) less recoveries of amounts written off in previous years equals income
statement impairment (refer credit impairment charges note)
2. The group’s policy is to transfer opening balances based on the ECL stage at the end of the reporting period.
Therefore exposures can be transferred directly from stage 3 to stage 1 as the curing requirements would have
been satisfied during the reporting period. Furthermore, the expected credit loss recognised on new exposures
originated during the reporting period (which are not included in opening balances) are included within the line
“ECL movement in the current year” based on the exposures ECL stage as at the end of the reporting period.
Net Advances

3 084 397 397

226 788 551

314 691 878

3 625 877 826

Significant changes in the gross carrying amount of loans and advances that contributed to changes in the loss
allowance were:
1. An increase in the loans and advances portfolio of 18% which is in line with the group’s growth strategy.
2. There was a noticeable increase in the stage 3 expected credit losses, mainly as a result of the bankruptcy of
one borrower and for which the group is currently in the process of recovering the collateral.
3. There were noticeable increases in the stage 1 and stage 2 expected credit losses due to the impact of
Covid-19 which has been factored into the forward-looking information as part of the ECL modelling.

Expected Credit Losses

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

2 180 038 666

702 823 385

299 264 339

3 182 126 390

Stage 2 Special Stage 3 Default
monitoring

Total

Stage 1
Standard
monitoring
6 405 049

11 665 577

28 612 976

(3 397 907)

3 397 907

(3 397 907)

3 397 907

46 683 602

-

-

Net impairments raised/ (released)

3 532 049

183 867

27 177 427

30 893 343

EGL movement in the current year

3 532 049

183 867

27 177 427

30 893 343

Interest income on stage 3 loans not recognised

4 382 473

4 382 473

Impaired accounts written off

(663 559)

(663 559)

62 907 224

81 295 859

Change in ECL due to derecognition

Closing balance

9 937 098

8 451 537

1. Net impairments raised/(released) less recoveries of amounts written off in previous years equals income
statement impairment (refer credit impairment charges note)
2. The group’s policy is to transfer opening balances based on the ECL stage at the end of the reporting period .
Therefore exposures can be transferred directly from stage 3 to stage 1 as the curing requirements would have
been satisfied during the reporting period. Furthermore, the expected credit loss recognised on new exposures
originated during the reporting period (which are not included in opening balances) are included within the line
“ECL movement in the current year” based on the exposures ECL stage as at the end of the reporting period.
Net Advances
Company 2019

Gross loans
Expected Credit Losses
Opening balance at 1 April 2018

2 170 101 568
Stage 1
Standard
monitoring

694 371 848

236 357 115

3 100 830 531

Stage 2 Special Stage 3 Default
monitoring

Total

5 035 609
Stage 1

5 035 609
Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

1 355

1 355

Net impairments raised/ (released)

149 713

149 713

EGL movement in the current year

149 713

149 713

151 068

151 068

Transfers between stages
Transfer to/ (from) stage 1
Transfer to/ (from) stage 2
Transfer to/ (from) stage 3

Change in ECL due to derecognition
Interest income on stage 3 loans not recognised
Impaired accounts written off
Closing balance
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1. Net impairments raised/(released) less recoveries of amounts written off in previous years equals income
statement impairment (refer credit impairment charges note)
2. The company’s policy is to transfer opening balances based on the ECL stage at the end of the reporting period. Therefore exposures can be transferred directly from stage 3 to stage 1 as the curing requirements would
have been satisfied during the reporting period . Furthermore, the expected credit loss recognised on new exposures originated during the reporting period (which are not included in opening balances) are included within
the line “ECL movement in the current year” based on the exposures ECL stage as at the end of the reporting
period.
Net Advances

4 884 541

4 884 541

Renegotiated terms
None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year. Funds receivable
are first applied to any past due amounts.
Credit quality of other financial assets
In order to ensure the optimal recovery of the underlying collateral property, management may take temporary possession of an underlying property.
Geographical analysis
Eastern Cape

205 285 274

155 531 502

64 134 338

42 287 173

2 677 609 183

2 447 964 949

Kwazulu Natal

514 384 369

358 666 849

Western Cape

289 298 048

177 675 918

3 750 711 212

3 182 126 391

Free State
Gauteng

6 373 172 799

3 231 938 612

Stage 2

385 920 764

1 052 440 652

Stage 3

596 259 898

437 197 872

39 763 603

44 703 055

51 977 061

30 457 633

7 447 094 125

4 796 737 824

Deferred sale loans
Equity finance second bond

5 035 609

5 035 609

2 233 283

2 891 207

905 783

901 729

Interest on guarantee funds

231 643

567 492

Other receivables - staff debtors and other
sundry

728 676

Prepaid expenses
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2020

2019

Opening
balance

Additions

Total

11 400 000

11 400 000

11. Properties in possession
Reconciliation of properties in possession •
Group - 2020
Properties in possession

Details of properties
1. Old

Trafford, Erven 828-830 located at 24 Kruger street City and Suburban Johannesburg.
The property was acquired in March 2020 on a foreclosure sale and as such is being held at cost for 2020 financial
year.
2. Philipps, Toys, Wellsid Court, Sections 1-8 of Sectional title scheme Toys Court & Sections 1-9 of Sectional title
scheme Philips Court & Sections 1,2,3,5,6,7,8 of Sectional title scheme Wellsid court. Located at 5,6&7 Sueltz
Street Port Elizabeth.

12. Loans to group companies

3 238 316

2 819 018

TUHF Limited

TUHF Properties Proprietary Limited

15 534 176

20 321 928

uMastandi Proprietary Limited

27 174 048

6 590 388

lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited

29 542 067

10 550 436

Loans to group companies ECL

(3 526 273)
71 962 334

40 281 770

Joint ventures

7 546 557

-

5 750

4 576 783

-

1 331

1 786 002

2 247 119

313

2 427

5 885 387

11 184 330

313

9 508

Amounts receivable are all current. No amounts are past due or impaired.

2019

7 546 557

Financial Instruments:
Trade receivables

2020

Subsidiaries*

10. Other assets

Deposits

Figures in Rand

Company

The property was acquired in March 2020 on a foreclosure sale and as such is being held at cost for 2020 financial
year.

Collateral held
The group follows the principle of registering a mortgage bond to the value of 120% of the loan facility amount.
In addition, another 30% of this amount is provided for legal costs in the total bond registered. The amounts
stated below are stated exclusive of the legal costs provided for in the registered mortgage bond.
Stage 1

Group

Better Urban Living 2 Proprietary Limited**
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime
plus 1.75% and is payable in 2023.

22 195 982

11 839 579

Silverkey Proprietary Limited***
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime
plus 1.75% and is payable 2023.

11 737 314

10 439 755

Risk Prop Proprietary Limited**
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime
plus 3% and is payable in 2023.

2 399 878

2 108 254

Pearl Property Investment Proprietary Limited**
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime
plus 5% and is payable in 2024.

2 470 887

Loans to group companies ECL

(754 789)
38 049 272

24 387 588

*All these loans have been classified as stage 2 in 2020 (2019: stage 1)
••All these loans have been classified as stage 1 in 2020 (2019: stage 1)
***This loan has been classified as stage 3 in 2020 (2019: stage 1)
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Group

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

Bjala Investments Proprietary Limited (50%
shareholder of Better Urban Living 2 Proprietary
Limited)**
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime
plus 2% and is repayable in 2023.

4 842 748

4 296 705

EGC Properties Proprietary Limited (50% shareholder and of Silverkey Proprietary Limited)***
The loan is unsecured, bears interest at prime
plus 2.5% and is repayable in 2023.

3 711 403

Loans to related parties ECL

(244 113)

Company
2020

2019

Related parties

Total

The company owns 32,85% (2019: 32,85%) of TUHF Holdings Limited but exerts control through a voting pool
agreement.
Group

%
holding
2020

%
holding
2019

Carrying
amount
2020

Carrying
amount
2019

TUHF Holdings Limited (Subsidiary investmen t)

-%

32,85 %

26 333 333

26 333 333

TUHF Properties Proprietary Limited (Short-term
bridging finance)

-%

100,00 %

100

100

lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited (Equity finance)

-%

100,00 %

100

100

uMastandi Proprietary Limited (Short-term
bridging finance)

-%

100,00 %

1

1

26 333 534

26 333 534

Name of company
3 290 892

8 310 038

7 587 597

46 359 310

31 975185

71 962 334

40 281 770

Reconciliation of group related borrowings
Loans to related parties
Opening balance

31 975 185

10 523 860

40 281 770

25 387 650

Advances

10 174 300

18 729 023

49 126 467

21 667 139

5 208 727

2 722 302

1 411 335

1 206 109

(15 330 965)

(7 979 128)

Interest

13. Investments In subsidiaries
The group’s principal subsidiaries are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interest held
equals the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation for all subsidiaries is South Africa.

14. Investments In joint ventures*
Joint ventures
The following table lists all of the joint ventures in the group:
Name of company

%
holding
2020

%
holding
2019

Carrying
amount
2020

Carrying
amount
2019
Restated

Better Urban Living 2 Proprietary Limited

50,00 %

50,00 %

2 279 727

1 000

Silverkey Proprietary Limited

50,00 %

50,00 %

100

100

Risk Prop Proprietary Limited

50,00 %

50,00 %

2 409 147

2 962 281

Pearl Property Investment Proprietary Limited

50,00 %

-%

10 180

Repayments
Loans to group companies ECL

(754 789)

Loans to related parties ECL

(244 113)

-

(3 526 273)

46 359 310

31 975 185

71 962 334

*All these loans have been classified as stage 2 in 2020 (2019: stage 1)
**All these loans have been classified as stage 1 in 2020 (2019: stage 1)
***This loan has been classified as stage 3 in 2020 (2019: stage 1)

40 281 770

4 699 154

2 963 381

Aggregate amount of the group’s share of profit/ (loss) after tax
Better Urban Living 2 Proprietary Limited

2 278 727

Silverkey Proprietary Limited

-

Risk Prop Proprietary Limited

(553 134)

Pearl Property Investment Proprietary Limited

9 680
1 735 273

1. The company has purchased 50% of the share capital in Better Urban Living 2 Proprietary Limited in February
2018 and a shareholder’s loan of R10.5 million has been advanced. A joint venture agreement has signed for the
development of the investment property.
2. The company has purchased 50% of the share capital in Silverkey Proprietary Limited in September 2018 and
a shareholder’s loan of R9.6 million has been advanced. A joint venture agreement has signed for the development of the investment property.
3. The company has purchased 50% of the share capital in Risk Prop Proprietary Limited in September 2018 and
a shareholder’s loan of R2 million has been advanced. A joint venture agreement has signed for the development of the investment property.
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4.The company has purchased 50% of the share capital in Pearl Properties Investment Proprietary Limited in
June 2019 and a Shareholders loan of R2.2 million has been advanced. A joint venture agreement has been
signed for the development of the investment property.
• Managementhas previously accounted for these Joint Ventures using the fair value basis, in accordance with
IFRS 9, management has changed this In the current year to be accounted for using the equity method In
accordance with IAS 28. The difference between the measurement basis Is not materlal and has been corrected
prospectively.

Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss:
Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited

24 573 001

23 770 113

24 573 001

24 573 001

TUHF Limited holds 5% in Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited. The shares are held at fair value.

Investment in Urban Task
Force Proprietary Limited
Group • 2019
Investment in Urban Task
Force Proprietary Limited

2020
Group

Carrying value

Level 1

Level 2

24 573 001

Carrying value
23 770 113

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Fair value

24 573 001

24 573 001

Level 3

Fair value

23 770 113

23 770 113

Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited is valued as a percentage of net asset value off of the latest available
management accounts of UrbanTask Force Proprietary Limited. Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited operates
in the property rental business and the investment properties in the statement of financial position are measured at fair value at year end.
Management is of the opinion that the net asset value represents fair value accurately as the investment properties are the most significant assets on the Statement of Financial Position . Management has also reviewed
independent and director’s valuations of the assets and liabilities of Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited and is
comfortable that the net asset value is within an acceptable range of these values. Independent valuations are
obtained by the directors of Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited and a capitalisation rate of 10% - 12% was
considered a key assumption.

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

2019

Carrying
value

Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Carrying
value

Office furniture and equipment

3 491 417

(2 565 993)

925 424

3 154 691

(2 014 465)

1 140 226

Computer hardware and
telephones

5 275 116

(4 272 193)

1 002 923

4 717 839

(3 738 951)

978 888

8 766 533

(6 838 186)

1 928 347

7 872 530

(5 753 416)

2 119 114

Total

15. Unlisted Investments

Fair value disclosures
Group • 2020

16. Equipment

Reconciliation of
Equipment • Group - 2020

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

Office furniture and equipment

1 140 226

341 335

(956)

(555 181)

925 424

978 888

606 739

.

(582 704)

1 002 923

2 119 114

948 074

(956)

(1 137 885)

1 928 347

Reconciliation of
Equipment • Group - 2019

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

Office furniture and equipment

1 216 797

409 538

.

(486 109)

1 140 226

Computer hardware and
telephones

1 181 797

636 988

(19 433)

(820 464)

978 888

2 398 594

1 046 526

(19 433)

(1 306 573)

2 119 114

Opening balance

Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

11 136 982

762 776

(3 641 416)

8 258 342

Opening balance

Additions

Payments

Interest
expense

Total

11 857 005

762 776

(4 421 549)

1 029 416

9 227 648

Computer hardware and
telephones

17. Leases (group as lessee)
Right-of-use assets
Office space (buildings)
Lease liabilities
Office space (buildings)

At 31 March 2020, if the capitalisation rate used to value the investment properties of Urban Task Force Proprietary Limited had been 1% higher (downturn) or 1% lower (upturn) with all other variables held constant, the
value of the unlisted investment would be as follows:
2020

156

Downturn

R18 521 562

Base Case

R24 573 001

Upturn

R31 834 728
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Group

Figures in Rand

2020

Company

2019

2020

19. Deferred tax

2019

Group
Figures in Rand

2020

2019

Accelerated depreciation

(1 339 809)

(1 457 174)

Deferred and prepaid expenses

(3 842 237)

(2 500 263)

More than five years

Fair value adjustment

(3 435 906)

(4 099 624)

Total undiscounted lease liabilities at
31 March 2020

IFRS 16 leases

Company
2020

2019

Finance lease liabilities			
Deferred tax liability

Maturity analysis
Within one year

788 537

Two to five years

8 087 555
8 876 092

Total deferred tax liability

Lease liabilities In the statement of financial
position at 31 March 2020

Provision for bonus
7 553 858

Loan impairments

Current liabilities

1 673 790

Rental equalisation

Total

9 227 648

Deferred income

Comparative Information for lease liabilities under IAS 17
The information presented for lease liabilities for the comparative period has been prepared on the basis of IAS
17, and therefore only represents the liability as at that date for finance leases and not for operating leases. In
addition to the information presented in the table above, IAS 17 required an entity to present a reconciliation of
the present value of lease payments for finance leases. This information is presented in the table which follows:
Future aggregate minimum lease payments
under cancellable leases as follows:
- Office rental payable within 1 year

5 122 309

- Office rental payable within 2-5 years

4 240 384

Total

9 362 693

Provision for bad debts
lntercompany ECL

Group

2020
Cost/ Accumulated
Valuation amortisation

Reconclllatlon of intangible assets Group • 2019			
Computer software

(88)

(680)

(13 187 656)

2019

Carrying
value
4 785 034

321 824

461 060

4 300 020

1 371 125

-

42299

-

16 338

201 606
5 536 314

6 596 822

17 470 603

16 043 786

167 815

592 414

27 796 576

24 674 399

592 414

58 637

Total deferred tax asset

27 796 576

24 674 399

692 414

68 637

Deferred tax liability

(8 767 963)

(8 057 061)

(88)

(680)

Deferred tax asset

27 796 576

24 674 399

592 414

58 637

Total net deferred tax asset

19 028 613

16 617 338

592 326

67 957

16 617 338

17 927 023

57 957

20 955

(139 236)

(765 964)

117 365

33 463

4 355 711

6 515 319

(42 299)

41 919

Provision

Computer software

(8 057 061)

Reconcillatlon of deferred tax asset/ (liability)

18. Intangible assets

Reconclllatlon of intangible assets Group • 2020			

(8 767 963)

Deferred tax balance from temporary differences
other than unused tax losses

At beginning of year

17 972 690

(680)

(150 011)

Deferred tax asset

Non-current liabilities

Computer software

(88)

Cost Accumulated
amortisation
16 451 391

(11 247 197)

Carrying
value
5 204 194

Opening
balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

5 204 194

1 521 299

(1 940 459)

4 785 034

Opening
balance

Additions

Amortisation

Total

5 323 705

1 637 740

(1 757 251)

5 204 194

Accelerated depreciation
Current year charge - movement on loan impairment
Rental equalisation

(49 773)

Deferred income

(1 060 507)

870 291

(16 338)

(4 412)

Deferred and prepaid expenses

(1 161 673)

(1 209 692)

592

(505)

(179 847)

(924 797)

Fair value adjustment
Pre-trade expenditure not deductible
lntercompany ECL
IFRS 16 leases
Opening balance adjustment
Prior year adjustment

(161 854)
167 816

592 414

(150 011)
663 439

(5 616 678)

(201 782)
19 028 613

16 617 338

692 326

57 967

The deferred tax balance at year end is considered non-current.
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20. Non-distributable reserves
A grant agreement was entered into between TUHF Limited and National Treasury to advance R200 million
to TUHF Limited over 3 years. The funds will be combined with RBOO million senior debt to lend to end user
clients.To date R157 million has been receivedand on lent to end users. These funds are not available for distribution to the shareholders. TUHF Limited has the unconditional right to avoid the repayment of these funds as
at 31 March 2020.

23. Financial liabilities

A grant agreement was entered into between TUHF21 NPC and National Treasury to advance R75 million to
TUHF21 NPC over 3 years. The money will flow down to lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited where it
will be used to lend to user clients. To date R29.4 million has been received and on lent to end users. These
funds are not available for distribution to owners. TUHF21 NPC has the unconditional right to avoid the repayment of these funds as at 31 March 2020.
A grant agreement was entered into between TUHF21 NPC and National Treasury to advance R25 million to
TUHF21 NPC over 3 years. The money will flow down to uMastandi Proprietary Limited where it will be used
to lend to user clients. To date R6.2 million has been received and on lent to end users. These funds are not
available for distribution to owners.
TUHF21 NPC has the unconditional right to avoid the repayment of these funds as at 31 March 2020.
Group
Figures in Rand
Non-distributable reserve
Grant received from National Treasury

2020

2019

157 499 759

157 499 759

35 541 651
193 041 410

Group
Figures in Rand

2020

2019

National Housing Finance Corporation SOC
Limited
The loan of R50 million from the National
Housing Finance Corporation SOC Limited is at
an interest rate of prime minus 2%. Interest and
capital is repaid over the remaining term and
will be repaid by September 2024. The loan is
secured by a cession of all the rights, title and/or
interests the group holds or which it may acquire
in future, arising out of, or in connection with the
end user agreements which have been financed
from this facility.

17 564 720

20 595 312

National Housing Finance Corporation SOC
Limited
The loan of R50 million from the National
Housing Finance Corporation SOC Limited is at
an interest rate of prime minus 2%. Interest and
capital is repaid over the remaining term and will
be repaid by 30 November 2024.

28 061 776

30 482 154

Company
2020

2019

Held at amortised cost
Secured

Company
2020

2019

9 386 395

35 541 651

9 386 395

166 886 154

35 541 651

9 386 395

21. Trade and other payables
Financial Instruments:
Trade payables

21 793 327

22 638 633

Other payables

3 356 126

1 647 243

15 373 578

17 142 245

Non-financial Instruments:
Operating lease accruals
VAT

720 022
289 538

187 906

37 115

58 314

25 438 991

25 193 804

15 410 693

17 200 559

The balance at year end is considered current.
22. Dividend payable
Opening balance
Dividends accrued
Dividends declared and paid
Closing balance
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10 319 959

11 810 788

59 886

10 005 507

(10 319 959)

(11 496 336)
10 319 959

Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
The loan of R150 million from The Standard Bank
of South Africa Limited is at an Interest rate of
prime minus 0.8%. The loan was repaid in full on
18 June 2019. The Joan is secured by a cession
of all the rights, title and/or interests the group
holds or which it may acquire in future, arising
out of, or In connection with the end user agreements which are financed from this facility.
Development Bank of South Africa SOC Limited
The loan of R50 million from the Development
Bank of South Africa SOC Limited is at an interest rate of prime minus 2%. Interest and capital
is repaid over the remaining term and will be
repaid by September 2022.
The loan is secured by a cession of all the rights,
title and/or Interests the group holds or which
it may acquire in future, arising out of, or in connection with the end user agreements which are
financed from this facility.

10 740 654

11 949 590

16 099 720
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)

23. Financial liabilities (continued)
Group

Figures in Rand

162

2020

2019

Development Bank of South Africa SOC
Limited
The loan of R100 million from the Development
Bank of South Africa SOC Limited is at an Interest rate of prime minus 2%. Interest and capital
Is repaid over the remaining term and must
be repaid in full by 30 June 2024. The loan is
secured by a cession of all the rights, title and/or
interests the group holds or which it may acquire
in future, arising out of, or in connection with the
end user agreements which are financed from
this facility.

38 693 700

46 040 681

Future Growth Asset Management
The loan of R100 million from Future Growth
Asset at an interest rate of prime minus 0,9%.
Interest and capital is repaid over the remaining
term and will be repaid by February 2022. The
loan is secured by a cession of all the rights, title
and/or interests the group holds or which it may
acquire in future, arising out of, or in connection
with the end user agreements which are financed
from this facility.

22 984 416

33 440 525

National Housing Finance Corporation SOC
Limited
The loan of R100 million from the National
Housing Finance Corporation SOC Limited is at
an interest rate of prime minus 2%. Interest and
capital is repaid over the remaining term and will
be repaid by July 2028. The loan is secured by a
cession of all the rights, title and/or interests the
group holds or which it may acquire in future,
arising out of, or in connection with the end user
agreements which are financed from this facility.

61 016 783

65 992 943

National Housing Finance Corporation SOC
Limited
The loan of R25 million from the National
Housing Finance Corporation SOC Limited is at
an interest rate of prime minus 2%. Interest and
capital is repaid over the remaining term and will
be repaid by July 2029. The loan is secured by a
cession of all the rights, title and/or interests the
group holds or which it may acquire in future,
arising out of, or in connection with the end user
agreements which are financed from this facility.

13 612 631
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14 543 087

Company
2020

2019

Group
Figures in Rand

Company
2020

2019

National Housing Finance Corporation SOC
Limited
The loan of R120 million from the National
Housing Finance Corporation SOC Limited is at
an interest rate of prime minus 0.5%. Interest
and capital is repaid over the remaining term
and will be repaid in full by December 2025.The
loan is secured by a cession of all the rights, title
and/or interests the group holds or which it may
acquire in future, arising out of, or in connection
with the end user agreements which are financed
from this facility.

67 599 319

76 218 950

Development Bank of South Africa SOC
Limited
The loan of R200 million from the Development
Bank of South Africa Limited is at an interest
rate of prime minus 1.0%. Interest and capital
is repaid over the remaining term and must be
repaid in full by 31 December 2024.The loan is
secured by a cession of all the rights, title and/or
interests the group holds or which it may acquire
in future, arising out of, or in connection with the
end user agreements which are financed from
this facility.

94 212 214

109 415 969

Cadiz Life and Asset Management
The loan of R40 million from Cadiz Life and R10
million from Cadi z Asset Management is at an
interest rate of prime plus 0.25%.The facility
period was extended for another 60 months in
June 2015. Interest and capital is repaid over the
remaining term and repayment is extended by
12 months to June 2021. The loan is secured by
a cession of all the rights, title and/or interests
the group holds or which it may acquire in future,
arising out of, or in connection with the end user
agreements which are financed from this facility.

26 581 211

30 206 879

Futuregrowth Asset Management
The loan of R250 million from Futuregrowth
Asset Management is at an interest rate of prime
plus 0.5%. The facility is fully drawn and interest
and capital is paid monthly. The facility is repayable in full by July 2021.

103 940 975

127 923 987

2020

2019
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)

23. Financial liabilities (continued)
Group

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

9 420 182

10 429 202

Public Investment Corporation
The loan of R300 million from the Public Investment Corporation is at an interest rate of prime
less 2%. The facility is fully drawn and interest
and capital is paid monthly. The facility is repayable in full by June 2027.

194 974 800

214 025 793

Futuregrowth Asset Management
The loan of R300 million from Futuregrowth
Asset Management acting as facility agent on
behalf of Senior Lenders is at an interest rate of
prime plus 0.2%. R200 million is repayable in
equal monthly instalments of capital and interest calculated and interest calculated according
to a 144 month amortisation profile as from 13
June 2013 and a final single payment on 15 July
2023. R100 million is repayable in equal monthly
instalments of capital and interest calculated
according to a 144 month amortisation profile as
from 15 January 2014 and a final single payment
15 January 2024. The loan is secured by a cession
of rights, title and/or interest the Group holds,
or which in may acquire in future, arising out of,
or in connection with the end user agreements
which are financed from this facility.

181 048 424

Standard Bank Warehouse: 700 million
The loan of R700 million bears interest at the
3-month Jibar rate plus a margin of 3.25%, with
the 3-month JIBAR rate resetting quarterly.
Interest is payable on a monthly basis and with
a capital repayment at the maturity date of
January 2037.

388 292 203

Mergence Investment Managers
The loan of R15 million from Mergence Investment Managers is at an interest rate of prime less
0.5%. The facility is fully drawn and interest and
capital is paid monthly. The facility is repayable
in full by July 2026.

National Housing Finance Corporation Limited
The preference shares are issued to the National
Housing Finance Corporation Limited and are
at an interest rate of prime less the corporate
tax rate, currently 6,3%. Dividend payments
have been accrued. The preference shares are
redeemable in 2022 and rank after secured loans
for repayment.
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36 704 797

204 678 920

36 734 485

Group
2020

2019

Figures in Rand

Company
2020

2019

Futuregrowth Asset Management
The loan of R200 million from Futuregrowth
Asset Management is at an interest rate of prime
plus 0.20%.
The facility is fully drawn as funds are required
and interest and capital is paid monthly. The loan
is repayable in equal installments and is repayable in full by October 2024.

118 584 862

138 299 901

Ashburton Investments
A R65 million promissory note from Ashburton
Investments issued at a nominal value of R65
million each, made to property developers is
funded by the issue of the notes. Interest is
serviced monthly and capital is redeemed on
maturity in a bullet payment.
The coupon is priced at prime and the final
redemption date was extended to November
2020. This facility has been rolled on a monthly
basis with the intention to roll it over for another
5 years.

65 492 486

65 521 068

Mergence Investment Managers
The loan of R11 million from Mergence Investment Managers is at an interest rate of prime.
The facility is fully drawn and interest and capital
is paid monthly. The facility is repayable in full by
February 2030.

9 286 695

9 816 821

Futuregrowth Asset Management
The loan of R400 million from Futuregrowth
Asset Management Is at an interest rate of prime
plus 0.40%.
The facility is available for 1 years and interest is
serviced monthly. The capital will be repaid by
January 2020. An extension on repayment has
been granted on this facility to March 2021.

104 173 715

321 331 507

Futuregrowth Asset Management
The loan of R60 million from Futuregrowth Asset
Management is at an interest rate of prime plus
0.25%.
The facility is fully drawn and interest and capital
are paid monthly on the remainder of the term
facility will be fully paid by March 2026.

43 320 902

48 189 635

2020

2019
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)

23. Financial liabilities (continued)
Group

Figures in Rand

166

Company
2020

2019

Futuregrowth Asset Management
The loan of R100 million from Futuregrowth
Asset Management is at an interest rate of prime
plus 0.40%.
The facility is fully drawn and interest and capital
is paid monthly. The facility is repayable in full by
December 2026.

77 863 851

85 405 854

National Housing Finance Corporation
The loan of R200 million from National Housing
Finance Corporation Limited is at an interest rate
of prime plus 0.25%. Interest and Capital is paid
monthly.
The facility is fully drawn and interest and capital
is repaid over the remaining term. The facility is
repayable in full by February 2033.

188 729 819

195 443 825

Nedbank
The loan of R100 million from Nedbank is at an
interest rate of prime. The facility is fully drawn
and interest is payable on a monthly basis. The
capital will be repaid in a single payment at the
end of the term. The facility is fully repayable by
July 2022.

98 291 954

Novo Impact Fund
The loan of R10 million from Novo Impact Fund
is at an interest rate of prime less 0,5%. The
facility is fully drawn and interest is payable on a
monthly basis. The capital will be repaid in a single payment at the end of the term. The facility is
fully repayable by May 2024.

Group
2020

2019

Gauteng Partnership Fund (GPF) - 10 million
The loan of R10 million from the Gauteng Partnership Fund is at a rate of prime less 2%. The
capital and interest is due in September 2020.
The facility may only be invested in equity funding projects.

13 712 876

12 660 395

Novo Impact Fund (Previously The New Housing Company) - 5 million
The loan of RS million from Novo Impact Fund
(previously The New Housing Company) secured
by a way of 2nd mortgage bond at an interest
rate of prime less 2%. Interest is paid monthly.
The repayment of capital is due in November
2019. The facility may only be invested in equity
funding projects.

5 042 880

5 056 488

99 919 592

NHFC Bridging Loan: 60 million
The loan of R60 million from NHFC is at an
interest rate of prime plus 2%. The facility is fully
drawn. The capital and interest will be repaid in a
single payment at the end of the tern,. Discussions are underway to extend the facility to
September 2021.

63 219 870

10 072 031

10 080 715

Taquanta: 100 million
The loan of R100 million from Taquanta bears
interest at the 3-month Jibar rate plus 4,25%,
with the 3-month JIBAR rate resetting quarterly.
The facility is fully drawn and interest is payable
on a quarterly basis. The capital will be repaid
in a single payment at the end of the term. The
facility is fully repayable by December 2020.

100 465 753

Novo Impact Fund (Previously The New Housing Company) - 10 million
The loan of R10 million from Novo Impact Fund
(Previously The New Housing Company) is secured by means of a second mortgage bond and
interest is payable at the prime rate less 2%. The
facility is fully drawn. Interest is payable from
May 2019. Capital will be repaid within 7 years
being 31 July 2024.

1 491 936

1 483 098
Ashburton: 90 million
The loan of R90 million from Ashburton is at
prime rate .
The facility is fully drawn and interest is payable
on a monthly basis. The capital will be repaid
in a single payment at the end of the term. The
facility is fully repayable by May 2024.

90 670 068

Novo Impact Fund (Previously The New Housing Company) - 5 million
The loan of RS million from Novo Impact Fund
(Previously The New Housing Company) secured
by a way of 2nd mortgage bond at an interest rate of prime less 2%. Interest is payable
monthly. The repayment of capital is due in May
2022. The facility may only be invested in equity
funding projects.

3 882 705
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2020

2019

Figures in Rand

Company
2020

2019

3 886 499
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23. Financial liabilities (continued)

23. Financial liabilities (continued)
Group

Figures in Rand

Company
2020

Lionshead (ALCB Fund): 100 million
The loan of R100 million from Lionshead (ACLB
Fund) is at an fixed interest rate of 10,25% for
the first 12 months. Step-up interest rate of
3M JIBAR plus 3.75% will come into effect from
October 2020 to March 2021.
A further step up of 3M JIBAR plus 4.25% will
apply from April 2021 to September 2021. The
facility is fully drawn and interest is payable on a
quarterly basis. The capital will be repaid in a single payment at the end of the term. The facility is
fully repayable by September 2021.

100 285 178

SEFA: 60 million
The loan of R60 million from SEFA is at prime
rate. The facility is fully drawn and interest is
payable on a monthly basis. The capital will be
repaid on a monthly basis with a 6 months moratorium from first draw date.
The facility is fully repayable by March 2030.

30 050 342

2019

Stanlib Asset Management: R60 million
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2020

2019

Figures in Rand

Company
2020

Mergence Investment Managers: R21 million

2019

2020

2019

21 376 964

Rand Merchant Holdings: R4 million

4 071 803

Domestic Medium-Term Note Programme:
A second listed and rated domestic medium-term note was raised on 24 January 2020.
The term of the notes is 4 years and the interest
rate is at 3 month JIBAR rate plus a margin of
2.85%. The capital is repayable in October 2024.
The note was fully taken by Sanlam.
Sanlam Asset Management: R280 million

285 033 863

102 813 019

A Class Noteholders

507 335 041

395 477 514

B Class Noteholders

59 023 403

46 450 680

D Class Noteholders

27 510 254

20 687 075

3 300 198 225 2

792 306 119

Mortgage backed securities
A listed and rated residential mortgage backed
securitisation was raised on 19 December 2018.
The revolving period ends in January 2020 during
which mortgage assets can be added. Interest
is serviced quarterly. From January 2020 both
capital and interest is serviced until all investor
obligations are extinguished. The scheme is open
to refinance after 6 years, being January 2025.

Domestic Medium Term Note Programme:
A Listed and rated domestic medium term note
was raised on 26 January 2017. The term of the
notes is 3 years and the interest rate is the 3
month JIBAR rate plus a margin of 3.25%. The
capital is repayable in October 2024. The note
has been fully subscribed and the participants are
listed below: All the notes were fully repaid on
the due date.
Futuregrowth Asset Management: R94 million

Group

95 687 364

Deferred raising fee

(11 932 427)

(7 605 271)

3 288 265 798 2

784 700 848

61 077 041
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24. Share based payment reserve

26. Interest expenses
Group

Figures in Rand

2020

Opening balance
Awards vested during the year
Shares awarded not yet vested

2019

Company
2020

2019

41 898

41 898

(41 898)

(41 898)

Group
Figures in Rand
Interest on borrowings
Interest on fees on current account

6 997 098

Preference dividends

6 997 098

Interest paid to SARS

TUHF Conditional Share Plan:
As an incentive for current and prospective employees of the Company, TUHF Holdings Limited has established
a Conditional Share Plan (“CSP”) to which 4 858 000 ordinary shares of a par value of R0.0001 each has been
allocated.
Conditional awards made are subject to the company achieving performance metrics (such as, return on equity,
growth in profit after tax, total capital impaired and other non-financial metrics) and are measured between a
two to five year performance period. Conditional awards that employees become entitled to as a result of the
Remuneration Committee and management’s deliberations are vested into their name, equally over a three
year period.
Following the vesting of conditional awards, the company is required to procure the settlement of the shares to
be vested from TUHF Holdings Limited. Such shares are allotted and issued at the market value per share at no
cost to the employee. The employee bears the taxation cost when the shares vest based on the current value
per share.
In terms of the rules of the CSP, if an employee should leave the employment of TUHF Limited, TUHF Limited
has the right of first refusal to purchase those shares registered in the employee’s name at the current market
value.
TUHF21 NPC may withhold any amounts or make such arrangements as are necessary to meet any liability to
taxation or any other liabilities and costs in respect of the vesting of a conditional award.
At the end of the period under review, TUHF Limited held 1 997 621 (2019: 1 955 742) treasury shares in TUHF
Holdings Limited.
On 1 April 2019 and 23 September 2019, grant letters were awarded to employees for 5 234 292 shares that
will vest over the period April 2021 to April 2024 subject to specific service and performance conditions being
met. The assessed fair value at grant date of share awards granted during the year ended 31 March 2020 was
R6.31 per share. The fair value at grant date is determined using management’s best estimates of the following
assumptions;
•
78% probability of meeting performance conditions; and
•
5% attrition rate for qualifying employees.

Interest expense - lease liability

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

297 224 131

241 874 103

805 769

816 235

11 489

3 003

2 525 696

2 542 266

36 647

3 819

32
14

1 029 416
300 827 379

244 423 191

805 769

816 281

Raising fees and legal fees of R2 522 338 (2019: R 1 880 367) were recognised in the financial year under review
and are included in interest on borrowings for group.
27. Expected credit losses
Stage 1

(17 683 108)

3 532 049

(151 068)

Stage 2

22 740 835

183 867

3 526 273

Stage 3

40 820 869

27 177 427

(588 182)

(4 313 379)

45 290 414

26 579 964

Recoveries in the year

149 713

3 375 205

149 713

391 957

28. Non Interest income
Management and incentive fees

1 171 020

966 539

Rental income

1 363 736

1 249 526

Sundry income

5 238 753

3 633 452

-

Agency fee income

1 505 614

1 501 500

1 505 614

1 501 500

Dividends received

842 778

500 000

59 886

5 280 041

10 121 901

7 851 017

1 565 500

7 173 498

802 888

1 166 782

29. Other operating gains (losses)
Fair value gains (losses)
Financial assets mandatorily at fair value through
profit or loss

25. Interest income
Interest on advances

467 943 429

395 483 412

Interest on call deposits

7 308 185

4 509 724

Interest on guarantee deposits

2 376 740

1 795 123

10 574

11 835

Interest on advances to related company

Interest on staff loans
Interest received from SARS

297 449

589 893

1 411 335

1 206 109

19 334

55 503

45 926

61 931

14 183

477 684 854

401 862 025

1 742 301

1 851 505

Raising fee income of R18 484 171 (2019: R 13 972 132) was recognised in the financial year under review and is
included in interest on advances for group.
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30. Expenses by nature

33. Taxation
Group

Figures in Rand

Company
2020

Auditors remuneration

2019

4 312 288

2 747 038

Consulting fees

17 913 699

11 666 405

Depreciation and Amortisation

3 078 345

3 063 823

Depreciation- Leases

Group
2020

2019

961 049

10 000

2020

2019

2020

2019

6 127 477

19 697 846

432 097

(431 897)

(2 963 696)

(5 088 946)

(534 369)

552 781

781 955

Major components of the tax expense (Income)
Current
Local income tax - current period

3 641 417

Employee Costs

63 091 467

49 946 254

Financial Administration

1 128 453

552 532

Information Technology Costs

1 830 368

1 410 407

Marketing

3 004 753

2 220 512

(2 410 915)

(4 306 991)

(534 369)

430 787

4 559 169

3 716 562

15 390 855

(102 272)

(431 897)

Other expenses

9 876 641

4 844 108

Project Management

2 429 748

937 815

Telephone and Fax Charges

1 065 476

900 345

Training and Skills Development

4 168 664

2 623 417

11 863 832

52 749 488

(2 763 341)

3 558 600

Utilities

1 023 666

908 859

3 321 873

14 769 857

(773 735)

996 408

Office Rental

Valuations
VAT - Input Vat not claimable as it relates to
non-taxable supplies

480 572

616 413

6 389 008

5 552 344

Deferred
Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability

881 175

4 436 197
46 074

13 313

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax
expense
Accounting profit (loss)
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 28% (2019:
28%)

34 631

8 138

92 549 441

1 890 168

4 500 409

Charitable donations income

(64 119)

Assessed loss utilised

31. Employee benefit expense
Employee costs included in note 30, comprises:

58 770

No assessed loss created

Employee Costs
Employee costs salaried staff

Reconciliation of the tax expense

Tax effect of adjustments on taxable Income
123 865 352

42 571 932

37 218 570

Directors emoluments

9 816 237

9 995 960

Non-executive directors

3 706 200

2 643 212

Share-based payment

6 997 098

118 700

63 091 467

49 976 442

122

Non deductible interest on preference shares

707 195

711 834

Non taxable fair value adjustment

(44 961)

(231 199)

Non taxable income
Non deductible expenses

(831 977)

7 397

178 592

191 493

Pre trade expenditure deferred tax asset

161 854

Pre trade expenditure utilised

(75 805)

IFRS accounting policy change

201 606

TUHF Ltd has a defined contribution provident plan governed by the Pension Funds Act, 1956, as amended , to
ensure all permanent employees are required to join. Payments to the provident plan are charged as an expense
as they fall due.

Prior year adjustment

(38 914)

The group has no obligations for post-retirement health benefits.

Under/(over) provision of prior year income tax

Provident fund

5 510 461

SARS interest and penalties
Reversal prior year income tax asset
Exempt dividends

The group’s expense in respect of defined contribution plans is:
4 959 776

32. Investment income

Operating leases - as lessee (expense)

Loans to group companies:

Minimum lease payments due
4 242 173

Fair value adjustment on joint ventures
Equity accounting earnings/ (losses)
Total investment Income

T UHF INTEGRATED ANNUAL REPORT 2020

10 261

239 366

12 903

1 067

432 097

4
432 097

(416)

199

(202 442)

(140 000)

(1 478 411)

3 733 330

15 390 855

(102 272)

(468 897)

34. Commitments

Interest Income
Interest income

172

Figures in Rand

Company

2 263 728

- Office rental payable within 1 year

2 961 781

- Office rental payable between 2 to 5 years

4 240 384
9 362 693

1 735 273
5 977 446

5 122 309

5 225 509

This note has been replaced by IFRS 16 (See note 17).
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Group

Figures in Rand

2020

2019

Company
2020

2019

Group
Figures in Rand

35. Borrowing capacity
In terms of the company’s memorandum of incorporation the borrowing powers of the company are unlimited except where any indebtedness, other than trade debt in the ordinary course of business, is limited to R20
million. Undertakings have also been given to certain lenders of maintaining a debt to capital ratio of 90%.

Bjala Investments Proprietary Limited (50%
shareholder of Better Urban Living 2 Proprietary Limited)

36. Related parties

EGC Properties Proprietary Limited (50%
shareholder of Sllverkey Proprietary Limited

Holding company

TUHF Holdings Limited

Subsidiaries

Refer to note 13

Joint ventures

Refer to note 14

Interest received

Interest received

2020

2019

(546 044)

(296 705)

(420 510)

(161 870)

Company
2020

2019

Key management compensation
All members of the board are considered key management. Refer to note 37 for details of fees paid to directors.

Related party balances and transactions

S Moraba, a director of the company, is the chief executive officer of the National Housing Finance Corporation
SOC Limited (NHFC). This company has granted the company wholesale loan facilities amounting to R703,5
million (2019: R443,1 million).

Related party transactions
NHFC
Interest paid

38 365 749

38 365 749

NHFC
Total NHFC debt facilities: capital advanced

TUHF Properties Proprietary Limited
Loan - interest paid at market call rates and
repayable within 12 months

2 819 018

703 594 757

443 095 757

Interest paid

39 740 710

38 365 749

Interest and capital repayments

63 212 064

62 227 242

299 980 457

299 980 457

Interest paid

16 470 908

18 080 880

Interest and capital repayments

35 521 901

35 633 820

Cash
component

Bonus

Provident fund

Other

Total

2 908 858

2 600 000

539 744

535 699

6 584 301

PIC

TUHF Properties Proprietary Limited
Interest received

(340 798)

(289 860)

lntuthuko Equity Fund Proprietary Limited
Interest received

(130 319)

(53 774)

Total facilities

37. Directors’ emoluments
Group

uMastandl Proprietary Limited

Executive

Interest received

(160 507)

(53 687)

2020

TUHF Limited
Interest received
Managing fees

(779 712)

(808 788)

203 846

204 245

Internal recovery fees

IL Roodt

1 869 243

900 000

322 961

139 732

3 231 936

4 778 101

3 600 000

862 705

675 431

9 816 237

Cash
component

Bonus

Provident fund

Other

Total

PGN Jackson

2 646 464

3 250 000

487 322

540 426

6 924 212

IL Roodt

1 766 014

900 000

302 148

103 586

3 071 748

4 412 478

4 15 0 000

789 470

644 012

9 995 960

1 956 523
-575 866

Better Urban Living 2 Proprietary Limited (Joint
Venture)
Interest received

PGN Jackson

1 351 980
2019

(2 388 916)

(2 519 837)

(1 297 558)

(839 755)

SllverKey Proprietary Limited (Joint Venture)
Interest received
Risk Prop Proprietary Limited (Joint Venture)
Interest received
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37. Directors’ emoluments (continued)

of the country. Collections were negatively impacted for the period 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020; however, a
slight improvement has been noted since July 2020 that is continuing into September 2020.

Non-executive
2020
SS Moraba

Directors' fees

Total

431 250

431 250

T Adler

512 650

512 650

C Coovadia

726 650

726 650

RR Emslie

668 050

668 050

JF Howard

288 250

288 250

JK Mamatela

281 250

281 250

JS Strelitz

325 250

325 250

L Vutula

265 650

265 650

R Solomon

83 700

83 700

B Mapongwana

48 500

48 500

PIG

75 000

75 000

3 706 200

3 706 200

Directors' fees

Total

SS Moraba

354 550

354 550

T Adler

358 206

358 206

C Coovadia

472 300

472 300

2019

PGN Jackson

461 000

461 000

JF Howard

200 500

200 500

JK Mamatela

277 550

277 550

JS Strelitz

245 050

245 050

P Magula

78 650

78 650

L Vutula

124 906

124 906

70 500

70 500

2 643 212

2 643 212

R Solomon

38. Contingencies
The rules of the group’s Conditional Plan requires that all participants who leave the employ of any group company for any reason whatsoever, will offer to sell their shares to TUHF Limited.
Should TUHF Limited not accept this offer, the participant must offer to sell the shares to other participants in
the Plan and failing this being accepted, the offer must be extended to all other shareholders in the company.
39. Material uncertainty related to the going concern assumption
South Africa’s economy is expected to decline by 8% this year, its worst performance in nearly 90 years.
Household consumption will remain constrained by reduced income as well as low job growth. The 2020 outlook may deteriorate further if the global economy continues to weaken, or economic activity is curtailed again
to protect public health.

The Group is heavily dependent on well-priced external funding to support growth and maintain liquidity. As indicated in note 2 to the financial statements, in accordance with IFRS compliance the Group has a liquidity mismatch of R1 329 267 561 and If borrowers do not demand repayment of their liabilities in the next 12 months
despite certain covenant breaches, the liquidity mismatch is R 300 247 382 In order to fund this mismatch, the
Group is dependent on the ability and intention of certain funders to either grant new funding or to refinance
existing facilities that are due for repayment in the next 12 months.
These events and conditions Indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and therefore that it may be unable to realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
The following are some of the remedial actions taken by management to deal with these events and conditions:
• The Group has made a decision to delay extending new credit until September 2020.
• All the Group’s funders provided a payment holiday on principal payments for a period of six months, expiring
30 September 2020.
• Shareholders have committed additional loans of R 55 million that are subordinated to senior debt and are
repayable in 18 months. The facility can be used for existing project commitments or can be used as a buffer for
operating costs. At the date of the approval of the financial statements, the legal contracts are still outstanding.
The Group however do have facilities that remain active for disbursement. These facilities are the Standard Bank
warehouse facility and the SEFA facility subject to certain conditions, including the approval of the 2020 financial statements. In August 2020 the Group received an approval from Eskom Pension Fund for a R 250 million
facility. All these measures and lines of credit mitigates some the risk created by the uncertainty as mentioned
above.
40. Events after the reporting period
The Covid-19 pandemic is an adjusting post balance sheet event for TUHF21 NPC. On 15 March 2020, the
President of South Africa declared the Covid-19 impact as a national state of disaster and on 23 March 2020 a
21-day lockdown was mandated from 26 March 2020 to 16 April 2020. On 9 April 2020, the President of South
Africa further extended the lockdown period until 30 April 2020. As from the 1st of May 2020 the lockdown
was further extended, with the country moving different stages of risks between level 1 to level 5 depending on
the severity of the pandemic. The group completed the impairment testing of all its financial and non-financial
assets to take the impact of Covid-19 into account. The pandemic is causing significant domestic and global
economic uncertainty and social restrictions which are directly impacting TUHF’s financial performance.
TUHF Board of Directors have made a decision that no new credit will be granted until further notice, the
majority of the TUHF’s employees are working remotely . This is having a direct impact on all risk types within
TUHF’s risk management framework.
All the impacts on TUHF’s risk profile from the pandemic are being regularly monitored, which includes an
assessment of whether the controls currently in place are adequate to mitigate the evolving risks. Controls in
place to manage the increased risk include: measuring productivity of employees while working remotely, Ongoing assessment of the arrears profile of the loan book and engaging with clients on an individual basis to work
on possible restructurings or other debt relief measures, monitoring of the impact on the liquidity profile of
TUHF21 NPC to ensure that funding can be paid as and when they become payable or roll forward as necessary;
ongoing monitoring of debt covenants and regular engagement with the market and shareholders.

It is uncertain how these macro-economicfactors will impact the ability of the Group’s borrowers to service
their loans. The Group’s client segment is particularly vulnerable to economic shocks resulting from the pandemic as they are primarily dependent on rental income from tenants in the low to middle income segments
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41. Restatement
IFRS 9 requires an entity to calculate interest income on financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impairedby applying the effective interest rate (EIR) to the amortised cost, which is net of any expected
credit losses (ECL). Previously, management incorrectly recognised interest on loans and advances classified as
stage 3 on the gross carrying amount. This resulted in an understatement of interest income and overstatement of expected credit losses in the statement of profit and loss other comprehensive income of R 6 882 979.
In line with industry practice, management has also reclassified bad debts recovered of R 4 313 379 (Group) to
expected credit losses in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.
The effect of the restatement and reclassification is as follows:
Statement of profit and loss
and other comprehensive
Income

Restated 2019

Group as
previously
reported

Impact

Interest income

401 862 025

394 979 046

6 882 979

Expected credit losses expense

(26 383 213)

(23 813 613)

(2 569 600)

7 851 017

12 164 396

(4 313 379)

383 329 829

383 329 829

0

Non-interest income
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